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Synectics plc

Synectics (AlM: SNX) is a leader in the dasign,

integration and support of advanced security

and surveillance systerns that enable clients

: around the world to protect their peaple,
communities and assets.

With over 30 years of field-proven experience,
Synectics has intimate knowledga of specialist
customaer requirements across the transport,
critical infrastructure, public space, gaming,
and oil & gas sectors, where security s
fundamental to successful business operations.

The Group's expert engineering teams work
in partnership with customers to create

i integrated product and technology solutions,
proven in the most complex and demanding
operating environments.

! Find out more at www.synecticsplc.com.

Great technology, a flexible attitude and deep
sector expertise — acquired through decades of
experience - are what set Synectics apart.

The world's leading casinos, transport
operators, public authorities, and ail & gas
producers select Synectics.

Critical
Infrastructure
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Headlines

s Revenue £43.6 million (2020: £44.6 million)

» Significant improvement in underlying loss' £(0.8} million (2020; £(4.1} million)
# Loss before tax £{0.6) million (2020: £(6.3} million}

s Fully diluted EPS' (2.8)p {2020: (27.7]p)

+ Net cash at 30 November 2021 £4.6 million (2020: £6.9 miilion} with no bank
debt? and undrawn facilities of £3.0 miliion

» Company returned to profit in the second half, as expected, on a restructured
cost base

o Order book at 30 November 2021 £28.4 million (2020: £25.4 millicn)

s Recommended final dividend at 1.5p per share, in recognition of profitable HZ
and streng balance sheet

1 Underlying {loss)/profit represents {ioss)/profit befora tax and non-underlyng itams icompnsing
amertisaton of acquired intangibles and, in 2020 only, excepticnal restructuring and legal costs).
See nota & for further detail. Underlying earnings ger share are based on {loss}/profit after tax but
bafore non-undertying items.

2 Excluding IFRS 16 lease iablities.

Financial overview
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1 Underlying (loss)/prefit represents (loss/iprofit before tax and non-underlying items
{which comprise restructuring costs and amortisaticn of acquired intangibles).
See note B to the financial staterments for further detail. Underlying earnings
per share are based on {loss)/profit after tax but before nen-underlying iterns.

2 Excluding IFRS 16 Iease liabilities.
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Introduction
Ataglance

Our business at a glance

Who we are

Synectics plc is an agile, innovative
leader in the world of advanced
surveillance technology systems.

We are experts in the specialist markets in which we operate,
with decades of experience in areas of critical nead. We have a
deep and unique understanding of our customers’ issues and
challenges, and we draw on this to create solutions they can rely
on completely - giving them pseace of mind by securing the assets,
people. and livelihoods they are responsible for protecting.

We have built an enduring reputation for our problem-solving
expertise, technical excellence, and total commitment to
delivering for our customers.

Our vision...

Synectics will lead the creation of security and surveillance
solutions that are precisely adapted for some of the warld's most
challenging environments — and be the provider of choice “where
it matters most".

What we do

Synectics specialises in the creation of
security and surveillance solutions that
are precisely adapted for some of the
world’s moast challenging environments.

We operate in a limited number of sectors where security and
surveillance needs are particularly acute and where our advanced
technologies and specialist expertise deliver the maximum value
for customers and clearly differentiate our offering.

We protect and support critical assets of public infrastructurs,
from nuclear power stations in the UK, to transport networks in
Germany, ofishore energy installations in Qatar, and the highest
grossing casinos in Singapore and Las Vegas.

Our purpose...

By building a deep understanding of our customers’ needs, we
create solutions they can rely on completely — helping to give
peace of mind by securing the pgople, assets, and livelihcods
they are rosponsible for protecting.

VWhy choose Synectics

Synectics delivers large-scale security and surveillance projects for world-class
companies, frequently winning major contracts in direct competition with
conglomerates many times our size. We succeed because we combine the scale and
track record required to handle the most challenging programmes with the agility
and “can do” attitude of an independent firm.

Long-term partnership

We work closely with our customers and partner with them
on a journey to achieve their goals.

Customer-led innovation

Synectics werks in partnership with customers to understand their
perspective, track emerging trends, support their evolving needs,
and deliver solutions that work.

Deep industry expertise

Specialist teams with deep industry and sector experience, built
through 30 years of real-lifa customer implementations, delivering
successful projects around the world.

O 2 Synectics plc
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Global capability, local knowledge

From gaming and casinos to transport, oil & gas, critical
infrastructure, and public space, Synectics has an intimate
understanding of the pressures, priorities and challenges
customers face on a daily bagis.

Specialists in caomplex and highly requlated
environments

Synectics understands challenging environments, delivering
compiex projects requiring specialist knowledge and tailared
solutions, often in highly regulated industries.

Focused product development

Our produtt development is guided by the needs of custamaers,
maximising their long-term technology investment and achieving
an optimised balance between resources invested and
performance outcomes.



Where we work

We are committed to providing our custormners with the support they need when and where they need it most. Our regional presence
enables us to respond with agility and timeliness and offer a truly custemer-centric approach.

Europe
United
Kingdom
North Asia-
America Pacific
Transport

Where our integrated and interoperable Synergy platform and on-vehicle technologies give
transpaort operators the power to connect, monitar, and controf systems vital o passenger safety,
security and travel experience at every stage cf their journey.

Critical Infrastructure

Where our sophisticated yet user-friendly solutions protect critical infrastructure and utility
estates, guiding vital decision making in operationally difficult environments with wide-ranging
demands for complete situational awareness.

Public Space

Where our integrated systemns enable locations and fzcilities with high public footfall, such as
town centres, retail malls, and museums, to improve awareness, manage incidents, and protect
public space.

Gaming

Where the survaillance and security solutions we deploy and the leading-edge cameras we
provide eliminate risk of downtime — guaranteeing high quality image detai, an unintarrupted live
view, and secure data retention in line with strict regulatory demands.

Qil & Gas

Where our COEX camera stations ensure clear, accurate, and unfailing image quality in hazardous
environments, and our integrated solutions deliver local, remote, and multi-site monitoring and
controi of vital security and safety systems.

Synactics ple ‘ O
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Introduction
Chairman’s statement

F /

The Board believes that Synectics is a financially
sound group, supported by significant intellectual
property and well positioned to capitalise on its
established market positions as the post-COVID

recovery continues.”

David Coghlan
Chairman

Overview

The pericd under review encompassed Synectics’ second yaar,
and first full financial year, since the giobal COVID-19 environment
came to dominate business life from March 2020. Against that
background, Synectics produced resilient financial and strategic
progress in the year ended 30 November 2021, consisteni with
the objectives agreed by the Board.

The financial objective for the year was to protact the valua of the
Campany by restoring profitability without damaging the growth
potential inherant in Synectics’ technology and market positions.
| am pleased to report that this objective was achieved, with
profitability restored in the second half and both of the Group's
operating divisions effecting substantial turnarounds to produce
positive operating profits for the year as a whole.

After nearly two years, it is time to move on from a discussion of
the pandemic as a critical elerment in current business performance
and to concentrate on progress in the execution and delivery of
Synectics’ growth plans. It is neverthelass worth highlighting the
ability of Synectics to drive financial growth, as this is easily
forgotten given the impact of the pandemic. in the five financial
years 2015 — 2019 inclusive, Synectics’ core technelogy Systems
Division grew its annual revenue from £32.7 million to £40.5 million,
and its underlying profits from £1.3 millien to £4.7 million. In the
year just ended, the correspanding camparable figures werg
revenue of £20.7 million (2020: £23.6 million} and profit of £0.1 million
{2020 £01.8} million}, with the dramatic decline largely driven by
the closura, of callapse in business levels, of most major casinos
and gaming resorts in Asia ang North America. The recovery of
these markets has begun in North America, albeit still gradually,
and shouid follow in Asia cnce leisure travel in the region resumes.
Nothing structural has changed in Synectics’ market opportunities
and competitive position to suggest that the Systems Division
cannot regain its 2019 result levels, and considerably more.

Strategically, Synectics has continued to strengthen its position in
the large transport and infrastructura segment of the market,
particularly far Safs City applications. During the year, the security
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rmanagement project for the $-Bahn in Berfin on behalf of
Deutsche Bahn moved frem development to the dalivery and
long-term service phase, complemeanting the Company's position
with government-owned BVG for Berlin's underground and main
transport hub. Similar sizeable projects were won with the City of
Londen Corporation and Police, and with the West Midlands
Police, for wide-scale integration of security management in those
jurisdictions. Collectively, these deployments represent impressive
reference sites for Synectics latest technology.

Results

For the year to 30 November 2021, Synectics’ consolhidated
revenue was £43.6 million {2020° £44.6 million), reflecting a full
financial year of the impact of Covid-19. The underlying loss before
1ax impreved to £(0.6} million (2020: £(4.1) million), primarily as a
result of cost reductions from the restructuring implemented in
2020, and @ regovery of revenues in the Company’s Security
Division. This figure comprised an underlying loss before tax of
£(0.8) million in the first haif, and an underlying profit before tax

of £0.2 million in the second half.

There were no material nonp-underlying costs incurrad during the
vear, so the loss before tax was also £{0.6) million (2020: £(6.3)
million). The diluted loss per share was 2.8p (2020: (27.71p).

The tax credit in the year was £0.1 million (2020: £1.6 million)
consisting largely of the recogpition of tax lesses incurred in the year.

The impact on these results of foreign exchange movements
during the year was not material. Net cash at 30 November 2021
was £4.6 million? {2020: £6.9 millien). The Campany has no bank
debt {2020: €nil) and available undrawn facilities of £3.0 million
(2020: £3.0 million}.

The consolidated firm order book at 30 November 2021 was
£28.4 million {2020: £25.4 million} araund two thirds of which
is axpectad t0 be traded in FY 2022 with the balance largely
long-term service and support contracts.



Dividend

Given the Company’s return to profitahility in the second haif of
the year ended 30 November 2021, its strong balance sheet and
as a mark of our confidence in Synectics’ future, the Board is
recormmending the payment of a final dividend of 1.5p per share
subject to shareholders” approval at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting due to be held on 20 April 2022. If approved, the
dividend will be payable on 6 May 2022 to shareholders on the
register as at 8 April 2022,

The Board does not intend to declare an interim dividend during
this financial year ending 30 November 2022 but, so long as it
remains prudent ta do so, we expect to recommend payment ot g
final dividend in respect of the fu!l financial year.

Strategy

Synectics' primary strategy remains to develop and capitalise on
market-leading positions within relevant sectors of the global
surveillance and security market where custcmers value high-
performance, sector-specific capability. The Campany achieves
cost cornpetitiveness and scalability in these markets by
maintaining a standard modular core software platform which
supports solutions tailored as required for specific sectors

and customers.

Significant technology development investment is focused an
expanding the range of capabilities of the Company's core Synergy
platform, delivered in traditional, Cloud-based or hybrid
architectures, to enable end-to-end control of the overali
surveillance function and resources in cormplex operations. To
customers whase other aptions would largely be based on
bespoke development, the Synectics alternative offers the
flexibility and power they need, but at lower cost and with
substantially reduced nsk.

In the UK and Ireland, Synectics’ technology is increasingly
detlivered via its in-house integration division, as well as through
third party integration partners. Globally, delivery is either direct
or via local specialist partners.

Pecople

I would like once again to pay tribute to the skills, commitment
and goodwill of Synectics’ people through another exceptionally
difficutt period. On beha¥f of the Board and shargholders, § pass
on our sincare thanks. As aliuded tc above, considgrabla effort
was applied by senior management and the Board across 2021

in reasserting and re-articulating the Company's core values, and
in visibly strengthening the importance attributed to behaviours
consistent with the Company’s long-maintained culture of
absolute focus on customer needs, on integrity and on mutual
support of colleaguas. These values have underpinned Synectics’
success from its foundation more than 30 years ago and are an
essential part of what the Company is. The Board is clear that long
term financial success will flow from resolutely maintaining

these values.

As another measure of the direct impact of our peapie on the
business, for the sixth year running the Company's independently
assessed metric of overall customer satisfactian has risen. The
Board attaches significant importance to the results of this annual
survey as a leading indicator of the Group’s performance, and the
long-term success and sustainability of the business.

Outlook

Synectics’ recovery in results in H2 2021 was primarily driven by
restructuring efficiencies and cost saving measures undertaken

in the preceding financial year. Further progress in the immediate
future will come from organic growth in revenue and gress margins.

The degree to which this objective will be aided in 2022 by general
MAacroeconoMic recovery as pandemic restrictions are lifted is
obviously unknown. Nevertheless, the Group's growing order
book, pipeline of expected new business and the emerging
opportunities in our markets underpin some quite ambitious
internat plans for this financial year and next. Based on this, the
Board is confident that Synectics’ trajectory of revenue growth

in the Systems division wilt resume in the current financial yaar,
though timing does remain uncertain and is likely to be second half
weighted. The revenue growth delivered by the newly-formed
Security division in 2021 is expectad to continue at approxirnately
the same rate in the current year.

Although Synectics has not been immune fror the weli-
documented supply chain pressures affecting the electronics
industry globalty, these challenges have not had a material impact
on the Group's trading to date, and are not expectad to da so in
the current year. Likewise, cost inflation experienced by the Group
has been increasing but the impact on gross margins has been
mare than offset by efficiencies and irmproverments in the mix of
higher value-added software revenue; this trend is also expected
to continue through 2022.

The underlying global market for sophisticated, software-led
security systems is fundamentally attractive, with solid long term
growth prospects. The Beard believes that Synectics is a
financially sound group, supported by significant intellectua!
progerty and is wali positioned to capitalise on its established
market positions once the recovery is underway

David Coghlan
Chairman

22 February 2022

1 Underlying {loss¥profit represents (loss)/profit bafore tax and
nen-underlying items (which comprise rastructuring costs and
arnortisation of acquired intangibles). See nate 8 for further detail,

2 Excluding IFRS 16 lease liabilities.
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Strategic review
Chief Executive's statement

F/

We are confident that the Company’s excellent
customer relationships in attractive markets,
coupled with its talented and committed teams,
provide sound foundations for a strong recovery

and sustained growth.”

Paul Webb
Chief Executive

While many people enterad 2021 hoping that it would be a year of
recovery from the traumas of 2020, the reality has been different.
For gur customers these last 12 months have been evary bit as
challenging, but it has continued to be our privilege t0 support
them as they have navigated further uncertainty and sought to
lead their organisations forward.

Qur commitment to them is reciprocated, and my colleagues and |
are enormously grateful 1o have such loyal and supportive
customers. They say that whean times ara tough you find out who
yaour real friends are. We and our custaomers hava halped each
other through this difficult period and we are now able 1o lcok
ahead togsther with renewed purpose and optimism.

In a period of extragrdinary volatility, aghiity is vital. This has always
been a core strength of Synectics, and it is enabling us te respond
guickly to svents, be they lockdowns or supply chairt digruption,
which are often beyond anyone’s absolute control, and ensure we
continue to provide what our customers need.

| believe passionatefy that in turbulent times it is even more
immportant to be clear about wha you really are and to ensure that
you remain true 10 your core values. These fundamental principles
are a great source of strength. They help us through the tough
times and give us confidence that as market conditions improve
we have what it takes to prosper — not just in terms of technical
capabilities but in the way we go about our business and the way
we treat our customers and each other.

Synectics pic
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For Synectics, our values are built into everything we do. We have
not had to invent them or paste them on, they have been integral
since our early days as an indepeandant, innovation led company
more than thirty years ago. We raviewed our values during 2021
and concluded that more than ever they define who we are and
reflect what we stand for. We have changed the way we express
them a little, to make the wording even simpler and more direct,
but the underlying meaning is the same.

Wa are conscious that we operate in an industry which talks a lot
about technicai capabilities, often in language which would baffle
most of the wider public we seek 10 serve and protect. Our first
value statement is a reminder that for all the sxciting technology,
our business is about people, and that doing our very best for
thern and treating everyone we impact with respect and
consideration really matters.

For Synectics, the commitments 1o our customears are sewn into
the fabiric of our company. We know that our success ralies on
putting custorners first and anticipating and meeting their needs,
in tha short term and for the future.

From the very start, Synectics has always been a creative,
innovative enterprise. We are constantly challenging each other
ta improve and to expand the boundaries of what our industry
can deliver,

Underpinning all of this is an unwavering belief in good old-
fashioned honesty; being reliable and transparent in the way we
work and in the way we treat people, inside and outside our own
company. We must never let our custormers down because what
we ara enabling them to do is so vitally important.



These four, simple principles reinforce each other. For example,
the personal, human way in which we go about our business helps
to underpin our commitmnent to transparency. Together, our values
help us 1o make the right decisions and t¢ do the right thing by our
customers, our employees, and our shareholders, no matter what
the world throws at us.

Our Customer Survey results continue to demonstrate that the
commitrments embodied in our values are strangly mutual. 85% of
our customers see Synectics as their preferred long-term partner,
a wonderful endorsement which | am sure is not given lightly by
them and which teans a huge amount to us. A simitar praportion
believe that the solutions we will be able to offer them in the
future will be an excellent fit with their organisation’s nesds.

The effects of the pandemic, from trave! restrictions to casino
closures, have inavitably hit our business over the past two years,
but we and our custorners are in this together for the long term.

Qther findings from the latest survay confirm the strength of our
customer relationships day te day. Qur “NPS” (Net Promoter
Score) has improved further year on year, despite the extraordinary
pressures we have all been working under. More than half our
customers scored us 9 or 10 out of 10 on our overall performance.
We are rated highly for the reliability and user-friendliness of our
solutions, for always delivering fully on our cormmitrments, for the
expertise of our people, ard for “really caring about doing a great
ioh”, These arg attributes which will stand us in good stead as
growth returns.

The survey itself forms an integral part of our Customer Excelience
programme. We share the results with our customers and
throughout our company. The findings drive our decisicns about
where we need to focus resources and investments to continue
improving what we do and build further on our strengths.

Aithough 2021 has not been an easy year, there is much for us to
be proud of.

Paul Webb
Chief Executive

22 February 2022
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Strategic review
Qur values

Our values

We have a great story to tell at Synectics
and our success is based on our distinctive
way of working with our people, customaers,
and stakeholders.

Whilst we deiiver technology, what we really do is 1o provide
solutions to safeguard lives. Because of this, our care values gré

centred around how we care about each other, our custamers,
and the people we protect,

During the year, we refreshed the way we exprass our values.
This has enabled us to reflect changas in the company today and
into the future.

WE ARE HUMAN

We look at business in terms of paop'e: our colleagues,
our customers, and above all the peopls we keep safe.

WE ARE CUSTOMER DRIVEN

We are committed 1o our customers; our customers’ nesds
guide everything we do.

O 8 Synactics ple
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Our values continue to fundamentally guide us to:
= Make the right decisions

» Define our culture and motivate our teams
+ Hire and retain great talent
* Assure customers about what we stand far

» Attract new customers who share the same values

Every decision we make fits with our values.
By doing this, we're able to drive the company
forward, help everyone reach their goals,

and differentiate our offerings.

WE ARE ENTERPRISING

We are creative and innovative; we are solution-led
and relentless in our quest to find the right cutcome.

WE ARE HONOURABLE

We do what we say we will do, and wea do the right thing



Strategic review
Qur business model

Our business model

We create opportunity by delivering innovative solutions tailored to customers’
reguirements in market sectors where Synectics’ specialist expertise creates

high value.

To achieve this Synectics embraces two complementary business models founded on shared principles which
govern the relationships we seek to build with customers, the way in which we work with them, and the
partnerships we craate with other providers to serve our customers better and enhance our market rgach.

The individuat divisions — Systems and Security enable us to address a wide range of customer opportunities in
the markets and geographies we target. Those opportunities are often in challenging er camplex environments

where our specialist knowledge is especially valuable 1o customers.

In the last year we simplified the structura of the Group to enable each opérating division to enhance its distinet

specialisms, improve client outcomes, and create new opportunitiss for growth.

SYSTEMS

The Systems division securas major contracts for the design,
development, and deployment of security and surveillance solutions,
primarily based on its proprietary technology platform, Synergy.

The Systems division operates as a unified global business
{Synectics) with offices located around the world to support and
service (s customers.

Much of Systems” work is seld and delivered in partnership with
specialist integrators. These ralationships allow its soiutions fo be
deployed in the most efficient way for customers and enable
Synectics to maxrnise its global reach. Synectics also works
directly with end usars wherever this offers the most effective
appreach for customers,

Revenue is earned primarily through the application of intellectual
property, in the form of Synectics’ proprietary software and specialist
axpertise. This allows complex client challenges and needs 1o be
translated into robust, practical, and userfriendly sclutions

Synactics identifies future opporiunities at an early stage, working
in partnership with customers to understand their needs and create
solutions that are taifored to their business requirements.

Increasingly the business is applying its technology and expertise to
target wider cpportunities that embrace tailored enterprise security
operations management solutions.

Systems’ revenue streams are typically project based and include
many large-scale programmes, Much of its revenue comes from
repeat business from clients which it supports over time and across
miultiplg sites and estates. This is both a tribute to the strength of
Synectics’ customer relationships and an important factor in the
long-term health and resillence of the business.

Our Systerns business has & growth strategy.

1 0 Synectics ple
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SECURITY

The Security businesses generate revenus via a
service-based modsl, working directly with end
users to design, deliver, maintain, and support
best-in-class solutions.

The businesses primarily serve custorners in
the UK and ireland.

Contracts are frequently multi-year and deliver
a strong recurring and repeat revenus basis for
the Group.

Synectics Security is a systems integrator.

Its solutions are tailored to specific customer
needs, from electronic systems for complex,
critical, or regulated environments, 1o on-vehicle
transport systems that protect passengers,
drivars, and on-board staff.

Svynectics Security leverages Synergy software
where this is the customer's preferred solution
and also works with other partners, integrating
their capabilities to provide the ideal outcome
for end users.

SS8 Management Services spacialises in
security and facilities managemant for multi-site
retail operations in the UK. It offers a range of
support services from monitoring 10 contract
rmanagement, analytics, and reactive and
planned maintenance.

Our Security business has a profitahility strategy.



How we deliver

CUSTOMERS

Our business is founded an
successful, lasting relationships with
our customers. Wa provide peace of
mind through robust, technically
advanced security and surveillance
solutions designed to deliver reliably
in the most challenging envirenments,

Everything we do is driven by a deep
undeystanding of customers’ needs,
the environments they work in, and
the challenges they must solve.

THE PILLARS OF OUR SUCCESS

SOLUTIONS

Synectics has always been at the
vanguard of security and surveillance
technology, applying emerging
capabilities to build sophisticated,
valug-adding solutions with the

exceptional rigour our clients demand.

Today, the foundation of our solutions
is Synergy, an innovative, highly
flexible platform that marks us out as
a technical leader in our industry.

PEOPLE

As our Company has grown, we have
remained true to the human values at
its heart — mutual respect, deep
persanal commitment, and pride in
the application of world-class
expertise in finding soiutions to
practical, real-world challenges.

We provide rewarding employment
and excellent development
apportuniies within a stimulating
working envirgnment,

Our deep sector knowledge and understanding of customers’ needs, and our ability to create
solutions tailored to these, is coupled with strong and capable people who consistently deliver
for our customers — these are the pillars of our success.
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Strategic review
How we deliver continued

Our customers

Synectics’ continued success within the
global security and surveillance industry is
founded on our track record of productive,
enduring customer relationships.

Everything we do is driven by a deep understanding of our
customers’ needs, the environments they work in, and the
challenges they must soive. The large majority — B5% — view
Synectics as their prefarred long-term partner, and share a belief
that our sclutions will be an excellent fit with their organisations’
future needs. We are proud of the trust and support this signifies
and we know it gives us a terrific platform upon which to build.

Customnars come to Synectics for our technical expertise and
market knowledge. We work in close partnership to understand
the chaillenges they face and deliver solutions which are proven
and robust while incorporating the latest advanced technologies.
Our teams have an intimate knowladge of the unique pressures
our customers face on & daily basis and work closely with them
to adapt our capabilities to the specific requirements of gach
particular environment.

Some of the underlying princinles and technolegies are of course
transferable across industries, even with sectors as diverse as
those in which we specialise.

The scope and flexibility of Synectics’ Synergy software platform,
for example, means that itis used by customers cperating the
world's busiest transport systems and largest gaming resorts, and
by those charged with protacting critical infrastructure and iconic
city centres across the globe.

The key, however, lies in customising the way in which the vast
array of tocls and expertise at our disposal are used 1o create the
right solution, not just for each market, but for each individual
customer. Having the knowledge and discipline to assess each set
af requirements and the expertise and commitment to deliver that
precisely tailored solution is critical.

The key is 10 ook at things through the eyes of the customer, We
focus on the big picture outcomes they need to defiver while alse
looking at the detalled practicalities of how they need to wark from
Synectics’ continued success within the global security and
surveillance industry is founded on our track record of productive,
enduring custormer relationships.

Our Custorner Excellence programme reaches across all the
organigations and sectors we serve and has created an additional
channel of dialogue with our tlients. Central to the programme is 8
structured annual survey run for us in each of the past six ysars by
an independent research consultancy. The feedhack our customers
share is constructive and insighttul. it enables us to better
understand their needs and mativations and to create action plans
that address their priorities.

This year, despite all the challenges the world has faced, our
Net Promater Score {"NPS™") ross again, and more than half
our customers scored us 9 o 10 out of 10 on their likelihood to
racommend us.

1 2 Synectics plc
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Qur care strengths are widely recegnised by customers: the
reliability of cur solutions; the sophistication and power of the
underlying technolagy, our ability to customise our capabilities to
maet sach customer’s requirements and provide systems which
are genuinely user-friendly; the specialist expertise and sheer
comimitment of our teams. We continue to be highly rated by our
clients in all of thase areas and this is pivotal to our ability to
achieve exceptionally high levels of repeat business.

As we continue 1o build our organisation around our customer first
philesophy, we are strongly positionad to support our customers
as they continue to navigate a highly uncertain world but seek (o
take advantage of exciting and powsrful new technologies.

Synactics chooses to operate in clearly defined markets where
security is truly critical and where we can add value through deep
sector knowledge, proven industry experience, and our focused
solutions portfolio.

Qur approach allows us te differentiate our offering and deliver
tailored scluticns that enable our customaers to succeed in their
markets, Qur primary targets are transport, eritical infrastructure,
public space, gaming, and ail & gas.

Global security and surveillance markets will continue to expand
and they are changing rapidly. Our knowledge is enabling us to
anticipate trends and support customers as their disciplines evolve,
The pandemic has undoubtedly impacted new investmen? in
infrastructure, while travel and access to many leisurs facilities
have been severely constrained, but these will recover and wili be
key factors in supparting ous future growth. Combined with the
nresence of unrelenting and ever mare diverse threats, they are
driving demand for high quality, reliable solutions to protect people,
communities and assets.

Mest of our target markets are complex or highly regulated, or
both. We take the time to undaerstand these challenges. combining
our global perspective with an intimate knowledge of local market
nuances, such as the regional variations in the laws that govern
casino cperations.

Our focused approach is enabling us to open up new opportunities
with different groups of customers where we can apply our
products and technologies to take on new and evolving industry
challenges. The innavative urban transport solutions wa are
delivering for Deutsche Bahn are an excellent example of this

and we believe herald a new generation of more comprehensive
and fluid approaches 1o keeping customers safer while serving
them better.

Our approach means different things for different parts of our
business. In Synectics Security, our heartland is within public
space but we see ppportunities across other sectors that are
underserved by existing competitors. Within the Systemns business
we are building new partnerships, beyond our traditional systems
integrator model, that are opening new doors where our solutions
can flourish.

The markets we target represent an extraordinarily diverse
range of working environments and operational challenges.
They also have important things in cormmon — scale, complexity,
and an imperative need for proven techrologies applied with
absolute rigour. Qur strengths and capabilities align perfectly
with these requirements.



Scaling to support future needs

"Wae know the Synergy solution we've specified will integrate with any
third-party system we need it to, grow with us, and enable us to migrate to
IP cameras and new technologies as and when we want. Having also
received great training, we're excited to see where we can go with this.”

Bratt Davis
Director of Surveillance, Hoosier Park

Protecting people in world-class venues

“This impartant upgrade to the security credentials is part of an angoing
commitment to keeping everyone safe and secure when they visit London
Stadium. Cperating a multi-event venue requires flexible technologies that
not only meet our requirements nowy, but also in the future.”

Graham Gilmore
CEQ, Lordon Stadium

Delivering a woHd-class leisure experience

"With Synergy, our surveillance team can review gaming data and footage,
access reports and images, immediately send this information to qur staff at
the tables, and keep customers satisfied.”

Jonas Bautista
Manager of Surveillance & Security, Gongzi Jeju Casino

Keeping students safe
“Moving the university onto a sophisticated surveillance maonitoring platform

has significantly improved the pravision of student security, saving our team
vital minutes in the event of emergencies.”

Mark Stacey
Security Systems Operational Manager, Nottingham Trant University

Helping to create the future of transport

"Synergy's powerful integrations, intelligent digitisation of workflows,
workforce management capatilities, and computer-aidad dispatch
functionality combine te deliver a hugely exciting outcome. ™

Henning Celze
Project Manager, S-Bahn

Providing reliability and built-in cybersecurity

“The latest version of Synergy has a lot to endear it to major oil & gas
operators. Mot Isast its operating structure and built-in cyber measures
which together offer the cansistency and robust security increasingly
demanded by developments moving to a single iP infrastructure for

all systems.”

Chrisg Bail
Maior Bid Manager, Western Advance

Synectics ple I 1 3
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Strategic review
How wae deliver continued

Our solutions

Synectics has always been known for its
agile, scalable approach to meeting
customers’ most complex operational

needs and challenges. The Synergy software
platform sits at the very heart of our
capabiiities, providing an architecture and
deployment which are equally flexible.

We waork closely with our customers to deliver a tailared solution
against their exacting operational requirements. We utilise a
meodular approach to building features and functions, cffer
comprehensive user interface design toals, and underpin all of this
with rigorous operational process management.

Qur spproach is deliperately technology agnostic, which means
our customers can choase to deploy in a full on-premise, fuli
cloud, or hybrid architecture. YWe can alsa give them the flexibility
to migrate different parts of the overall solution from one
environment to ancther over time, so they can phase the costs of
the transition and get the maximum value fram legacy equipment.

Qur deep sector expertise and cur flexible mindsat mean we can
readily understand the challenges different organisations face. We
have optimised our sciutions to cater for the oparational,
regulatory, and technical nuances of each of our focus rnarkets, all
bhased on one core piatform, Synergy.

The systerns are adapted to be equally effective in supporting a
series of very different business environments: managemaent,
slot and POS machines for our casino operating customers; video,
intruder, and access control for High Security facilities;
enforcement, geospatial information, and traffic monitoring for
Safe Cities; intelligent process control systems for the Oil and
Gas industry.

The Synergy software platform is at its most powsrful where
security and surveillance are critical to customers” entire
operations. Synergy is etfectively the glue that connects a wide
array of disparate systems and technologies. Synergy provides

a unified managerment platform within which cperators and
supervisors can manage the entire end-te-end process associated
with responding to a particular security event. It gives the teams
full situational awareness at every step and allows themn to make
vital, real time decisions based on a complete and accurate picture
of how the situation is evolving.

Synergy presents the right information to the right people at the
right time, integrates this immeadiatsly with existing cperational
pratocols, and communicates instructions to field teams so that
they can deliver the best possible response to even the most
critical and complex security events. This may involve transmitting
live and recorded video and accessing reaf time event notifications
fram physical security devices such as doors, fences and barrisrs.
it can also enable mining of information from social media,

mobile applications or information and emergency points, use of
Video Content Analysis and Al systems, and analysis based on
location awareness of incidents, people and vehicles. Once again
it is the breadth and flexibility of the technology that makes it so
powerful and so effective in such diverse environments.

Synectics ple
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Beyond the control room, Synergy supports even the most
complex of operational scenarics simply and efficiently. Controt
room managers may need to review incidents and produce
management reports whilst travetling or working from home.

Real time information dashiboards can be simultaneously displaysd
to internal and external stakeholders. Cloud-based digital asset and
evidence management allows incident and evidential information
to be shared rapidly with external agencies, We may be supporting
routine mainienance teams tasked with daily work to remaove
graffiti or service a faulty device, or we may be enabling fully
coliaborative incident management, with sacurity personnel
despatched 1o tackle the situation while maintaining full, real-time
interaction with the control room team.

In markets where regulatory requirements mean significant
barriers 1o entry for competitors who provide standardised
products, we design, develop, and deliver niche solutions that
meet the most stringent of demands. One example of this is our
COEX range of camera stations which are designed specifically
for the needs of the Ofl and Gas market and daliver the highast
operating emironmmient range and technicat video performance
avaifable today.

As well as deeply integrating with third-party technologies,

we also offer a range of hardware devices to enable our customers
to adopt & full turnkey Synectics solution. Qur management server
and storage platforms support the full capabilities of a Synergy
system including the most resilient video recording techniques via
IP Camera backfilling, and hot-failover solutions. For aur
transportation customers we offer on-vehicle video and data
capture appliances along with IoT (“Internet of Things”)
capabilities to allow live viewing, upload, and health monitoring

of entire fleets.

Synectics has always had a flexible, customer centric,
solution finding mentality. Our technology has been
designed to draw on this deeply rooted culture and
provide practical operational benefits for our
customers, and for the people they employ and serve.



Technology roadmap themes

Four themes underpin our approach to tachnology
development and solutions delivery.

Cybersecurity

Cybersecurity is at the forefront of our customers minds
and to ensure peace of mind we continually develop
our Synergy platform, and hardware appliances to be
as protected as possible. We deploy the latest firewalls
and antivirus tools and support strong encryption
standards for data in transit and &t rest to reduce risk
of attack and exposurs to threats, We use the latest
panetration testing toals and manitar OWASP and
other communities to identify and evaluate potential
threats, and address any vulnerability quickly

and efficiently.

Customer-Driven Innovation

Synergy significantly increases our customers
capabilities to manage security, surveillance and routine
tagks through cur naw rangs of wab, mobile and cloud
native product extensions. Thesa enhancements are all
based on modern technologies allowing rapid scale out
to increase capacity at the most critical moments. Ina
waorld where speed and agility of response can make
the difference between success and disaster, these
capabilities enable a wide range of operational benefits.

Integration

Synergy enables deep integration with a wide variety
of complimentary security, surveillance, operational
management and data sources provided by the

waorlds leading vendors in our chasen market verticals.
Whether it be proprietary SDK / APl integration or opan
standards based such as ONVIF, MODBUS, SNMP,
our customers have access to best in class integration
functionality to meet all their operational needs.

Evolution

Synergy evolves along with our customers changing
business needs, from a highly resilient and open video
management system right through to an integrated
security, surveillance and operational management
platform. With configurabie deployment options for
fully on-prernise, hybrid or full cloud using the standard
Synergy Sottware, customers are able ta select the
features, functions and deployment methods that

are important to them and change over time as

their business, operational and IT needs develop.

Synectics pic ]
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Strategic review
How we deliver continued

Our people

Qur people are essential to the successful
delivery of our strategy and to achieving our
long-term business performance. We continue
10 strive for strong engagement from
everyone across the globe. By doing so, we
can accelerate professional development,
improve productivity, fully embed our values
and create future leaders.

Qur pride in the Synectics team has grown even greater this year.
The last twealve months have once again showcased the sheer
resilience, prafessionalisrm and talent we have in our locations
throughout the warld. Now almost twa years inta the pandemic,
our people have stepped up countless times, and have not only
adapted but exceiled in new ways of working, collaborating, and
supporting Qur customers.

We have alsa seen new faces join us over that time wha have all
shown great suppart and embraced the unique culture that has
been carefully crafted over many years. We've welcomed back a
number of hugely talentad people whao have rsjoined the business,
which is a tremendous endorsement of the people and culture

we have,

Qur values

Ouring the year, we refreshed the way we express our values,
we've not changed them as they define us perfectly, but
refreshing our values have allowed us to reflect changes in the
company today and into the future.

Qur vaiues, more than ever, guide our behaviours, culture and
decision making. They really do define us as a businass and is why
we continue 1o attract the best talent in the industry. Those human
values have always been an important anchor for us as our
“technology” industry has evolved. Our work protects assets and
infrastructure, but its most important purpose is to protect peaple
- to keep them safe, give them peace of mind, and enable them to
pursue their lives without concern.

A great place to work

Qur goeal has always been to offer stimulating, rewarding
employment with excelient development oppertunities within a
very human and engaged working environment.

we regularly review our staff welfare and continue to add new
henefits and peolicies to ensure that everyone’s health and
welloeing is prioritised. This year we've continued to refine and
enhance our health and wellbeing framework that includes access
to 8 mental health first aider, varicus wellbeing and self-help
resources, and mini health checks.

Synectics ple
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We have also launchied new initiatives and invested in technology
10 support new ways of warking, fram haow we communicate, 10
the delivery of learning resources and support for home-based
working. Many of the enhancements we have made have become
permanent changes for the better.

Engagement, communication and recognition

Employee engagement is especially important in maintaining
our ability t¢ deliver first-class products and services in times of
significant change. One way we do this is to carry out our annual
Employee Opinicn Survey {EQS).

The EOS provides insights into aur people’s views ranging from
their thoughts on their daily working life here at Synectics to our
ability to lead and communicate The survey has had a cansistently
high response rate and, once again, the participation this year

was excellent. Qur overall engagement result saw a slight decline
which was not unexpected given the climate over the [ast year.

Ta further dernonstrate our commitment to employee feedback,
we have established a number of employee-led working groups
that will help guide and prioritise improvernents hased on what
our peopie have said are most important to improving their
working lives.

We have continued to drive regutar engagement with our
employees through a wide range of formal and informal channels.
These include manthly interactive update calls, global colleague
briefings, regular all-staff messages from our Chief Executive,
virtual tearm meetings, social media updates and newsletiers.

Qur cloud-hased platform, Colleague eXperience (CX), has heen
well embedded across the company and continues to be a key tool
that cannects our global werkforce to the business. We've also
recently launched a Globai Colieague Handbook o enhance the
onboarding experience.

The employee recognition and awards prograrmnme celebrates the
successes of our people. During the last year, over a third of our
employeas took time to praise a colleague’s contribution. Our
Performance and Development Reviews {PDRs) enabled
managers to formally recognise their team’s incredible
achievements and efforts and provided a platform to discuss
professional development and carger goals at Synectics.

Synectics is built from our values and our unique
culture - which is based on our people, and our
customers. We are immensely proud of our heritage,
and the journey we have undertaken ovar the last

30 years.

Above all, we care passionately about always doing
the right thing: for each other, and in delivering ths
very best for our customers and the peaple they serve
and protect.




Organising and participating in team activities continued to be challenging last ysar, however it did not stop

us from doing what we could. We are proud of what our people were able to accomplish and contribute to their

local communities and charities.

Here are just a few examples of their terrific efforts over the past year.

Cycle challenge, Berlin
A huge well done to our Berlin team who completed the Stadtradeln
challenge in Segtember 2021.

Stadtradeln aims to encourage as many people as possible to cycle
in their everyday lives, thereby raising awareness of bicycle-friendly

cities and making a contribution to climate protection, and of course,

improving people’s health!

The team cycled just under 1,000km in three weeks to help raise
awareness. To show our support we made a donation to Velofit,
which supports ¢hildren in gaining knowledge of bicyclas, their
benefits and how to repair them.

KidsOut Giving Tree
The team at SSS proudly took part in last year's KidsQut Giving Tree event,

The tearn came together and denated a large number of gifts in the hope of being able to
bring a smile to a child during Chrisimas.

Customer Charity Donation

As part of the annual Customer Excelience Survey, we make a commitment to donate o a
charity selected by one of our customers. 2021's worthy recipient was Cancer Research UK,
a charity that focuses on funding scientists, doctors and nurses to help beat cancer.

Meningitis Now
Sponsors, exhibitors and delegates came together at this year's Global MSC serminar in
October 1o support a wanderfut charity called Meningitis Now. The combined donations
meant that the tearn at Global MSC were able to donate over £3,500 to an extremaly
waorthwhile cause.

Synactics ple
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Strategic review
Our markets

Our markets

We operate in clearly defined markets
where we add value through deep
sector knowledge, industry experience,
and our focused solutions portfolia.

Muost of our target markets are complex or highly
regulated. The world’s leading casinas, transport
operators, public authorities and oil & gas producers
select us because our tailored sclutions mest those
complex reguirements and provide them with future-proof
paths to the {atest innovations.

\Wa aiso take the time to understand their challenges,
combining our global perspective with an intimate
knowledge of focal market nuances, for example,

the regional variations in the laws that govern

casino operations,

The woerk we have dene during 2021 to augment our
strategy has been designed to reinforee our commitment
to these selected markets.

This focus allows us to differentiate our offering and
deliver solutions that enable our customers 10 succeed
in their markets, It also enables us to open up new
opportunities with different groups of customers whers
we can apply our products and technelogies to take on
new and evolving industry challenges.

Our approach means different things for different parts of
our business. Within the Systems business we are bullding
new partnarships, beyond our traditional systems
integrator model, that are opsning new daors where our
solutions can flourish.

in Synectics Security, while aur heartland is within public
space markets, we s8& apparunities across other market
secters that are underservad by existing competitors. The
markets we targat present an extraordinarily diverse range
of working environments and operational challenges. They
alsa have important things in commaon — scale, complexity,
and an imperative need for proven technologies applied
with absolute rigour. Our strengths and capahilities align
perfectly with these requirements.

1 8 Synectics ple
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Transport

Our pioneering smart transport project with Berlin’s $-Bahn went live in January 2021 and is transforming security, passenger
service, and operational management across this network. Operational taams are now able to connecgt, respond, and coliaborate
with passengers and staff on board trains and at stations, and with field personnel working anywhere across the network.

Synectic's integrated and interoperakle Synergy piatform and on-vehicle technologies give transport operators the power 1o
connact, monitor, and control systems vital to passenger safety, security and travel experience at every stage of their journey.

Critical Infrastructure

Synectics’ solutions are used to secure and protect critical networks and assets essential to national security. From utility and
defence lacations to police and secure government installations including prisans and high security hospitals, our teams work to
reduce operationat risk and the threat of disruptive attack.

The solutions we design and deploy enable operators to improve detection, reduce the potential far costly downtime, and
safeguard the sservices vital to daily life. We work across the estate, from greventing cyberattacks on critical national
infrastructure, to monitoring remote locations and enabling effectively integrated command and control operations.

Public Space

Balancing tight security with open access at sites with high public foatfall; visual surveillance with data privacy; localised control
with central, multi-facility oversight; and operationa!l excetlence with cost minimisation — these are just some of the challenges
faced by our retail and public space customers. Qur solutions ensure that our surveillance technologies, integration capabilities
and facilities management services are chosen time and time again.

Our heritage in public space surveillance protection, particularly in the UK, has made us the partner of chaoice for local authorities
where Synergy is deployed to make cities safer, Our solutions monitor security across major retall estates, prevent theft and
fraud, and protect valuable consumer goods.

Gaming
Gaming is one of the mast technically demanding, tightly regulated leisure industries in the world. Moenitoring vast, crowded facilities in

low-light conditions where massive amounts of cash constantly change hands is a daily reality. With sochisticated resilience and data
retention features that guarantee regulatory compliance, our solutions deliver precision images and absolute peace of mind.

While this market has stowed over the fast two years, capabilities such as autcration and video analytics will support casino operators
as they amerge from the pandemic and lock to maximise operating capabilities across gaming floors. Increasingly we ses opportunities
beyond the core casino surveillance into security and operations management across majar integrated resorts.

Oil & Gas

The complexity of the task facing our oil & gas customers is encrmous: safeguarding on-site personnel; protecting offshore and
onshore pipelines; and monitaring hazardous and explosive areas, ofien in remote locations under extreme temperatures. Itis
an industry where customers choose Synectics because of our major project experience and reputation for long-term product
rediability i challenging environments.

At the heart of our offer is the highly regarded COEX carmera range, which is specified by many end users as their product
of choice.

Synactics plc
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Strategic review
Market experience

Market experience

Gaming growth paowered by reliable,
intuitive software

Fallsview Casing Resort - the largest gaming resort facility in
Canada, overlooking the world-famous Horseshoe Falls — and its
sister property, Casino Niagara, are two of our notable new North
Arnerican customers.

In partnership with our local imegration partner, Zuvid Surveillance
Systems, we will daploy new site-wide surveillance management
systemns for both properties based on our market-leading Synergy
software platform.

The contracts agreed also include a five-year support agreement
for ongoing develepment.

Paul Webb, Chief Executive commented: “In gaming, guaranteeing
continuous surveillance coverage and simplifying footage review
procedures far rapid incident investigation is vital to security.

It's also fundamentai to regulatory compliance.

“Qur ability to meet these complex needs through Synergy and
our deep-rooted sector expertise, is the reason we continue to
expand our global portfolio of casing customers.”

The surveillance solutions developed will draw on Synergy's ability
0 integrate and interoperate with leading security and gaming
specific technologies, to facilitate consolidated control of key
systemns for improved efficiency and performance.

Synergy’s tailorability and ease-of-use — bath in terms of user
prafarences and systerm set up — will allow both casinos 1o create
‘perfect fit’ surveillance environments ideally suited to their
individual needs.

Mike Stanciu, Director of Surveiliance, Niagara Casinos, said:
“We selected Synergy due to the impressive ability 1o bring a
number of fragmented processes and systems into a centralised,
easy to use Comimand and Control space.

“Synergy’s ability to deliver an efficient product will be beneficial
to the overall success of our department and our properties. Their
intuitive front end makes it easy for operators to find the cameras
they are looking for, review incidents and provide appropriate
evidence whan required.”
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Supporting major event and
incident management

Autumn 2021 saw the completion of phasa one of the £1.5 million
project for Véest Midlands Pelice to equip its new Event Control
Suite with a comprehensive video managemant solution ahead of
next year's Commonwealth Games,

As well as being the base for all operational co-ordination for the
Commonwealth Games in 2022, the site will alse be the future
Farce Control Centre and command suite for the co-ordination and
control of major incidents and events in the West Midlands in the
coming years.

The solution, based on Synectics’ Synergy command and control
software platform, will integrate video feeds from thousands of
cameras through disparate systems at over thirty sites, which
include local authorities, sporting venues, transport hubs and
retail centres,

Synectics’ Security division has been working closely with \Waest
Midiands Police throughout the design and delivery phase and will
continue to develop the control room solution, as well as providing
ongeing suppart and maintenance,

Colin Holder, CCTV Manager for West Midlands Palice,
commentad: "We engaged with Synactics’ Security division to
help us design and deliver this innovative project. Qur selection
and deployment of the Synergy platform will underpin both the
current project aims and provide a reliable, secure and scalable
solution for the future. This new Event Cantroi Suite will provide
the world-class facilities we need to deliver a safe and successful
event far the region.”

This project further illustrates Synectics’ ever-growing reputation
n major event support and citywide incident management.
Synergy-based solutions have been operational in London’s Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park and the Landon Stadium for a number of
years. The City of London Police also recently selected our
cloud-based Synergy solution for its central contrel room as part of
the City’s Secure City Programme.



Making cities safer with Synergy’'s new cloud capabilities

Public space protection has always been central to our business,
as has pioneering new technology to heip customers meet
emerging neads and evolving threats.

Qur work with the City of London to deliver one of the industry’s
first enterprise-level cloud solutions for public space surveillance is
the perfect example of these core competencies wn action. The
project also illustrates why Synectics is ideally positioned to
support Safe/Smart City initiatives throughaut the world,

The multi-miflion-pound contract, awarded by the City of London
Corporation and the City of Landon Police as part of the Secure
City Programme, will significantly improve the safety of Square
Mile residants, workers and visitors by using native cloud
technology within Synergy to transform situational awareness,
identifying risk, prioritising threats and supporting real-time
responsive action.

Leveraging Microsoft's Azure cloud infrastructure alongside
Synergy's recording rmanagement and integrated video analytics
capabilities, operators will be able to analyse live video survaillance
from hundreds of City-owned and third-party camera sources,
including other police servicaes and local transport operatars, to
deliver a new model for real time incident management.

Use of our cloud-based Synergy video surveillance platform
commenged during 2021. As well as supporting the City's broader
security ambitions, the timing of this deployment has helped to
reduce the impact of the pandemic by enabling the cperational
team to work from anywhere they have a trusted device,

including home.

Cost savings have also already been generated. By utilising Azure
native Biob starage, we have reducad the City's cost profile for
video surveillance storage by over 50%.

Additionally, City of Landon is one of our first public space
customers to benefit from our Synergy mobite application.

Once fully deployed, this will allow the City’s central control room
to connect to over 100 mokile users to enable rapid responses in
the field.

T/Commandear David Evans said: "Our aim is ta ensure the City is
the safest city area in the world. Synectics shares our vision for
the future of fully integrated public space security and surveillance,
and we are confident their teamn can provide a future-proof
platform to help us achieve the aims of ourselves and the City of
London Corparation.”
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Strategic review
Section 172

Engaging with
our stakeholders

The successful delivery of Synectics’ strategy is dependent on a deep understanding of our
stakeholders and effective mutual communication. Synectics’ commitment to these crucial
relationships as true long-term partnerships is fundamental to the way we achieve sustainable
growth and financial returns, and to the Synectics philosophy.

Syrectics has multiple stakeholders across its global aperations. The Board considers its principal stakeholders to be cur employees,
customers, partners, communities, and investors.

Ongoing engagement with all our stakehalders, alongside a wider business community, is important in any strategic decision rmaking,
with formal and informal feedback from stakeholders being shared at Board mestings and used to inform and influence decision making
further details of which can be found on page 38. The Board know that having regard to these relationships, as well as the wider impact
on the community and environment, enabies ther to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members (whilst taking
into account the matters set out in section 172(al-{f) of the Companies Act 2008).

In this section, we provide more detail on how we engage with each of these important groups.

Employees

Our employees are our strength and the foundation of our success; we are committed to their health, safety, and well-being. We believe
that ongoing engagement with thern, alongside a wider business community, is important in any strategic decision making.

o \We hold regular briefing sessions and use our global s Qur Employee Awards recognise outstanding achievements
communications platform; Colleague eXperience {CX) to share linked to our values,

strategy. performance updates and Company news. = All employees can participate in the Employee Share

« The annual Employee Engagement Survay gathers feedback to Acquisition Plan,
inform Company strategies and employee programmes.

Customers
We are committed to working in close partnership with our customers to understand their businesses and anticipate their needs.
« Our Customer Excellence programme solicits structurad =« Qur Customner Excellence programme includes regular
feedback from customers to inform our decisions about future meetings to discuss business needs and share technology
strategy and investment priorities. and solution developments,

e Regular communications are used to keep customers informed.

Partners
We engage with a wide range of technology partners and industry suppliers to create and deliver our tailored customer solutions.
* We maintain a regular dislogue with all technology partners, « Annual tachnology days take place with key strategic partners.

-ordin \ . .
to-ordinated through our technology partner manager » \We have a structured programme of action calls and quality

raviews with our supply chain partners.

Communities
The Synectics team plays a full role in local programmes and charities.
+ We support selected charities in the locations where we are based. » Ve make charity donations linked 10 business projects,

N for example, our annual Customer Excellence Survey.
« We encourage employee initiatives to support the causes that © rie ¢ ¥

matter to them.

Investors
The Board is committed to regular, timely and effective communications with investors and other financial stakeholders.
» \We run investor roadshows tc suppert results announcements.
o Curinvestor website provides easy access to relevant materials.

+ We maintain reguiar contact with investors cutside of the core
reperting cycle.

2 2 Synectics plc
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ESG

ur commitment
to sustainability

At Synectics, we care about our impact on the world, our contribution to our local communities,
and the way we conduct ourselves. We are fully committed to ensuring the responsible operation
of our business and safe, sound, and ethical conduct at all times at all of our locations.

Environment

We recognise our responsibility to contribute to a sustainable future and to minimise any negative impact that our operations could
cause to the environment. We are committad to environmental sustainability, both globally and in our local communities, and are actively
seeking ways to reduce our enviranmental irnpact.

o Environmental risk assessments are performed at all our sites  » We continue to increase the amount of waste that is recycled
glabally to identify what impact the site has on the across the Group, and energy consumption has reduced
environment, including waste generation and disposal, further compared to the previous year.

energy usage, and emissions to land, sea, and air. . . . ,
9y 9 * \We commit our suppliers to upholding our commitment to

All of our UK sites are certified to the Environmental environmental control throughout our supply chain.
Management System standard ISO 14001 and are subject to
regular extarnal and internal auditing.

Social

Through our pecple we deliver our strategy, vision, and purpose — and uphold our values. We seek always to be the very best
Synectics we can be. We are committed to fostering an inclusive and diverse culture which supports and reflects the cormnmunities
we operate in. We provide equal opportunities to all our employees irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual arigntation,
marital status, religious belief, disability or age.

» We aim to pravide a safe werking environment at all times; ¢ Cur global cornmunications platform connects all our colleagues
all cur UK sites are certified to the Health and Safety waorldwide and reinforces the sense of shared values and
Management System 1SO 45001. unified community among employees from many cultures.

« We have redoubled our focus on employee health and s Our recruitment, development, and review programmes safeguard
well-being, embracing major programmes such as Menial our commitment to diversity and equality throughoeut the Group.

k. . .
Health Awareness Wee s Each year, we contribute to a range of charitable and

community initiatives, both as a company and through
supporting the efforts of individual employess.

Governance

We are committed to conducting business in an ethical and responsible manner and to complying with all applicable laws and
requiations, We raquire all our employees and ail third parties acting en our behalf to behave honestly and to operate with integrity.

* We have a comprehensive suite of policies covering the « We require all our suppliers and partners to commit formally
conduct and ethics of all aspects of our business including to upholding our standards of business ethics.

s i -+ H ) . . .
anti-bribery. modern slavery, and safeguarding o All our UK sites are certified to the [nformation Security

+ Our induction process includes sessions on HR, health and Management System standard SO 27001 and are subject to
safety, bribery, modern stavery, whistleblowing, and data regular external and internal auditing.
protection to ensure all new employees understand our ways
of working and our expectations of them.
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Performance review
Qur divisions

Systems

Critical

Gaming Infrastructure

Ol & Gas

Transport Puklic Space

Synectics’ Systems division provides
specialist electronic surveillance systems,
based on its own proprietary technology, to
global end customers with large-scale highly
complex security reguirements, particularly
for gaming, transport, critical infrastructure,
pubiic space, and oil & gas applicaticns.

Revenua £20.7 million {2020: £23.6 millicn)
46.4% {2020. 40.8%
E0.1 million {2020: £(1.8) rmullion)

0.3% (2020: {(7.59)%)

Gross margin
Cperating profititioss)’
Operating margin

1 After research snd development expenditure, but before non-underlying
costs (sea note B) and Group central costs

The Systems division completed its first full year as a single, global
business with bases in the UK, Europe, North America and Asia.
The division is now structured to provide more efficient and more
scalable operations, rather than the historical sector-based,
mufti-business structure,

After four years of solid organic revenue and underlying profits
growth to 30 Novernber 2019, 2s set out above, the Systems
division was substantially affacted by the pandemic during FY
2020, This remained the case in FY 2021, particularly in its largest
sector, global casinos and gaming resarts, where its custorners’
businesses remained effsctively shut down for most of the vear,
The picture began to improve in North America during the
Company's fourth financial quarter, as domestic US and Canadian
travel started to pick up again, though market secovery was further
postponed in Asia.

Outside gaming. the high security and public space sectors held
up relatively well, while the oil & gas secter remained subdued
with some signs of improvement as the year ended.

Gross margins moved ahead quite considerably, reflecting savings
in diregt costs as well as an increase of software in the revenue
mix, as planned. The progressive increass of scitware as a
proportion of the division's revenue means that gross margins
should rernain strong going forward.

24
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Europe, Middle East and Africa (Revenue £12.0 million
(2020: £13.6 million}}

Revenuss in EMEA continued at approximately the same level as
in the second half of FY20.

Substantial progress was achieved on large strategic projects
incorporating the new generation of Synectics’ Synergy software
piatfarm, including the launch of Cloud deployment. As previously
announced, major orders were received from the City of Londan
Corporation and City of London Pelice for their joint Safe City
programme, as well as from West Midiands Police consalidating
their unified regional security control capability.

Development and deployment of the Company's major Deutsche
Bahn project for the Berlin $-Bahn pregressed well, and will
cantinue throughout 2022, ta include a number of enharicements
and additional features identified during the course of the project.
The eight-year service and support phase of this contract
commenced at the end of January 2022.

These projects constitute a powerful reference partfolio for further
growth of Synectics' position at the forefront of operational control
systems for Safe City programmes.

QOther highlights include:
# transport systems for Irish rail and bus;

e newy systems and expansions of existing solutions for a number
of London boroughs and loca! autharities across the UK;

-

further work for Irish prisons;

various upgrade and supply orders for existing oll & gas
customaers in the UK and Middle East; and

upgrades 1o the fatest version of Synergy and new software
suppert contracts for a number of customers across markets, as
they recognise the value of keaping their systems updated and
taking advantage of the new features that are continuousty
being added to the software platform, as describad below.
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g s 5 =
“ g 9

£

« E

fre] [rd

8 8

Ll

FY19  FYZ20 FY21 FY18  FY20 FY21

North America (Revenue £4.0 million (2020: £2.4 million})

After a dearth of new orders in 2020, the tentative emerging
recovery of the Morth American casino and gaming markets in Q4
FY21 resutted in increased revenue in FYZ1, though still to a
relatively low level compared to historical resuits.

A number of substantial projects for new customers in the US and
Canada were secured fate in the second half, including that
recently announced for Fallsview Niagara, the largest gamirg
resort in Canada, as weli as increased repeat orders from existing
gaming customers.

In addition, notable in the period, as previously announced, was a
large order received from a new qil & gas customer in Maxico,
PEMEX (Petrdlecs Mexicanos), as well as smaller orders from
several other new oil & gas customers in the region.

Plans for the expansion of sales to North America of Synectics’
latest Synergy technology for the wider transport, infrastructure
and safe city markets were, for obvious reasens, put on hold for
2021, but will be rg-evaiuated in the current financial year,

Asia Pacific (Revenug £4.7 million {2020: £7.7 million})

Synectics’ performance in the Asia Pacific region in 2021 remained
heavily impacted by the closure of most of the gaming market
during the vear and low levels of activity in other sectors.

In gaming, despite the markst closure, the Company was pleased
to receive several new security upgrade and spares orders from
two important existing customers.

A number of new oil & gas customers in the region placed orders
with Synectics, particularly for projects in and offshore Australia,
and the Company was able to welcome a new government
defence customer.

Technology development

During the 2021 financial year, Synectics spent a total of
£3.4 million on technology developmeant {2020: £4.0 million).
(O this total, £0.6 million was capitalised (2020: £0.8 million),
and the remainder expensed to the Income Statement.

£0.9 million {2020; £0.4 million} of previously capitalised
development costs were amortised in the year.

Undedying operating Underlying
(loss)/profit’ operating margin'
£ %
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Continued investment in the Company's intellectual property and
technology base remains an important priority for the Group and
development expenditure in 2022 15 expected to return to
approximately 2020 levels.

During the year, the Company made significant progress in
developing the core, underlying capabilities of its fourth-generation
Synergy platform to cater for the most demanding security
applications — allowing hundreds of simultanecus aperators to
handle hundreds of thousands of events and vidao channels
without compromising systerm performance.

Numerous extensions and improvements to the product suite included:

+ Modularised Synergy software suite, with improved scalability
and reliability and allowing customers to enhance core platform
features and functions through a series of add-on modules
and capabilities;

enhanced cloud capability, offering full end-to-end deployment
of Synergy and our recording platforms in the cloud, using
efficient, highly redundant cloud-native storage whilst retaining
the performance expected of traditional solutions;

s enhanced cyber security features including an innavative, built in
cyber-checking tool which nighlights potential weaknesses in
system configurations and prompts recommended actions;

s a hew, dynamic mapping engine supporting a range of map
formats, now displaying both clustered and moving objects;

a variety of new integrations to support leading third-party
praducts and systems, including locaticn tracking services;

s ultra-dense storage platfarms supporting very large systems
and increased 4K camera resolution; and

o extended COEX camaera range with new entry-level models in
response to market demand.

Synactics plc l 2
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Performance review
Qur divisions continued

Security

Critical

Infrastructure Transport

Pubiic Space

Synectics' Security division is a leading UK
provider in the design, integration, monitoring,
and management of large-scale electronic
security systems for critical and regulated
enviranments. [ts main markets are in critical
infrastructure, transport, and public space.

Its capabilities include UK government
security-cleared personnel and facilities,
nationwide project delivery and service
support, and an in-house 24-hour monitoring
centre and helpdesk. Synectics Security
supplies proprietary products and technology
from Synectics’ Systems division as well as
outside partners, and also provides highly-
regarded security monitoring and facilities
management services.

Ravenue

Gross margin
Operating profit/loss)!
Operating margin

£25.0 miilion {2020: £21.8 million}
24.1% (2020: 24.6%}

£0.9 million {2020: £(0.4 milion)
3.7% (2020: {1.81%)}

1 Before non-undertying costs {see note 6} and Group central casts.
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The major consalidation of the operations of Synectics’ Security
division was completed during FY20. This rearganisation has borme
fruit with the delivery of 15% revenue growth on a comparable basis,
and a turnaround of operating results from a loss of £{0.4) millien to
an an-budgst profit of £0.2 million in FY21, with clear ongoing
mementum. Although there is still more o be done in the current
year and beyond to raise operating margins to our target levels of
6-8%, this very satisfactory outcame is a tribute to the divisionat
management’s handling of a cormnplex challenge.

During last year, Synectics Security participated with the Company's
Systems divisicn as its integration partner for delivery of the large
and imnportant new Synergy projects referred to above for the City
of London and West Midlands Police, as well as for the Irish rail and
bus market.

Qther highlights during the vear included:

e alarge order for protecting diplomatic premises in London;
« recovery in orders from the UK on-vehicle market;

* upgrade to the security system of a major sporting venue;

» new and expanded systems for 2 number of London boroughs
and local authorities across the UK;

« upgrades for a defence customer; and

» upgrades for a major utility generation customer.
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Synectics Security, 2s now constituted, has excellent
partnerships across the security solutions portfalio. These enable
the team to develop Synectics Security beyond its traditional
heartlands in public space and transport into new opportunities
that utilise it experience in complex, critical and highly regulated
environments. As noted in last year’s annual report, the Company
increasingly sees opgortunities in more inter-connected urban
infrastructures where there is a growing alignment between
transportation and large-scale security and surveillance
operations. Approéching these converged opportunities with the
right partners will help the Cornpany to continue to reshape the
business over the next few years.

Underlying operating Underying
{loss)/profit! operating margin®
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In addition to Synectics Security, the Security division also
includes our managed services business, S$S. During the vear,
this business secured a contract renewal with its largest retait
customer for a further two years plus one-year option, as well as
winning one new multi-site customner. Despite the negative
impact of the pandemic on a number of its customers, the
business produced a grofitable trading result cempared to a loss
in the preceding year.
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Performance review

Key performance indicators

Revenue
£
u
o
) £
I
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FY18 FY20 FY21
Definftion

Income earned from the delivery
of goods and services.

Relevance

Revenue is a key indicator of the
parformance, growth and markst
share of the business.

Performance

Revenug has been significanty
impacted by the economic
environmant caused by the
global pandemic.

Free cash flow
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FY19 FY20 FY21
Definition

Cash flow from cperations less
capital expenditure, but before
any payments in respect of
non-underlying iterms.

Relevance

To understand the extent to which
the business has generated cash
from its trading activities, after
replacing the capital assets integral
in generating that cash flow, in
order to decide whether to invest
further in the business or raturn
cash to sharehelders.

Performance

The year has seen a cash outflow
largely due ta the payments of
restructuring costs which were
provided for in the prior year,
Positive cash generation returned
in the second half of the year.

Underlying {loss)/profit
before tax c
<
2
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£ E
o =
i
FY13  FY20 FY21
Definition

{LossWprofit before tax and
non-underlying items'.

Relevance

{Loss)profit before tax and
non-underlying items helps us
understand our performance
excluding those iterms considered
nan-underlying to assess the
baselina nature of profit or loss.

Parformance

While impacted by the decrease
in revenue, underlying llossiprofit
before tax has been protected to
sarme extant by the cost savings
implementad by managemant
and by government support.

Employee engagement
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FY18 FY20 FYZ21
Definition

A score, based on our Employses’
responses 10 questions tha relevant
themes of our annual independent
Employee survey.

Relevance

People are at the heart of our
business, and this is a measure
of how our people fosl about
their business.

Performance

Employee engagemant has
shawn a cansistency in the year.
In difficult circumstances, we have
kept people connected.

Undenrying diluted
earnings per share

2.8)p

13.9p
(t7.2p

FY19 FY20 FY21

Definition

Ratio of underlying prafit after tax
to weightad number of ardinary
shares in issue and dilutive potential
ordinary shares erising fram

share options.

Relevance

To enable us ta track, assess and
compare the return for investors
and to provite them with a measure
of return 1o compare with ather
investment opportunities, using a
measure that is more reprasentative
of our baseline performance.

Performance

Underlying diluted earnings per
share are reflective of the
underlying profit per‘ormance

Net Promoter Score™

o™ o™
™ o«
+ +

o™~

o™

+

FY19 FY20 FY21
Definition

An index measuring the willingness
of our customaers to recommend
our predugts & services to others,
sourced from our annual Customer
Excsllance survey.

Relevance

Everything we do is drivan by a deep
understanding of our customers’
needs, the environments they
wark in, and the challenges they
must solve.

Performance

Qur net promater score has
remainad consistent year on year,
a re“iection of our continued
efforts to meet our customers’
evolving needs,

Underlying returmn

on capital employed
$ % s
FY19 FY20 FY21
Definition

Ratio of underlying operating profit
as % of average cpearating capital
employed {being net assets
excluding the pension asset,

cash, tax and loan balancesh.

Relevance

To enable us to track, assess and
compare tha return for investars
and to provide them with a measure
of return to compare with other
investment opportunities, using a
measure that is more representative
of our baseline performance.

Performance

This measure has been impacted
by the trading performancs aiong
with the decrease in working
capital during the year,

R&.D spend
£
0%. < £
2 & 3
Sl
FY19 FY20 FY21
Definition

Expenditure on R&D before any
capitalisation or amortisation.

Relevance

It is kay 1o the business tc cantinue
ta invest in our products to maintain
our positicn as a technical leader in
our industry in order 1o generate
sustainable, profitable growth.

Performance

Investment in R&D has been
maintained despite the difficult year.

1 Non-uynderly'ng items comprise restructuring ¢osts and amortisation of acguired intangibles. See note 6 to the financial siatements.

Synectics plc
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Group financial results

'/

The structural improvements made during 2020
are delivering the planned savings. These have

helped the business deliver a significantly

improved financial performance with a return

to profitable trading in the second half.”

David Bedford
Finance Director

Improved financial performance from
margin growth and cost savings

Group results for the year

The Group's financial performance in 20271 was once again
ovarshadowed by the impact that the global pandemic has had
on some of the key markets in which our customers operate.
In particular, the delayed recovery of international leisure travel
has constrained activity in the Systems Division's main sector
of Glokal Gaming.

Despite revenues remaining broadly flat compared to the prior
year, as a result of the significant structural changes made
during 2020, the cost savings generated have contributed to

a significantly improved finangial performance for 2021,

The priority remains to build the strongest possible platform for
generating substantial returns as markets recover and it was
pleasing to see a return to profitable trading during the second
half of the year.

The Group continued to maintain strong discipline over both
spending and working capital and this enabled the business
to continue investing while maintaining positive cash balances
throughout the year.

The Group ended ths year with a cash balance of £4.6 million
(2020: £6.9 million), an outflow of £2.2 million. Adjusting for the
non-underlying cash items, capital expenditure, tax and financing
Free Cash outflow in the period was £(0.3) miflion {2020: £6.3 million
inflow). The second half of the year saw the business return to
positive cash generation and the Group continues to remain free
of bank debt.

There were no non-underlying costs in the current year.
Nor-underlying costs in the prior year of £2.2 million were
incurred in relation several key restructuring projects which have
contributed to the Group generating significant cost efficiencies
in the year and returning to a profitable trading in the second half.

Income Statement

COverall Group revenue for the year to 30 November 2021
amounted to £43.6 million compared with £44.6 million in the
previous year, a decrease of £1.0 million {2.4%).

Revenue split between our twe business segments was as follows:

2021 2020 Inc/{dec)
Revenue £000 £00C £00G Incfldes)
Systems 20,681 23,645 (2,984) {12.6)%
Security 24,965 21,802 3,183 14.5%
Intra-Group sales [2,031) (799) 1,232) 154.2%
Total revenue 43,595 44,648 11.053) (2.4}%

Revenue in the Systems division of £20.7m was £2.9 million
(12.6%) below 2020 reflecting a full year's impact of the pandemic
oh gaming revenues in Asia Pacific and North America.

Revenues in the Security division increased by £3.2 million
{14.5%) to £25.0 million as a result of solid strategic progress as
well as the early vaccine led recovery boosting the UK economy.

Recurring revenue increased year on year to £12.5 million
(2020: £10.1 million), representing approximately 23% of sales
{2020: 23%). In the Systems division progress continued to be
made in increasing the share of more profitable software-based
sales combined with providing customers with mubli-year
support agreements.

The proportion of sales arising outside the UK {measured by the
geographical locatian of the contract) decreased during the year
to 38%, compared with 44% in the previous yaar.

Synectics plc 2
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Performance review
Group financial results continued

Income Statement continued

Sales by geographical 2021 2020 Inc/(dec)
logation of contract €060 £000 £000
UK 26,935 62% 25203 56% 1,732
Rest of Europe 5,382 12% 5345 12% 37
UK and Fusope - total 32,317 74% 30,548 68% 1,769
North Arnerica 3,276 12% 3,166 7% 2,110
Asia Pacific 5,278 12% 8,334 19% (3,056)
Middle East and Africa 724 2% 2,600 6% (1.876)
Total revenue 43,595 100% 44,648 100% (1,053}

Consolidated gross margin for 2021 increased by 1.8% points
overall 10 35.6%. This was pradominantly due to significantly
impraved margins in the Systems division as a result of the strong
cost contral and a higher level of software content in the projects
undertaken during the year.

The full segmental anaiysis is as follows:

Gross margin % 2021 2020 Inc/idec}
Systemns 48.4% 40.8% 56%
Sacurity 24.1% 24.6% 0.5)%
Totat Group 35.8% 33.6% 2.2%

Underlying operating expenses in the year decreased by 17%
to £16.5 million.

2021 2020 Incfdac)
Operating expansas £0600 £000 £000 Ing/ldes)
Underlying operating
expenses 16,464 19,857 {3.3931 17.10%
Non-undarlying items:
Casts in relation to
legal claim - (42} 42
Restructuring costs - 2,200 {2,200}
Amaortisétion of
acquired intangibles - 23 {23}
Non-underlying
aperating éxpanses - 2,181 {2,181
Tatal operating expenses 16,464 22,038 (8,574 {25.3)%

There were no non-underlying operating expenses in the period
(2020:; £2.2 miflion). In the prior period nen-underlying expenses
related to restructuring costs which were provided for in the
period. The restructuring projects have contributed towards
significant cost efficiencies in the current period and allowed the
Greup to return to a profitable position in the second half of the
year despite revenue ramaining flat.

The underlying loss before tax was £0.6 million in 2021 compared
with an undarlying loss of £4.1 million in 2020. The Group recorded
a loss before tax of £0.6 million (2020: loss £6.3 millian}.

Synectics plc
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Whilst all areas of the business were fundamentally impacted by the
global pandernic, the Security division continued to prove relatively
resilient with an underlying operating profit of £0.9 million compared
1o an underlying loss of £0.4 million in the previous vear. The
Systems division recordad an underlying profit of £6.1 million {2020:
underbying loss £1.8 million). Central costs were £1.6 million, a saving
of £6.3 million on the previous year primarily due to the insourcing of
the Groups’ 1T function.

20921 2020 Diff
Underlying operating (loss}/profit £000 £000 EQ0C
Systems 538 (1,774) 1,832
Security 924 (388) 1.312
Cenitral costs 1,456} 11,805 349
Underlying operating ilass)/prafit (474} (3.967) 3,483
Net finance cests {including IFRS 16) (121} (139) 18
Undarlying (loss)/profit before tax {595) {4,108} 3,611

A recenciliation of operating profit/lloss) by division to profit before
tax is as follows:

2021 2020 piff
Uparating profit/{loss) £000 £000 €0G0
Systems 58 2,921 3,038
Security 924 (518) 1,840
Central costs {1,456) {2,251} 795
Operating {less)/profit {a14) {6,148} {5,674)
Net finance costs 121) (139) 18
[Loss)/profit befare tax {585} (6.287) 5,692

In 2021 £3.4 million was spent on research & development.

Of which, £0.6 million was capitalised with £2.8 million ¢charged
to the Income Statement. This compares with expenditure of
£4.0 million in 202¢, of which £0.8 million was capialised.

The Group underlying operating margin was a loss of (1.1}%
compared with a loss of (8.9)% in 2020.

Underlying operating margin 2021 2020 Inc/lgec)
Systems 0.3% {7.581% 7.8%
Security 3.7% 1.81% 5.5%
Total Group {1.11% {8.9)% 7.8%

The Group operating margin was a loss of (1,11% (2020 loss (13.81%)
split by division as follows:

Operating margins 2021 2020 Inc/idec)
Systems 0.3% 12.61% 12.9%
Security 37% 4.2)% 7.9%
Total Group % 13.8% 12.7%

The tax credit for 2021 was £0.1 million compared with a credit of
£1.6 million in 2020.

Historic tax losses of £6 4 million (30 Novernber 2020: £6.2 million}
exist and may be capable of offset against future taxable profits

of certain Group companies, but have not yet been recognised in the
financial statements due to uncertainty of recoverabilizy at this point.




Diluted earnings per shate for 2021 were (2.8)p compared with
{27.7Yp in the year ended 30 November 2020. The Directors believe
that a better measure of performance is the underlying dituted
earnings per share, due to it being calcutated on the underlying
profit before tax as defined above. Underlying diluted earnings per
share were (2.8)p compared with {17.2)p in 2020,

2021 2020 Incfidec)
Earnings par share P p p
Diluted earnings per share (2.8} {272.7) 24,9
Underying diluted earmings per share (2.8) (17.2} 14.4

Return on capital employed (based on total profit after tax) for 2021
was {1.2}% compared with (20.2)% in the year ended

30 November 2020. However, the Directors believe that a better
measure of performance is the return based on underlying operating
profit. Return on capital employed {based on underlying operating
profit) was (1.2)% compared with (13.0}% in 2020.

Return on capital employed 2021 2020 tncildec)
Based on total profit from operations (1.2)% (20.2)% 19.0%
Based on underlying eperating profit (1.2)% 13.6)% 11.8%

2021 2020
Return on capital emplayad £600 £000
Loss before intarest and tax {474} 6,148}
Capital employed 28,160 40,127

2021 2020
Capital employad £000 £000
Total assets 54,138 69,815

Current liabilities {15,978} {19,688}

Capital employad 38,160 40,127

Statement of Financial Position

The net assets of the Group amounted to £35.3 million at
30 November 2021 {2020: £37.0 million) and can be summarised
as follows:

29021 2020

£000 £000
Property, plant and eguipment {excluding right
of use assets) 2,419 2,628
Right of use assets 2.562 2,615
Intangible assets 21,728 22,158
Retirement benefit assst - 1,325
Non-current assets {excluding deforred tax assets) 26,708 28,723
Cash balances 4,641 6,864
Loans and bosrowings - -
Met cash 4,641 6,864
Other net current assats 6,338 4,725
Net tax assets (including deferrad tax assets) 1,963 1,705
Leass liabilities (2,839) (2,790}
Provistons (1,408} (2,136)
Net assets 35,344 37,031

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) at
30 Novermber 2021 were £26.7 million compared with
£28.7 millien at 30 November 2020.

Exchange rate movements in the year decreased the retranslated
value of goodwill an averseas acquisitions by £0.2 million.

Capital additions were £0.9 million, compared to £1.2 million in
2020. £0.3 million (2020: £0.3 million} was spent on proparty,
plant and equipment, with minimal investment in external
software. During 2021 £0.8 million {2020: £0.8 million} was
capitalised in respect of technclogy development projects. The
Group continues to invest significant amounts in the devefopment
and enhancement of its product portfolio. However, accounting
rules for capitalisation of development spend contain specific
criteria around what shoutd be capitalised for angoing work on
products which have been launched in the market.

Total capital expenditure including right of use assets of
£1.8 million (2020: £1.6 million) compares with depreciation and
amortisation charges of £2.1 million in the year {2020: £2.2 million).

The actuarial surplus on the Group's closed defined benefit pension
scheme was Enil at 30 November 2021 compared to £1.3 million
at 30 Novembier 202G. During the year, a "buy-in” of the pension
scheme was agreed in principle and accordingly the carrying value
was revalued to nit and will be transferrad off when the "buy-out”
occurs. Full details can be found in note 29 to the financial statements.

Working capital levels increased £1.€ million compared with the
prige year.

2021 2020

£000 £000
Stack 3,936 4,661
Trade Debtors 10,057 7,669
Contract Assets 5,774 8,185
Other Debtors (exc! tax} 1,099 1,364
Other creditors {excl tax, provisions and lease liability) (14,528) (17,134}
Total 6,338 4,725

Net tax assets at 30 November 2021 amounted to £1.9 million
(2020: £1.7 million} and comprised a current tax asset of £nil (2020:
£0.5 million}, a current tax liability of £nil (2020 £0.1 million},
defarred tax assets of £2.5 million (2020: £1.9 million} and
defarred tax hiabilities of £0.5 million (2020; £0.6 million),

Provisions at 30 Novemnber 2021 amounted to £1.4 million (2020:
£2.2 millign). This amount includes £1 million (202G: £0.6 million}
of warranty provisions and £0.1 million provision for restructuring
costs (2020; £1.3 million). The remaining balance relates to
property dilapidation provisions.
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Performance review
Group financial results continued

Cash

The Group ended the ygar with net cash of £4.6 million at

30 Novemnber 2027 {2020: £6.9 million). The outflow was
primarily caused by working capital returning towards normal
levels following the significant unwinding of working capital in
2020 together with the payment of restructuring costs which
were provided for in the prior pericd.

The net cash outflow of £2.2 million in the year is summarised
in the tabla balowy,

2021 2020

£000 £000
Underiying operating loss 474} {3,967)
Depraciation and amortisation charges and
profit/lloss) on disposal of non-current assets 2,209 2,326
Share-based payment charge 12 60
QOther non-cash movements 242 807
Dacrease/{increasel in working capital {1,438) 8,285
Net foreign exchange losses [ 80
Cash from operations before non-underlying
payments 657 7.5%1
Restructuring costs {1,321) {1,652}
Cash generated by/{used in} operations (764) 5,899
Interast paid net) (12} {33}
Taxation received/ipaid) 157 (148)
Capital expenditure (842) {1,218}
Lease payments (1,008} 07
Effact of exchange rate changes on cash 244 99
Neat cash flow {2,223} 3,284

free cash flow

The Group measures free cash flow in considering the underlying
cash generatad from its pperations. A reconciliation of reported
cash generated from operations to free cash flow is as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Free cash flow
Reported cash ganerated from operations {764) 5,899
Capital expenditure (842} 11,218)
Payments in réspect of non-underlying cests 1321 1,862
Free cash flow (285) 6,333

Going concern

The financial statements have besn prepared on a going concern
basis. The Directors have reviewed the Group's funding position
and financial forecasts for the foreseeabie future. This year, in light
of the uncertainty arising frem the global pandemic, this review
has included additional scenario modelling and stress testing of
budgets. See note 1 to the financial statements for further detai!
around the testing performed.
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Use of non-GAAP financial performance measures

Certain disclosures and analyses sat out in this Annual Report and
Accounts include measures which are not defined by generally
accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’} such as IFRS. We believe
this information, along with comparable GAAP measurements, is
useful to investors. Management uses these financial measures,
along with the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures,
in evaluating our operating performance. Non-GAAP measures
shaould not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for,
financial information presented in compliance with GAAP. The
primary non-GAAP financial measure we use is underlying profit.

In the following table we provide a reconciliation of this and other
non-GAAP measures, as defined in the Performance Review on
pages 24 to 28, to relevant GAAP measures:

Underlying profit measures

2621 20240
£000 jatalals]
Underlying operating loss
Reported operating loss {474) (6,148)
Provision for costs of a legal claim - 42}
Costs associated with the restructunng
of tha Systems division - 1,248
Costs associated with the restructuring
of tha Security division - 523
Costs associated with restructuring
Central oparatiors - 273
Costs associated with buy-out of
the definad benefit pension scherme - 150
Arnortisation of acquired intangible assets - 23
Underlying cperating loss [474) (3.967)
Underlying loss befare tax
Reportad loss before tax (595) 6,287
Provision for costs of a legal claim - (42)
Costs associated with the restrugturing
of the Systems division - 1,248
Costs associated with the restructuring
of tha Security division - 528
Costs associated with restructuring
Central operations - 273
Costs assoclated with buy-out of the defined
bensfit pension scheme - 180
Amortisation of agquired intangible assets - 23
Underlying loss before tax {595} (4,108)




Areconciliation of reported profits to non-underlying profits for
each division is as follows:

GAAP reconciliation

Gross profit Dparating profit
2021 2020 2021 2020
Systems £000 EQOC £000 £000
Underlying profit/
{loss)
Reported profitf
{loss} 9,587 8,643 58 (2,981
Restructuring costs - - - 1,249
Release of provision
for legal claim - - - 42)
Underlying profit/
{loss) 9,587 9,643 58 (1,774}
Gross profit Ogperating profit
2021 2020 2011 2020
Sacurity £000 £000 £000 £000
Underiying profit/
{loss)
Reported profitfiloss) 6,014 5,368 924 {916)
Restructuring costs - - - 528
Underlying profit/
lass) 8,014 5,367 924 (388)

Underlying diluted EPS

The Group monitors underlying difuted EPS. In calculating earnings
for underlying diluted EPS, net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
post-tax impact of nen-underlying items. Note 14 to the financizl
statements includes a reconciliation of earnings used for
underlying EPS.

Underlying return on capital employed

Underlying return on capital employed is based on underlying
operating profit (see reconciliation of underlying operating profit
in the previous table).

Net cash

Net cash is considerad to be a non-GAAP measure as it is not
defined in IFRS. The most directly comparable IFRS measure is
the aggregate of loans and other borrowings {current and non-current)
and cash and cash equivalents, This is the calculation used by the
Group to measure net cash.

David Bedford
Finance Director

22 February 2022
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Performance review
Risks and risk management

Understanding and
managing key risks
to the Group

We seek 10 understand and manage the

various risks that arise from our operations.

The Group is subject to a variety of risks
which may have an adverse impact on the
business, results of operations, cash flow,
turnover, profitability, assets, liquidity and
capital reserves.

The principal risks facing the Group, and the strategies put in
place ta mitigate them, are described here.

The Board, advised by the Audit Committes tthe 'Committee’,

has overatl responsibility for the Group's system of internal
control and far reviewing its effectiveness. The Committee
advisas the Board on matters of risk management and has its
own rgport, which can be read on pages 43 to 45,
Respensibility for implementing sound and effective systems
of internal control has been delegated by the Board to senior
management. Tha purpose of the system of internal control is
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business ocbjectives and to only provide reasonable, but not
absalute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has created an organisational structure with clear
operating procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated
authority. There are clear procedures for capital investment
appraisal and approval, contract risk eppraisal and financial
reporting within a comprehensive financial planning and
accounting framewaork. The Board believes the internal control
enviranment is adequate and appropriate givan the size and
complexity of the Group.

A robust risk reporting framewark has been adopted by the
Board. As part of this framework, the divisional management
teams submit a repart to monthly business review meetings
setting out their top five business risks, mitigation plans and
assaciated timescales. The Executive Directars review and
challenge this risk analysis with the divisicnal management
teamns at each business review rneeting. The Executive
Directors then review the individual divisional submissions,
consider the broader strategic threats facing the Group and
present their assassment of the most significant risks facing
the Group to the Committes and the Board twice a year

for detailed review and discussion.

In order 1o give additional assurance on controls, and to
supplement the work undertaken by the external auditor,
the Group uses the experience of its central accounting
team to undertake a prograrmme of internal audit spproved
by the Committee.

Synectics plc
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People skills and dependency

Exposure to specific market sectors

Product failure

Project delivery and contractual liability

Technology development

Bad debt and nan-recovery of costs

Cybersecurity

Exchange rates/international trade

Strategic project delivery

Macro-economic events

Supply-chain




Risk
Factors that may impact the business

Mitigation
What we are doing to minimise the risk

Due to the technical specialism requived by the Group, we are
dependaent on our employees with key managerial, engineering and
technical skills,

One of the Group's key strangths 18 its expertise in delivering tailorad
solutians to customers in key sectors with critical security needs. The
success of this strategy has resulted in revenuas which are concentratad
in a rofatively small number of market segments. This results m a level of
nsk related to external market-specific impacts — for example how Covid-19
has closed casinos worldwide which is affecting new prajects within
gaming. Simitarly, external factors, including governmental policies, may
Impact the timing and scale of investment within cur other key markets .

W the Group's product offenng fais to meet agreed standards there is a
risk that the Group will be exposed 1o replacament or rewaork costs as a
result of this failure, and the asscciated reputational impact on its ability
10 securg new business.

Where the Group’s service offering fails 1o meet agreed standards
ar timescales therz is a rigk that the Group will be exposed to cost
overruns and claims for contractual liabilities as a result of this fatluse.

As the industry becomes increasingly technical and transitions to digital
technology, there is a risk that praducts become obsolete or irrelevarit.

The Group is expesed to the risk of non-payment for work parformad.
This may be due to the inability of tha customer to pay as a result of
financial difficulty, or unwillingness to pay due to dissatisfaction with
the work performed or dispute over the obligation to pay, particularly
where extension of time and contract variations are claimed,

Unauthorised access to the Group's systems or to our customers’ systems
in relation to software supplied by the Group could result in material losses.
In addition t¢ the risk of financial theft or fraud, losses could result from
an inability to run key internal processes affecting the ability of the business
10 operate. Security breaches could rasult in the loss of intallectual property
of cther confidential nformation which may also result in fines from requlatory
bodies. Actual breaches or deficiencias within our cybersecunty procaduras
could impact the Group's external certifications which could affect our
ability to do business within certain regulated envitonmenits.

The Group operates internaticnally giving rise to exposure from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group conducts a significant amourt
of rade with businesses located in European and international countries.

The failure to deliver key change projects in line with planned costs,
bensfits and timings could impact the future financial performance
of the Group.

The Greup is exposed to the risks which may be braught about by
significant macro-economic evants that either prevent our cusiomers
from cperating and thersfore impacts on revenue or that pravent the
Group from providing adequate service lgvels to aur customers.

The Group sources key technology components from a broad
international supplier base. In many cases specialist components are
tailored to the Group's requirements and it can invalva significant time
and effort to establish a new supplier. There is a risk that in the event of
a supplier faiing or not being able to deliver the required quantities or to
agreed Jead times, that the Group’s ability to service its customers will
be adversely impacted. The current epidemic and global chip shortage
is affecting some of our suppliers increasing this risk further,

Strategic report approval

The Strategic report, which comprises the Chairman’s statement on
pages 6 1o 8, the Strategic review on pages 6 10 23, the Performance
review on pages 24 to 33 and the above Risks and risk management

section on pages 34 and 35, was approved by the Board.

We aim 1o offer competitive remungration packages and incentive arrangamenits,
together with an agile environment which encourages and rewards excallent
performance. We assess employee engagement via an annual survey and ragular
“pulse” checks with feedback and recommended actions agreed at Board level
and built inte business units’ plans In addition, the Group actively reviews its
successicn planning chjectives and skills matrix.

The Group's reorganisation of tha Systems division under a unified global leadership
is designed to support a broadening of the custamer base which should result,
aver fime, in a more balanced mix of sector revenues in each ragion. The merger
of Quadrant Security Group and Synectics Mobile Systems to forrm Synectics
Security has also esnabled new opportunities to be sought in both existing and new
sectors which should alse, over time, reduce the level of sector-related risk.

Product quality is closely monitored and raviowed across the Group with
comprehensive praduct testing and customer support in place. The Group
maintains rigorous quality standards In all its cperatiens and expects the same
standards of its supplier base. Where possible product lisbility is mitigatad
through contractual arrangements within the supply chain.

Project and service delivery are closely monitored and reviewed across the
Group on a regular and frequent basis. We mamtain rigorous quality standards
in all our operat’ons, undertaking comprehensive risk assessments and carefully
assessing the terms on which we agree to enter into contractual refationships
at the appropriate level of rasponsibility.

We seek to counter this risk through our investment in research & development
resources and a continued focus on customer-led development to ensure that
the most appropriate product development paths are followed, The Board regularly
reviews the divisions’ product development roadmaps to gain assurance that
we wil continue to e able to meet the avolving needs of our customers.

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit using information
supplied by independent rating agencies where available. The Group also uses
other publicly available information and its own trading records to rate major
customers. Whare possible, credit risk is mitigatad through deposit and milestone
payment requirements which at least cover the cost of work performed. in addition,
financial instruments such as letters of credit are utilised where appropriate.
Bobust reporting of outstanding positions, customer payment issues and projects
experiencing delays is in place for the maonthly business review meatings with
the Executive Directors and, exceptionally, the Beard.

The Group cperatas strict cybersacurity practices to secure information, trade
sacrets, source code and our preduct development processes. This includes
training, panetration testing, external accraditations such as 1ISO 27001 and
cybersecurity monitenng. We employ nurmerous industry-leading practices to
ensurg our praducts are sacure from cyberattacks including data encryption

of data at rest and in transit, and the use of digital secure certificates, We have
engaged with a cyber consultancy firm to undertake a full independent audit
and to provide advice on further improving the cybarsecurity of our products.

The Group manages exchange risk on an ongoing basis by seeking to avoid significant
imbalances between cests and revenuas in each currency and to the extent that
this is not pessible, hedging future cash flows using foerward exchange contracts.

Proposals inveiving significant investment cor organisational changes are rigoroJsly
revigwed by the Executive Directors and, where necessary, by the Board. Tha Group
operates robust systems and proceduras to ensure the moenitoring and successfut
delivery of key projects.

This risk has been seen during the year with the global coronavirus pandemic. Plans
for business continuity, working practices, staff deployment and weltare across
sites, working from home and hygiene pracautions have been implemented. They
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The financial impact upon the businessis also
monitored closely and frequently,

Vigorous checks are performed on ail new suppliers and alternative sources of key
components are developed where possible. Regular communication is heid with our
suppliers to maintain strong relationships werking together to resolve any potential
issues. Supplier performance tor delivery and qualty is monitored regularly. Robust
stock management s in place, including detailed reviews of future product demands
that are used to assess stock levels and provide 12 month rolling forecasts to key
supgliers. To minimige lead times and reduce risk where possible suppliers are
obliged ta hold buffer stocks of key components and safety stocks are alsc held by
the Group where required and the levels frequantly reviewsd.

By order of the

Claire Stewart
Company Secretary

2 February 2022
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Governance
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors

The Board comprises, in addition to the Chairman, three Independent Nen-Executive Directors and twe Executive Directors,
Membership of each of the Aucit Committee and Remuneration Committee is made up solely of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Introduction from the Chairman

The Company follows the
Quoted Companies Alliance
Corporate Governance Code
(the ‘QCA Code'}.

The QCA Code contains ten basic principles.
Through a set of disclosures on their website and
in their annual report, companies are required to
provide an explanation of how they consider they
are meeting those principles. Cnce again, | can
report that the Company continues to maintain
comphiance with all ten principles and is
consistantly reviewing areas for improvement in
its governance practice.

This statement, together with the Committee
reports that follow, outlines the Company’s
approach to corporate governance and details how
the Company complies fully with the ten principles
of the QCA Code. Further detail relating to specific
principles can ba found in other sections of the
Annual Report and together with this statement
they explain how our governance framawork
works and how the Board and its Committees
function i¢ achieve compliance with the

QCA Code.

David Coghlan
Chairman

22 February 2022
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David Coghlan
Chairman

has degrees in Law and in Finance from the University of New
South Wales in Sydney and an MBA from Wharton in Philadelphia.
He was formerly a partner at strategy consultants Bain & Campany.
In addition to a background in developing and implemanting
board-level strategies for major multinational companies, David
brings current wide experience as a director and founder of, and
investar in, medium-sized technology growth companies in the
B2B software and electronics sectors. He is currently a nan-executive
director and ramuneration committee chairman of AlM-quoted
Eckoh ple, and chairman of aviation simulation and training company
Quadramt Group Lirnited. Until its takeover by CGlin December 2019,
David was also a non-executive director and audit committee
chairman of SCISYS plc.

PaulWebb
Chief Executive

joinad the Group in 2004 and drove the rapid growth of the
Group's Systems activities. With a 30-year career in the electronic
surveillance industry, he has held roles spanning engineering,
business development and general management. Before joining
the Group, Paul was MD of a surveillance business that was
acquired by Siemens and has previously Iived and worked in Asia.
He has a degree in Physics from Imparial College London.



David Bedford
Finance Director

helds 2 degree in Economics and Accounting from the University
aof Bristol and is 2 member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Having qualified with Deloitte & Touche in
1894, David joined Price Watarhouse's corporats finance group.
Following seven years with Jaguar Land Rover, David held a
number of senior finance positions within IM| Pracision, the
largest division of IM| plc.

Steve Coggins

independent
Non-Executive Director

has held various senior roles in both sales and marketing and
general management in thea information technology arena including
senior vice president at both Amdahl (now part of Fujitsu} and at
Silicon Graphics. Earlier he spent time at IBM and also in engineering
computing in the aircraft industry. He currently chairs one of
Fujitsu's pension schemes.

Michael Butler

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

has held various senior rales in general management, sales and
marketing in telecommunications businesses, including president and
chief operating officer and an executive board director of Inmarsat plc.
He was previously managing director of MC| Worldcom UK. He is
alsa non-executive chairman of Broadband Satsllite Services Ltd.,

a business backed by the UK's Business Growth Fund 'BGF’).

AlisonVincent

Independent
Non-Executive Director

is an experienced IT industry leader with recent roles including group
chief information security officer at HSBC and chief technology
officer at Cisco. She is a nan-executive director for SEI Investments
{Europe) Ltd, Bytes Technology Group ple and Connected Places
Catapult. She is a lay member of council at Southampton University
and is a technical adviser to Telesoft Technologies Ltd and Argit Ltd.
She is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering, the British
Computer Society and the Institution of Technology and Engineering.
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Governance
Corporate governance statement

Corporate governance statement

Principle 1: Establish a strategy and business model
which promote long-term value for sharehclders

Synectics is a leader in the design, integration and support of
advanced security and surveillance systems. Synectics embraces
two comglementary business mode!s founded on shared
principles which govern the relationships it seeks to build with
customers, the way in which it works with them and the
partnerships it creates with other providers tc serve its customers
better and enhance its market reach.

+ Systems: secures major contracts for the design, development,
and depioyment of security and surveillance selutions, primarily
based on its proprietary technology platform, Synergy.

e Security: is a specialist provider of integrated security solutions
for diverse, demanding applications.

The Board believes that by achieving leadership positions in the
specific market sectors and geographical regions that the Group
targets, Synectics will generate sustainable revenue and profit
growth, and thus long-term value for shareholders.

For information on our strategy and business model, please refer
to the Strategic review an pages 6 to 23,

Principle 2: Seek to understand and meet shareholdar
needs and expectations

The Beard welcomes dialogue with shareholders and actively
engages with them through face-to-face meetings and written
queries, and at the Company’s Annual General Meeting ('AGM'}.
The AGM notice is sent to shareholders at least 21 days before the
AGM. All Directors, including the Chairman, Chief Executive and
Finance Director, routinely attend the AGM and are available to
answer questions raised by shareholders. For each vote, the
number of proxy votes received for, against and withheld is
announced at the meeting. The results of the AGM are
subseguently published on the Company’s corporate website.

The Directors actively seek to builg a relationship with substantial
shareholders. Shareholder relations are managed primarily by the
Chief Executive and Finance Director, supparted by the Chairman,
as appropriate, The Chief Executive and Finance Director make
presentations to analysts and substantial shareholders each year
immediately following the release of the full-ysar and

half-year results.

The Board is kept informed of the views and any concerns of
major sharsholders by briefings, as appropriate, from the
Chairman. Investmaent reparts from analysts and feedback reporis
from brokers following the investor meetings are also circulated to
the Board. The Chairman and Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director ("S1D') are available to meet with major shareholders if
required 10 discuss issues of importance to them.

As part of the continued review of the Company's governance
reporting, the Annual Report and Accounts includes expanded
natrative govarnance disclosures that take into account the views
of shareholders.

Synectics ple
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Principle 3: Take into account wider stakehoider and
social responsibilities, and their implications for
long-term success

The Board is reguiarly updated on widar stakehoider engagement
feedhack to stay abreast of stakehaolder insights into the issues
that rmatrer most to them and the business, and to enable the
Board to understand and consider these issues in decision making.
{n addition to the Company's shareholders, one of the Group’s
most important stakehofder groups is our employees. The Board
therefore cicsely manitors and reviews the resuits of the Group’s
annual Employee Engagement Survay as well as other feadback it
recelves in relation to employee engagement.

The Company has a deep understanding of the needs of our
customers, another important stakehalder group. To further
develop relationships with Its customers, the Board receives
feedback from the annual Customer Excelience Survey, including
the progress made against previous years’ injtatives as well as
new initiatives made in the current year. See page 12 for more
infarmation on cur Customer Excellence programme.

Modern slavery

The Company opposas modern stavery in all its forms and will try
1o prevent it by any means that it can. It is expected that anyone
wha has any suspicions of modern slavery within the husiness or
the supply chain will raise their concerns without delay. The Group
maintains relationships with many different organisations in its
supply chein, as well as directly employing cover 320 people
warldwide. In light of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, each year the
Board reviews internal measures to ensure the Group is doing
what it ¢can to prevent slavery and human trafficking The
Company’s modern slavery statement can be found on our
website 8t www.synecticsplc.com.

For more informatian on our people please see pages 16 and 17.

Principle 4: Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and threats,
throughout the organisation

The Beard has overall responsibility for risk management and is
assisted by the Audit Committee in monitoring the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group as well as the actions taken to
mitigate those risks. The Board has delegated responsibility for
review of the adequacy of the effectiveness of the internal control
framewaork to the Audit Committee.

The Chief Executive and Finance Director ere respensible for the
day-to-day operational and commercial activity across the Group
and are, therefore, responsible for the managament of risk. The
Audit Commitiee reviews the risk register prepared by the Chief
Executive and Finance Director bi-annually and any emerging risks
are identified and reported to the Board,

Further information on the Group’s internal control systems, the
key risks facing the Group, and how the Board gets its assurance
that the risk management and refated controf systems in place are
effective tan be found in the Audit Comrnitiee report on pages 43
10 45 and the Risks and Risk Management section on pages 34
and 35.




Principle 5: Maintain the Board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chairman

The Board

During the year, the Board comprised a Chairman, three Non-
Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. The resulting
size and composition of the Board gave it sufficient independance,
balance and broad experience to provide effective oversight of the
Group's strategy, performance, resources and standards of
conduct. The continued strong representation of Non-Executive
Directors on the Board demonstrates its independance, provides a
greater depth of experience and facilitates challengs.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are undertaken
by separate individuals. The Chairman, David Coghlan, is
responsible for leadership of the Board and ensuring that there is
effective communication with shareholders. The day-to-day
leadership and management of the business are undertaken by the
Chief Executive, Paul Webb, assistad by senicr management.

Since his appointment as Senior Independent Director in 2018,
Michael Butler continues to be responsible for supporting the
Chairman and monitering the divisicn of responsibility between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive. He is also available to
address shareholder concerns where applicable.

The Company Secretary, in conjunction with the Chairman,
ensures that accurate, timely and clear information is provided to
the Board in order for informed decisions and discussions to take
place. The Campany Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters and regulatory requirements. The
appeintmeant and removal of the Company Secretary are matters
reserved for the Board. All Directors have direct access to the
Company Secretary and to independent professional advice at the
Group's expense as required.

The Group purchases and maintains Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance in respect of the Group, the Company and its
Directors throughout each financial year.

Role of the Board

Great importance is placed on a well-informed and decisive Board.
Board meetings are held regularly throughout the year. In the 2021
financial year, six scheduled Board meetings, three Audit
Committee meetings and three Rermuneration Committee
meetings were held and were supplemented by Board and
Commitiee calls in between. In addition, as it does each year, the
Board convened and participated in a separate session on the
Group's strategy and five-year plan.

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for its
consideration and those delegated to Board Committees. The
Board's responsibilities include setting the Group's overall
business and commercial strategy; setting and monitoring
business objectives tc achieve the strategy; setting and monitoring
annual budgets and financial and capital plans; and considering
Group policies and any major investments or

organisational changes.

Agenda items scheduled for every Board meeting include strategy,
business performance, operations, human resources, finance and
gavernance. The agenda is reviewed and agreed by the Chairman
to ensure that the Board addressas the right 1ssuas at the right
times and that sufficient tirne is allowed for appropriate
consideration and debate. The agenda is further structured to
allow members of the senior management team the opportunity
to present various subjects to the Board, giving the Board the
opportunity to meet senior management and employees, and to
develop greater business knowledge and depth of awareness of
business-specific opportunities and threats.

Board meaetings

Following a gradual return tc the office towards the end of 2021,
the Baoard has returned 1o physical meetings, with the majority of
meetings before September being held virtuzlly. Beard meetings
are scheduled a year in advance to ensure full attendance where
possible and all Directors receive papers sufficiently in advance of
meetings to enable due consideration. Following Board and
Committee meetings, the Board receives copies of the minutes at
the next Board meeting and can raise any queries ar concerns with
the Board or Committee Chairmen.

Buring the 2021 financial year, matters dealt with by the Board
included:

» review and monitoring of Group strategy and progress against
husiness objectives;

* operational and financial performance of the Group;

Group budgets and five-year plan;

monitoring progress cf projects being undsrtaken by the Group;
» approval of financial statements and dividend policy;

= risk management oversight, review of internal controls and
monitoring of the Group's risk registars;

Board and senior management succession planning and general
recruitment and retention;

approval of large contracts and bids;

approva! of large capital expenditure projects;
» Committee reports and recornmendations;

« review of corporate governance reporting and the Group's
policies and procedures;

» review of return-to-work plans across the globe:

Boarg and Committee evaluation, reviewing pregress of actions
from the 202Q evaluation and setting actions for 2021;

considering the risk registers and the outcome of the risk
review, as reviewed in detail by the Audit Committeg;

s the approval of the half-year and full-year financial resuits, upon
the recommendation of the Audit Committee;

the re-appeintment of RSM UK Audit LLP as external auditor,
uron the recommendation of the Audit Committes:

reviewing the findings of the 2021 Employee Opinion Survey;
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Governance
Corporate governance statement continued

Principle 5: Maintain the Board as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by the Chairman continued

Board meetings continued

« review and approval of the annual update 10 the Group's

approach to meeting the requirements of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015;

monitoring the in-sourcing of the 1T department and reviewing
the cost saving of this initiative;

monitoring the progress of the Customer Excellence programme
and the Market Development programme; and

» reviewing the Group’'s praduct development roadmap and
technological developments in the industry.

Excluding ad hoc meetings, and Board calls for generai
administrative matters, the number of Board and Committee
meetings attended during the year were as follows:

Total number of mestings

Audit Remuneration

Beard Committee Committee
DJ Coghlan
Chairman 6 - -
DM Bedford 51 - -
MJ Butler
Chairman of Remuneration Commities & 3 3
SW Coggins
Chairman of Audit Committes L] 3 3
A Vincent L5 3 3
PA Webb [ - -

Directors’ conflicts of interest

A register is maintained by the Company Secretary 1o menitor and
manage any potential conflicts of interast. Training on the
Companies Act 2006 has been given to all Directors on the
provisions within, and Diractors are reminded of their duties at
each Board meeting. Any conflicts are declared at the first Board
meeting at which the Director necomes aware of a potential
conflict and then recaorded in the Conflicts Register. The Board
considers all conflicts in ling with the provisions set out in the
Articles and non-contlicted Directors can authorise conflicts with
or without limits and conditions. The Directors are required to
review their interests racorded in the Conflicts Register on an
annual basis.
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Board appointmants

All Non-Executive Directors are provided with a letter of
appointment on acceptance of the appointment, which includes
the terms and canditions of their rofe. The letters of appaointment
are updated as appropriate from time ta time and ars available on
request from the Campany Secretary,

Independence

As part of the appraisal of each Director, the independence of all
Non-Executive Board members is reviewed and evaluated
annually. Dr Alison Vincent was appointed to the Board in 2020,
Stave Coggins and Michael Butler have served on the Board for 17
and 6 years respectively. Each brings different and complementary
high-level experience relevant to the current business and future
development of the Group. During 2021, and at all times
previously, each has addressed all issues facing the Board with a
high level of candour, robustness and insight. Their in-depth
knowledge of the Group and the electronic surveiliance industry,
gained from their tenure, combined with their different and
complementary skills and knowledge developed from ather
directorships, provide valuable independent perspectives that
contribute to the success of the Group and to the performance
and effectiveness of the Board. For these reascns, each of these
three Mon-Executive Directors is considered by the Board to

be independent.

Principle 6: Ensure that between them the Directors
have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills
and capabilities

The Board is satisfied that, between the Directors, it has an
effective and appropriate batance of skills and experience,
including in the areas of technalogy, engineering, finance, law,
international trading, sales and marketing.

Biographies of each Director can be found on pages 36 ang 37.

Each member of the Board takes respensibility for maintaining his
or her skill set, which includes roles and experience with other
boards and organisations as well as formal training and seminars.

Al Directors receive regular and timely information on the Group's
operationz and financial performance. Relevant information is
circulated to the Directors in advance of meetings. The business
reports monthly on its headline performance against its budget
and forecast, and the Board reviews the update on performance at
each meeting.



Diversity

The Group recognises the benefits of having a diversa Board,
senior management team and workdorce in general and seeks to
recruit and develop the best-qualified candidates to support and
achieve the Group's long-term sirategic and business objectives.
The Group monitors and encourages divarsity ecross the whole
warkforce in terms of gender, skills, cuiture, disability and ethnigity
and belfeves such diversity contributes to the success of

the Group.

In line with the Board's policy to appoint members who have the
maost appropriate skills for the rale, irrespective of gender, Dr
Alison Vincent was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive
Director in 2020 The Board believes that the appointment of a
waoman to the Board is in line with recommended best practice of
increasing the nurnber of women on beards and will give a new
perspective to the Board.

induction

The Company's policy 1s for all new Directors to undertake a
formal and comprehensive induction to the Group upon joining the
Board. The induction process is undertaken by the Company
Secretary and HR teamn. On acceptance of appointment, all
Directors are provided with an induction pack, which includes:
their appointment letter and terms; latest accounts and
constitutional documents; the business plan; investor
presentations; protocol for conflicts of interest; Directors' duties:
Group Share Dealing Code and Group policies; Board meeting
procedures and matters reserved; Board minutes and papers from
previous meetings; and meeting dates and contact details.
Substantive induction to the Group’s businesses is provided
through meetings with senior management and site visits to the
Group's operations.

Independent advice

All Directors are able to take independent professional advice in
the furtherance of their duties, if necessary. In addition, the
Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and Finance Director.

Pringiple 7: Evaluate Board performance based
on clear and relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvement

The Board carries out an annual self-assessment of its performance.
This includes evaluation of the performance and effectiveness

of the Board, of its Committees and of each Director. The procass
is led by the Chairman and involves detailed questionnaires and
one-to-one raviews of the collective and individual perfarmance

of Directors.,

The resuits of the Board and Committee evaluations are the subject
of a full, robust and open debate in a Beard meeting and actions for
improvements are agreed. Progress against these actions arising
from performance evaluations is then monitored and reported on
throughout the following year

As a result of the evaluation process during tha year, the Beoard
identified that there had been an improvernent in the communication
of the monthly financial infarmatien to tha Board. The following
action points were put in place, and achieved during the year:

o bringing forward the strategy meeting frorm December
to September;

* more fraquent meetings of just the Non-Executives; and

« further sxposure to the senior leadership taam.

Principle 8: Promote a corporate culture that is based
on ethical values and behavicurs

The Board endeavours to lead by example and do what is in the
best interasts of the Group. Synactics has a strong ethical culture,
supported in recent years by embedding policies and practices
across the business to ensure that our strategy across the whole
business is driven by our constituent parts. The success of the
"whole" depends on the Company’s values whichk can be found
on page 8.

The Group's Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is reviewed
annually and communicated throughout the Group to prevent
bribery from taking place Any kriown non-compliance with the
pelicy is reported to the Board as part of the Governance Report,
with na reports received to date.

Principle 9: Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and support good
decision making by the Board

Board programme

The Board sets direction for the Group through a formal schedute
of mattars reserved for its decision. Prior to the start of each
financial year, a schedule of dates for that year’s Board meetings

is compiied to ensure an appropriate spread of meetings across
the financial year and in line with the Group’s half-year and full-year
results reporting. This may be supplamented by additional
meetings as and when required.

The Board meets at least six times each year in accordance with
its scheduled meeting calendar. The attendance by each Board
member at scheduled mestings is shown in the Board table on
page 40.
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Governance
Corporate governance statement continued

Principle 9: Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and support good
dec¢ision making by the Board continued

Board programme continued

During the year to 30 November 2021, the Board met either
physically or virtually for all its scheduled meetings. The Board and
its Committees receive appropriate and timely information prior to
€ach meeting; a formal agenda is produced for each meeting, and
Board and Committee papers are distributed several days before
meetings take place. Minutes of the meetings are then circulated
to all Directors. Any specific actions arising from such meetings
are agreed by the Board or relevant Committee and then followed
up by management or the Baard, as appropriate.

Roles of the Board, Chairman and Chief Exacutive Officer

The Board is respensible for the long-term success of the
business. It is responsible for overall Group strategy. approval ot
maijor contracts; approval of significant investments; approval of
the annual and interfm resylts; annual budgets; dividend policy;
and Beard structure. 't monitors the sxposurs 1o key business risks
and reviews the strategic direction of each business, their annual
budgets and their performance in relation to those budgets and
subsequent forecasts. There is clear division of responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for running the business of the Board and
for ensuring appropriate strategic focus and direction. The Chief
Executive is responsible for proposing the strategic focus to the
Board, implementing it once it has been approved and overseeing
the management of the business through the senmor
management team.

Seniar management below Board level attend Board mestings
whaere appropriate to present business updates and
demonstrations to the Board.

Executive team

During the year, the Executive team consisted of Paul Webb and
David Bedford. Together, they and the senior leadership team
wera respensible for formulation of the propesad strategic focus
for submission 1o the Board, the day-to-day management of the
Group's businesses and its overali trading, operational and financial
performancs in fulfiment of the strategy, plans and budgets
approved by the Board of Directors, as weil 25 managing key
business risks.
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Board Committees

The Group has two standing Board Committees: an Audit
Committee and a Remuneration Committee. The roles and
activities of those Committees are included in the respective
Committee reports on pages 43 10 49,

The functions of a Nominations Committee are yndertaken by the
Board as a whole. Where necessary and appropriate, a
nominations sub-committee is appointed temporarily to fuifil
specific tasks. Given the size of the Group, and the size and
campaosition of its Board, the Directors belisve it is both practical
and beneficial for matters of Board composition and recruitment,
Board parformance evaluation, Executive and Non-Executive
succassion planning, and training and development 1o be
undertaken by the Board as a whole. All such matters are regularly
scheduled on the Board's agenda and are discussed thoroughly
and robustly, incorporating the detailed perspectives and
experience of all Directors.

Principle 10: Communicate how the Company is
governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and other relevant stakeholders

The Company communicates with shareholders through the
Annual Report and Accounts, full-year and half-year
announcements, the AGM and one-tg-one meetings with large
existing or potential new shareholders. A range of corporate
information (including all announcemants and presentations) is
also available 10 shareholders, investors and the public on the
corporate website.

The Board receives regular updates on the views of shareholders
through briefings and reports from the Chairman of the Board, the
Chisef Executive and the brokers. Analysts’ nctes and brokers’
briefings are reviewed to achieve a wide understanding of
investors’ views.

The Company conducts an annual Employee Engagement Survey
to maintain an open commurnicatian with employees and introduced
its Customer Excellence programme in 2018 which has created

an additional channel of dialogue with customers. For further
information about these initiatives, please see pages 12 and 13.



Governance
Audit Committes report

Audit Committee report

Introduction from the Chairman of the Audit Committee

On behalf of the Audit Committee {the ‘Committze’), | am
pleased to present the Committee’s report for the year ended
30 November 2021, which has been approved by the Board.

During the year, the Committee has cansidered the integrity of the
Group's financial reporting and provided advice to the Board that
the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the Company's
shareholders with the necessary informaticn to essess Uie
Company's position, performance, business model and strategy.
The activities of the Committes are kept under review in line with
regulatary and market developments.

During the year, the Committee comprised me as Chairman,
Michael Butlar and Alison Vincent. All members of the Committee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors and have no personal or
financial interests, pther than as shareholders, in the matters
considered by the Committee.

Steve Coggins
Chairman of the Audit Committee

22 February 2022

Role and operation of the Committee

The Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company
maintains a strong control environment. It provides effective
gavernance over the Group's financial reporting, including
oversight and review of the systems of internal control and risk
managemant and the performance of internal and extarnal
audit functions.

The Cormnmittea’s formal terms of reference, which are reviewed
and approved annually, set aut its duties delegated by the Beard. A
copy of the terms of reference ¢an be obtained from the Company
Secretary or from the Governance section of our website at

www synecticsplc.cam.

During the year, the Committee met three times. Neither the
Executive Directors nor the Chairman attend meetings of the
Committee other than by invitation. The Committee invites the
external audrtor to attend certain meetings.

The Committee is authorised by the Board fo obtain external
professional advice at the Group's expense in order to perform its
duties. The Committee's principal duties are to:

« make recommendations to the Board on the appointrment,
rg-appointrment or rermoval of the external auditor and the
amount of its remuneration;

discuss and agree the scope of the audit and review the
auditor's management letter and the Group's response;

e review and agree the scape and work of the Group's internal
audit activities;

» review half-year and annual financial statements and formal
gnnouncements relating to financial performance;

+ review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal

financial controls, and internal control and risk management systemns:

« consider compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

= consider findings of interna! investigations and management’s
response; and

* review the Committee’s terms of reference and recommaend any
proposed changes to the Board for approval.

During the financial year the Committee considerad the
following matters:

the suitability of the Group’s accounting policies and practices;

the half-year and full-year financial results, including the
assessment ¢f going concern and recommendation to the Board
that it is appropriate to adopt the going cancern assumgption;

the scope and cost of the external audit;

the external auditor’s fult-year report for 2020;

the re-appointmant of RSM UK Audit LLP {('RSM’) as the
Group's external auditor:

the evaluation of the performance and independence of RSM;

the review and agproval of RSM's plan for 2021, which detailed
the proposed audit scope and risk and governance assessment;

» the raview and approval of RSM's fees for 2021;

the internal control environment across the Group, including
approving updates to the Group's Delegation of
Authority docurnent;

# the arrangements in respect of internal audit, including its
resourcing and the scope of the annual internal audit plan for
2021, as well as reports on the activity carried out during the year;

= areview of the Group’s internal controls, including a
demonstration of the Group’s internal centrol questionnaire;

detailed reviews of strategic and operaticnal risks facing the
Group, the risk registers and the mitigating actions to
rainimise risk;

the annual review of the Group’s pclicies an whistleblowing and
provision of non-audit services;

the review of the Committee's terms of reference and
recommendation of the updated terms of reference 1o the Board
for approval;

s the assessment of the internal finance organisation;

the resuits of the internally conducted assessment of the
Committee's performance and effectiveness in 2020,

s the approval of the Committee plan for 2021;

training on the Group's key financia! consolidation software; and

further training requirements for Committee members.
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Audit Committee report continuad

Financial reporting

During the year, the Committee reviewed and recommended
approval of the half-year and full-year financial statements. As part
of its review, the Committee interrogated the key judgernents and
accounting policies applied and considerad the basis for estimates
and assumptions underlying tha financial staterments.

During the year, the Committee, management and the external
auditor considerad and concluded on a number of significant
matters in relation to the financial statements.

Those matters and what the Committee did to ensure that those
matters had besn appropriately addressed in the financial
statements are set out below:

The Committee recognises the importance of understanding
changes in accounting policies and practice, and receives regular
updates from both the external auditor, and the finance team on
key changes in this area.

Area of focus How the matter was addressed by the Aucit Committes

Revenue recagnition
and contract accounting

Tha Committee continued to review the Groug's revenue recognition principtes and financial staternents
disclosures in line with the requirements of IFRS 15. In addition, the Committes reviewed the controls in
place to ensure the appropriateness of the estimates used in assessing contract stage of comngpletion,
anticipated profitability and the amounts recognised in the financial statements, The Committee agraed
with the conclusions reached.

Goodwill and investment
impairment review

The Committee reviewed a Management's reéport outlining the approach taken on impairment testing
and the key assumptions and sensitivities supporting the conclusions. The Committee agreed with
the conclusions reached on impairment.

Going concern The Committee reviewed management’s raport outlining the assessment of going concern, giving
consideration to the Group's farecast cash flaws, liquidity requirements and borrowing tacilities.
Fellowing this review the Committee agreed that the going concern basis of accounting continues

to be appropriate.

Risk management and internal control

The Committee also has responsibility for reporting 1o the Board on whether the Group's key control policies and procedurgs remain
appropriate and that it is operating & robust and effective cantrol environmant.

Risk management

Tne Committee, on behalf of the Board, ensures that the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties have been approprigtely identified and
assessed. It reviews thase key risks and the quality of the assurance on the effectiveness of the controis that mitigate those risks,
allowing it to conclude on tha principal risks for disclosure in the Annual Report.

Effective internal controt

Operating policies, procedures and controls are in place across the Group, and have been in place throughout the year under review.
These policies ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements including
the consaolidation process.

The controls relating to financial reporting include:

e an appropriately qualified management structure, with clear lines of responsibiiity;

e a comprehensive annuat budgeting pracess, which is approved by the Board;

» close management of the day-to-day activities of the Group by the Chief Executive and Finance Director;

+ detailed monthly reporting of performance, and against budget and forecast; and

» central control over key areas such as contrast risk assessment, capital expenditure authorisation and banking facilities.

Details of the system of internal control, the principal risks facing the Group, and the strategies put in place 1o mitigate them, are set gut
in the Risks and Risk Management section on pages 34 and 35 ’
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External audit

The Committee has responsibility to ensure that there is a
sufficiently robust and effective external audit through considering
the independence of the external auditor, the appointment and
re-appointment of the external auditor and all reports from the
external auditor.

Appointment of the external auditor

The Committee reviews and evaluates the performance of the
external auditor and makes recommendations regarding the
appointment of the external auditor to the Board. In making this
recommendation, the Committee censiders auditor effectiveness
and independencs, and any other factors which may impact upon
the external auditer’s re-appointment. After careful consideration,
the Committee recommends the re-appaintment of RSM UK
Audit LLP as external auditor of the Group, subject to approval

by shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

Audit independence

The Committee and the Board place great emphasis on the
objactivity of the external auditor in its reperting to sharehclders.
When required, the external audit partner is present at Committee
meetings to ensure full communication of rmatters relating to the
audit. The overall perfcrmance of the external auditor is reviewed
annually by the Committee, taking inte account the views of
managemaent, and feedback is provided when necessary to senior
mambers of the audit firm unrelated to the audit. The Committee
also has discussions with the external auditor, without
management being prasent, on the adequacy of controls and on
any judgemental areas. The scope of the forthcoming year's
external audit is discussed in advance by the Commitiee. Audit
fees are approved by the Committes.

Assignments of non-audit work have been and ara subject to
controls by management that have been agreed by the Committee
sg that audit independence is not compromised.

Other than the external audit, the Committee is reguired to give
prior approval of work carried out by the auditor and its associates
with a value in excess of £50,000. Part of this review is to
determing that other potential providers of the services have been
adequately considered. These controls provide the Committee
with confidence in the independence of the auditor in its reporting
on the audit of the Group.

Non-audit services

The independence and objectivity of the non-audit services
provided by RSM to the Group are safeguarded by the Group's
non-audit services policy. The pelicy on engaging the external
guditor for non-audit services has always been designed to ensure
that such engagements do not result in the creation of a mutuality
of interest between the auditor and the Group, that a transparant
process and reporting structure is established io enable the
Cornrnittes to rmonitor policy compliance and that unnecessary
restrictions on the engagement of the suditor for non-audit
services are avoided where the provision of advice is commercially
sensible and is more cost effective than other providers.

RSM occasionally provides non-audit services to the Group which
are governed by the Group’s non-audit services policy. Compliance
with the policy is actively managed and an analysis of non-audit
services is reviewead throughout the year. During the year ended
30 November 2021 £3,000 (2020: £nil} for services provided to the
Group were non-audit sarvices.
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Remuneration Committee report

Remuneration Committee report

introduction from the Chairman
of the Remuneration Commitiee

On beha!f of the Remuneration Committee {the ‘Committee’), | arm
pleased to present the Committee’s report for the year ended
30 November 2021, which has been approved by the Board.

This report is divided into two sections:

1. an unaudited section which sets out the work of the Committes
in 2021 and the Company's remuneration policy for Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors; and

2. an audited section, the Remuneration Report, which details the
remuneration paid to Directors in the year ended 30 November 2021,

As an AlM-fisted company, the information provided is disclosed
to fulfil the requiraments of AIM Rule 19. The Company is not
required to comply with Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008.
This informaticn is unaudited, except where stated.

During the year, the Committee comprised me as Chairman,
Steve Coggins and Alison Vincent. All members of the Commitiee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors and have na personal or
financial interests, other than as shargholders, in the matters
considered by the Committee.

Michael Butler
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

22 February 2022
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The Committee operatss within the remit delegated by the Board,
which is set out in formal terms of reference. The remuneration of
Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the Chairman and the
Executive Directors. No Directar or manager is involved in any
decision regarding their own remuneration. A copy of the terms of
reference can he obtained from the Company Secretary or from
the Governance section of our website at www.synecticsplc.com.

Neither the Executive Directors nor the Chairman attend meetings
of the Committee other than by invitation and are not present at
any discussion of their own remuneration.

The principal duties of the Committes are to:

+ recommend to the Board for epproval overall Group
remuneration policies, and the specific remuneration each year
for ail Directors and senior management, including bonuses,
incentive payments and share options and awards;

» ensure Executive Directors and the senior management team
are provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhancad
performance in a fair and reasonable manner;

approve the design of, and determine targets for, any
performeance-related pay schemes;

review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the
Board and, where appropriate, shareholders;

determine wheather awards will be made under any share
incentive plans, including the size of the award and the
performance targets to be used;

« determine the policy for pension arrangements for Executive
Directors and certain senior managers;

ensure that contractual tarms on termination and any payments
made are fair, that failure is not rewarded and that the duty to
mitigate lass is fully recognised:;

« consider applicable legislation, regulation, best practice
guidance and recommendations. and develcpments on
remuneration policy and remuneration reporting;

review remuneration trends at individual subsidiaries and the
Group as a whole, and oversee any major changes in employee
benefit structures across the Group:

» select and appoint any remuneration consultants to advise the
Committee, if required; and

review the Committee's performance, constitution and terms of
reference to ensure it operates effectively and to recommend
any changes to the Board for approval.

As Committee Chairman, 1 formaily repert to the Board on the
Committee’s proceedings after each meeting; ensure that an
annual report of the Group's remuneration policy and practices is
published in the Group's Annual Report and Accounts; and ensure
gach year that the Remuneration Committee Report, which
contains the Directors’ remuneration, is put to shareholders for
approval at the AGM.



The Commuttee is authorised by the Board to seek any information
it requires from any employee of the Group in order to perform

its duties and to obtain external professional advice at the

Group’'s expense,

During the year, the Committee met three times. Matters dealt
with by the Committee included the:

» approval of no bonus awards for 2020 arnd no salary increases
for 2021, bar minor exceptions;

approval of an award of options under the Synectics
Performance Share Plan {"PSP’) on 3 March 2021 for the
remaining senior manager who had not been included in the
award made on 7 August 2020;

« review of the outturn of the 2318 PSP awards and the
determination that those awards had not met the performance
criteria and lapsed in full;

« review of the Committee’s terms of reference and
recommendation of the updated terms of reference to the Board
for approval;

approval of no "formal” benus scheme for 2021 but
discretionary payments only;

» approval of draft 2022 benus proposals for senior management
and employees; and

» approval of the Group's updated Share Dealing Policy and Code.

Remuneration policy for Executive Directors

Executive Diractors are employed by the Group and are required
to devote substantially the whole of thew time to its affairs. The
policy of the Board is to provide competitive packages reflective
of the industry In which it operates to attract, retain and motivate
high-calibre individuals as Executive Directors and to ensure

that their remuneration packages [consisting of basic salary,
performance-related bonuses, pension arrangements and other
benefits including interests in share schemes) reflect their
responsibilities, performance and experience, and encourage
and reward superior performance. The policy alse seeks to enstre
that Executive Directors are rewarded fairly for their individua!
contributions 1o the Group's performance and to encourage
appropriate behaviours in line with the Group's attitude to risk.

The principal elements of the Executive Directors’ remuneration
packages are as follows:

The Group aims to pay competitive market salaries and to recogmise individual development and progression through the

Basic salary

annual salary and perscnal review processes Salaries are reviewed annually.

Annual performance-related  in line with the scheme covering other senior members of staff, performance-related bonuses for the Executive Directors

honuses

Pension arrangements
are based only on basic salary.

Other benefits

Long-tarm incentive
arrangements

are based on the achievernent of specific financial targets for the Group and agreed personal abjectivas.

The Group makes contributions into money purchase schemes on benalf of the Executive Directors. Pansion payments

These pringipally comprise car bensfits, life assurance and membership of the Group's healthcare scheme.

The Group oparates various shara plans in which the Exacutive Directors participate or have a prior interest in. Details of
the share plans are given in note 24 to the financial statements. Directors’ interests in the shares of the Group are

detailed in the shareholdings disclosure on page 50.

Executive Directors are not automatically entitled to compensation
payments for loss of office, other than payment in lieu of their
contractual notice period, if legally required. They do nat hold
directorships in other companias unrelzted to the Group and,
accardingly, no remuneration is due to the Group.

Remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are independent of the Group and are
expected to spend an average of approximataly two days a morith
on the Group’s business. They are not restricted from undertaking
additional directorships, subject to avoiding any conflicts

of interest.

After considering recommendations from the Chairman, the Board
determines the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors
excluding the Chatrman, The remuneration of the Chairman is
deterrnined by the Committee. Non-Executive Directors receive
fees which are reviewed annually in light of their responsibilities,
experience and contribution to the Group's affairs, as well as
market rates. Non-Executive Directors do not receive any
performance-related pay or rewards, and the Group does not
deduct for, or contribute to, a pension. There were na increases ta
the Non-Exacutiva Directors’ fees in tha current year, which have
been held since 2013.
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Remuneration Committee report continued

a) Remuneration

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are given below.

2621 Total 20297 Tota! 2021 2020
Salary {axcl. taxcl Pension Pansion
and faes Bonuses' Benefits pension) pension) allowance®  allowance?
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executlve Directars
DM Bedfard* 160 - 2 162 132 m 13
PA Webb 280 - 2 262 248 30 28
Non-Executive Directors
M. Butier 30 - - 30 26 - -
SW Coggins 30 - - 30 28 - -
BJ Coghlan 85 - 3 8g 73 - -
PM Rae® - - - - 8 - -
A Vincent? 30 - - 3¢ 22 - -
Total 595 - ? 602 533 41 41

1 Bonuses are paid or accrued based on the achievernent of agreed persanal cbjectives and corparate performance metrics.

2 Inresponse to the Covid-19 situation and employess being furloughed the Executive Directors agreed to a 10% reduction in salary and the Non-Executive

Directors agreed to a 20% reducrion in their fess.

Appointed ta the Board on B January 2020,

Retired from the Board on 19 February 2020.

m oM B W

Appointed to the Board on 23 January 2020

b) Share schemes

The Directors’ interests in the Company’s share schemes are
presented below. No new cptions were granted 10, or exercised

by. any Director between 1 December 2021 and 21 February 2022

Perfarmance Shareg Plan {'PSP’)

The following Executive Directors held an intarest in the
Company’s sharss at 30 Novernber 2021 through awards made
under the PSP, which was established on 9 October 2012, as set
aut below and in note 24 to the financial statements.

Under the rules of the PSP, selected employess are awarded an
interest over a certain number of Company shares which only vest
after a three-year period, at nil cost to the employees. The number
of shares that vest at the end of the three-year period is
dependent on the Company meeting certain parformance
thresholds linked 10 the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index,
The performance conditicns are identical to those that applied
under the Quadnetics Executive Shared Ownershig Plan
{'ExSQOP’), details of which are presented below and apply to the
awards made in 2018 and 2019. No changes to the performance
conditions have been made during the year,

Date awarded 7 March 2019 7 August 2020
Mumber of  lssua price Number of  Issusg price
shares [l:H shares [s}1
DM Bedford - - 186,000 130.0
PA Wabb 25,000 200.0 300,000 130.0

In 202G, the Committee made a one-off award to the Exscutive
Directars vasting over a five-year period up to the end of the
Company's financial year ending 30 November 2025.
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Pension allowance includes bath contributions ta the Group's defined contribution pension scheme and cash payments in lisu of contributions.

The options are divided into three equal tranches, vesting after the
next three, four and five full financial years respectively, depending
on the achievement of the performance criteria at sach measurement
date, and are exergisable at nil cost. All options must be exercised

within ten years cf the date of award.

The performance criteriz for the one-off award will be measured
according to the average of the compound annual growth rate
{'CAGR") of the total shareholder return {"TSR") and the CAGR of
adjusted underlying diluted earnings per share {'EPS") for gach of
the thres relevant periods of reughly three, four and five years
respectively. If this average is 25% or more, 100% of that tranche
of options will vest. If this average is abave 15% and beiow 25%,
between 0% and 100% of the options will vest (on & straight-ling
basis). 75% of any options not vesting at the three-vear and
four-year vesting points may be carrisd forward to the following
year. Any options not vesting at the five-year point will lapse. The
baseline for calculating the CAGR of TSR is £1,35 per share, and
the baseline for calculeting the CAGR of adjusted underlying
diluted EPS is 11.87p per share (being the actual equivalent
adjusted EFS of the Company in the financial year 1o

30 November 2019).

Executive Shared Ownership Plan {{ExSOP’)

The following Directors held an interest in the Campany’s shares
at 30 November 2021 through participation in the ExSOP, which
was established on 7 July 2009, having supergseded an earlier
scheme established in 2005, as set out in note 23 to the financial
statemaents. The last awards under the ExSOP were made in
March 2011,



Under the provigions of the ExSOP, shares are jointly owned by
nominated senior employees and by an emplaoyees’ share trust on
terms, similar to a share option scheme, whereby the value of
appreciation in the Company’s share price over a minimum
three-year period accrues to the relevant employee, provided the
Company meets certain performance thresholds linked to the
FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index. No rights under this
scheme ware exercised by Directors during the year.

Date awarded

7 July 2009t 7 March 2011

Mumber of  Issue price Mumber of  Issue price

shares ied shares {p}
PA Webb 100,000 1475 100,000 173.0
DJ Coghlan 93,243 1475 - -

1 Share awards issued on this date were rolied cver from share awards
held under a previous version of the ExSOP.

Employees” Share Acquisition Plan {'ESAP’)

The Executive Directors are also entitled to participate in the
ESAP, which was adopted on 23 April 2010. Deductions from
salary are used 1o buy partnership shares in the Company at the
end of each six-month accumulation period. The Trustee of the
ESAP will use any dividend income paid on these shares to buy
further shares to be held in the scheme as dividend shares.
Partnership shares can be withdrawn from the scheme by the
employee at any time, but withdrawals before the fifth anniversary
after purchase are subject to income tax; withdrawals after the
fifth anniversary of thair purchase date can be made in full and are
not subject to income tax. Cividend shares are required to be held
in trust for a period of three years following the purchase date.
Employees who leave the Group are required to withdraw ali of
their shares in the scheme and are subject to the same rules

The Executive Directors had the following interests over Company shares held in the ESAF at 30 November 2021:

Total number Nurmnher of Number of Tatal number Value of
of partnership nartnership dividend of partnership sharas as at
and dividend shares shargs and dividend 30 November
shares held at purchased purchased shares held at 2021 Holding
1 December 2020 during the year  during the year 30 November 2021 (£) date
PA Webb 9,670 1,657 - 11,327 12,743 Various
DM Bedford - 857 - 357 964 Various

The mid-markst prices of the Company's shares at the beginning
and end of the financial year were as follows:

Ordinary

shares

of 2Gp each

At 1 Decernber 2620 15.0p
At 30 Novemnber 2021 112.5p

The maximum and minimum share prices during tha financial year
were as follows:

QOrdinary

shares

of 20p each

Maximurm 15%.5p
Minimuem 96.0p

¢} Service contracts

There are no Directors’ service contracts with notice periods in
excess of one year. The notice periods under the service agreements
for Executiva Directors and letters of appointment for Non-Executive
Directors are as follows:

Notice period

DM Badford 6 months
MJ Butler 3 months
SwW Cogains 6 months
B4 Coghlan 12 months
A Vincent 3 months
PA Webh 12 months
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Statutory Directors’ report

Statutory Directors’ report

The following matters are reported by the Directors in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 requirements in farce at the date of
this Annual Report and Accounts.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Synectics plc (the ‘Company’] and its
subsidiary companies both in the UK and worldwide (the "Group”)
are set out within the Stratagic report, which comprises the
Chairman’s statement, the Strategic review, the Performance review
and the Risks and risk management section, on pages 5 to 35.

Review of business and future developments

The Consolidated income statement for the year ended
30 Novernber 2021 is set out on page 59.

A raview of the Group's business activities during the year and its
prospects for the future can be found in the Chairman’s staternent,
the Strategic review and the Perfermance review on pages 5 10 32,
These reports, together with the Corporate governance stalement,
the Audit Committee report and the Remuneration Committee
report, are incarporataed into this report by reference and should be
read as part of this report.

Key performance indicators

The Directors measure the Group's performance principally using
the following financial indicators (as reflected in this Annual Report):

* revenue;
e underlying protit/(loss) before tax;

* underlying diluted earnings per share {based on underlying
profit/iloss) after tax);

underlying return on capital employed %:

free cash flow;

* employee engagement;

net promoter score; and

R&D spend.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Details of the principal risks and uncertainties considered by the
Board to affect the Group, and the related risk mitigation actions,
are given on pages 34 and 35.

Group results and dividends

The consolidated loss after tax for the year was £479,000
(2020 loss £4,671,000.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.5p
per share (2020: nil}, totalling around £2597,911. Subject to approval,
this is expected to be paid on 6 May 2022 to sharshalders on the
register as at the close of business on 8 April 2022. No interim
dividend was paid during the year {2020: nil).
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Finangial instruments

Details of financial instruments to which the Group is a party and
the Groug's financial risk management and objectives and policies
are shown in note 30 to the financigl statements,

Fixed assets

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no material difference
between the bagk value and the currant apen market value of the
Group's interest in lard and buildings.

Research & development expenditure

The Group has continued to invest in research & development of
both software and hardware products for surveillance applications
during tha year Incurring tatal costs of £3.4 mitlion (2020: £4.0 million},
of which £2 8 million {2020: £3.2 million} has been expensed to
the Income Statement.

Share capital

The Company's issued ordinary share capital comprises a single
class of ordinary shares of 20p each, with 17,794,439 shares in
issue and listed on AlIM of the London Stock Exchange as at

30 November 2021, No shares were held in treasury and 1,001,707
shares were held by the Company's employee share trusts.
Details of movements in the issued share capital can be found in
note 23 1o the financial statements.

Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the
Company. All issued shares are fully paid up and carry no additicnal
obligations or special rights. There are no restrictions on transfers
of shares in the Company, or on the exercise of voting rights
attached to them, other than those which may from time to time
be applicable under existing laws and regulatians.

Employee share plans

During the year, the Cormpany has remained within its headroom
fimits for the issue of new shares for share plans as set out in the
rules of the plans. The Company uses an employee benefit trust to
acquire partnership shares {at the end of each accumulation period)
and dividend shares in the market, when permitted. A total of
25,953 ordinary shares of 20p each in the Company were purchased
by the employee benefit trust at a cost of £31,376 during the 2021
financial vear.

Directors’ interests

Interests of the Directors and their connected persens in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 3C November 2021
wera as follows:

2029 2021 2020

2021 interasts Total Total

Numbar of in share interasts nLerests

shares held schemes in shares in shares

DM Bedford 20,000 186,657 206,857 196,000
MJ Butier 50.00¢ - 50,000 50,000
SW Coggins 26,870 - 26,370 13,080
DJ Coghlan 1,546,303 93,243 1,639,546 1,639,546
PA Webb 5.5 536,327 553,442 591,785

AVincent - - - -
1,700.288 816,427 2516715 243041




There has been no change in the interests of the Directors and
their connected persons in the issued share capital of the Company
from those set out in the table above ta 21 February 2022.

Significant sharsholdings
Asg at the close of the market on 21 January 2022, the Company

was aware of the following holdings, excluding Directors’ holdings,
of 3% or more of the Compgany's total issued share capital:

Number % of total
of shares voting nights

5,320,600 23 8%
1,921,333 10.80%

Whitehall Associated SA
Downing LLP

Stonehage Fleming Investment
Management Limited 1,917,196 10.77%

CQuadnetics Employee Benefit Trusts 1,001,707 583%
GPIM 557,766 313%

Board of Directors

David Bedford, Michael Butler, Steve Ceggins, David Coghlan,
Or Alison Vincent and Paul Webb were in office throughout the
financial year ended 30 November 2021. Details and biographies
of the current Directors are shown on pages 36 and 37.

The powers of the Company's Directors and rules that apply to
changes in the Directors are set out in the Company’s Articles of
Assaciation (the "Articles’}. Any changes to the Articles would
require the consent of the Company’s shareholders.

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors ara
required tc retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting
{*AGM"). The Directors retiring by rotation at the 2021 AGM
are David Bedford and Dr Alison Vincent.

Directors’ indemnity

As permitted by the Articles, each of the Directors has the benefit
of an indamnity which is a qualifying third-party indemnity as
defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2008. The indemnity
was in force throughaut the financial year and is currently in force.
No indemnity is provided for the Group’s auditor.

Conflicts of interest

The Articles permit the Board to consider and, if it sees fit, authorise
situations where a Director has an interast that conflicts, ar may
possibly conflict, with the interests of the Group {'Situational
Conflicts’). The Board operates an effective formal system for
Directors to declare Situational Condlicts and for them to be
authorised by the non-confiicted Directors if thought appropriate
and subject to limits or conditions.

Related party transactions

Internal contrals are in place to ensure that any related party
transactions involving Directors or their connected persons are
carriad out on an arm’s length basis and are property recorded.
Details of any ralated party transactions are given in note 27
to the financial statements.

Essential contracts or arrangements

The Group has & number of contractual agreements with suppliers
in support of its business activities Whilst the loss of certain of
these arrangements may cause temporary disruption, there are
none, for which mitigation plans have not been put in place, which
are individually considered to be essential to the Group’s business.

Change of control provisions

There are no significant agreements which contain provisions
entitiing other parties to exercise terminatian or othar rights in the
event of a change of control of the Group, and no provisions in the
Directors’ service agreements or employees’ contracts that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment
occurring bacause of a takeover.

Employment policies
The Group employed an average of 328 people in 2021 (2020 368)

The Group has established a suite of employment policies that
comply with current legislation and codes of practice, including in
the areas of health and safety and equal opportunities. The Groun
consults employees on deveiopments and changes ta take account
of their views when rnaking decisions that may impact their interests.

The Group has in place a Diversity and Equality Palicy which sets
out Synectics’ approach to equal opportunities and aveidance of
discrirnination at work. This policy confirms the Group's commitment
to treating employees fairly and inclusively, ensuring that all
decisions on recruitment, selection, training, promoticn, career
opportunities, pay and other terms and conditions ara based
salely on objective and jcb-related criteria.

The Group is committed 1o offenng employment to suitably qualified
people with disabilities and making reasonable adjustments to the
working environment to accormmadate their needs. Where a role
has an intrinsic occupational characteristic which may prevent the
employment of & disabled applicant, Synectics will make this clear
during the recruitment process. The Group also makes every effort to
continue the employrment, training and promotion of disabled employees
who develop disabilities during the course of their emplayment by
making reasonable adjustments and providing appropriate support.

Employee engagement

The Group’s employees are the strength and the foundation of its
success, and regular engagement through various media: email
alerts, focus groups, monthly bulleting, tearn triefings, a bi-annual
senior management conference and an annual staff survey enables
the Directors to take into account the interests of employees when
making decisions through-out the year. Further information about
how the Group engages with employees can be found on pages
17,18 and 25.

The Group operates an HMRC-approved share incentive plan to
encaurage employees to take & greater interast in the Group's
performance through share ownership. Details are set out in the
Ramuneration Committae report on pages 46 to 49,
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Statutory Directors’ report continued

Policy on payment of suppliers

The Group's policy during the year was to pay suppliers in accordance
with agreed terms. At 30 November 2021 the Group had 52 days’
purchases gutstanding in trade payables (2020: 62 days").

Charitable donations and activity

The Group made donations amounting to £1,250 (2020: £1,105)
to charitable causes during the year.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {"SECR’)

The Directars have reviewed the cbligations to report under the
SECR requiremnents and have concluded that no individual sntity
within the Group would be obliged to report individually according
to the thresholds. Mo data has therefore heen included within this
report. The Directors do, however, acknowledge their environmental
responsibility and seek to minimisa the impact that the Group
miakes wheraver possible.

Going concern

The financiat statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The Directors have reviewed the Group's funding position
and financial forecasts for the foreseeable future. This year, due to
the continued uncertainty from the glabal pandemic, this review
continued to include in depth scenario modelling and stress testing
of budget and strategy planning.

The Group regularly reviews the risks asscciated with the business
and the Directors are satisfied with the pasition. The Directors
consider that the Group benefits from a level of diversification within
both sectors and geagraphies that helps mitigate an element of
macro-aconomic risk. Despite the challenging trading environment
experiencead in the financial year, this diversification was seen,
with some areas of the business performing better than others.

The Directors quickly tock action in the prior year which mitigated
a tat of the impact from the pandemic. The positive impact from
this, in particular from the restructuring of the Group, has been
extremely successiul for the business from a performance
perspective. This is largely due to efficiencies and cost savings
which have a long term benefit gaing farward.

Forecasting and stress testing

The Directors have undertaken a rigorous budgeting and forscasting
precess with management to understand the impact of the economic
environment on the future of the business. The base case scenario
was tempered by the Directors to reflect the remaining uncertainty
regarding the timing of the return to normal trading circumstances,
most importantly for the Group within the gaming sector. Despite
the rigour applied, the base case showed & pradominantly positive
cash balance throughout the year and at no stage would the
overdraft facility be breached or close to a breach. Vanous plausible
but severe downside scenarios were then applied to the base case
linked to the trading conditicns seen in the 2021 financial year,
assuming that revenues would not improve and even that margins
would deteriorate an the sama lavel of trade. Again, the results
showed sufficient cash headroom throughout the outlook period.
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The base case was then reverse stress tested and the ievel of
deterioration raquired for the Group to become close to the
banking headroom was deemed to be highly unlikely.

Cash and funding position

As a result of the actions taken by the Directors during the year,
positive cash balances were maintained throughout and ended
the year at £6.4 million. Undrawn facilities of £3 miilion were held
throughout the period. Despite the central forecast indicating that
the Group should not requirs to draw upon overdraft facilities for
the foreseeable future, the Directors have secured, as a matter of
nrudence, an overdraft facility of £3 million with Lloyds Bark until
January 2022,

Conclusion

Based on alt of the work performed, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adeguate resources 1o continue in
operational existence for the foresecable future without any material
uncertainty. For this reason, the Diractors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial stataments

Annual General Meating {("AGM'}

The notice convening the AGM is distributed separately to
shareholders at least 21 working days before the meeting.
Separate Resolutions are proposed an gach substantially separate
1559, The polt results from the 2022 AGM will be made available
on the Company’s website aftor the meeting.

Auditor

As detailed in the Audit Committee Report, RSM UK Audit LLP
has been re-appointed by the Board as the Company's extsrnal
auditor, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee.
Agcordingly, 2 Resolution for the re-appointment of RSM UK
Audit LLP as auditor of the Company is 10 be proposed at the
forthceming AGM.

Stratagic Report

The infarmation required by schedule 7 of the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reparts)
Regulaticns 2008, in respect of future developments and risks
and=uncertainties, has been included in the Stratagic Reportin
accordance with section 414Ct11) of the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Having mads the required gnquiries, so far as the Directors are
aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by section
418(3) of the Companies Act 2008) of which the Company's
auditor is unaware and each Director has taken all steps that ought
to have been taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to ensure that the Company’s auditor is aware

of that information.




Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the Group and Parant Company financial statements in accordance
with applicabls law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements far each financial year. The
directors have elected under company law tc prepare the Group
financial statements in accardance with international accounting
standards in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 20086 and have elected te prepare the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with international accounting
standards in canformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and applicable law.

The Group and Cormnpany financial statements are required by law
and internaticnal accounting standards in conformity with the
reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 to present fairly the
financial position of the Group and the Company and the financial
performance of the Group. The Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation te such financial statements that references in the relevant
part of that Act to financial stetements giving a true and fair view
are referances to their achieving a fair presantation_

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statemnents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and
of their profit or loss for that peried. In preparing each of the Group
and Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant,
reliable and prudent;

for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requiremants of the
Cuompanies Act 20086;

s for tha Parent Company financial statemants, state whether
applicable international accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explainegd in the financial statements;

+ assass the Group and Parent Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to
going congern; and

+ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Group or Parent Company or cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008.

They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasanabily open ta thern 1o safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulzrities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Diractors are alsa
responsibte for preparing a Strategic Report and a Directors’
Report that comply with that law and those regulations

The Diractors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
wehsite. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from lagislation

in other jurisdicticns.

The Dirgctors confirm that to the best of thair knowledge:

» the financial statements, prepared in accordance with
internaticnal accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Campanies Act 20086, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial pasition and profit ar loss
of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole;

+ the Strétegic Report includes a fair review of the development
and perfermance of the business and the paosition of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
takan as a whaole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face; and

the Annual Report and financial staternents, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position
and performance, business model and strategy.

Forward-looking statements

This report may contain certain statements about the future
outlook for Synectics pic. Although the Directors believe their
expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, any statements
about future outlook may be influenced by factors that could cause
actual outcomes and results to be materially different.

The Directors’ report has been approved by the Board.

By Order of the Board

Claire Stewart
Company Secretary

22 February 2022
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Financial statements
Independent auditor's report
To the members of Synectics plc

Independent auditor’s report

Gpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Synectics plc {the
‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year
ended 30 Novembar 2021 which comprise the consolidated income
statermnent, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement
of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement, company
statement of comprehensive income, company statement of
changes in equity, company statement of finencial position and
notas to the financial statements, including significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied
in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable
law and International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 Novernber
20217 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Acceunting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

e the parent company financial statements have been properly
wprepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requiremants of the Companies Act 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intarnational Standards
on Auditing (UK} {1543 {UK)) and applicable law. Our respansibilities
under those standards ara further described inthe Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section

Summary cof our audit approach

Graup
s Revanue racognition
s Goodwillimpairment

Key audit matters

Parent Company

of our repost. We are independent of tha group and the parent
company in accordance with the ethicat requirements that are
refevant to cur audit of the finangial staterents in the UK, including
the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiremnents. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is suffictent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions reiating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial staternents is appropriate. Our evaluztion of
the directors’ assassment of the group’s and parent company’s ability
to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

* Assessing the eash flow forecasts, which cover a period to
March 2023, together with expected headroom over the facilities
in place and challenged the assumptions used by management;

Considering management's sensitivities against recent trading
performance and the resulting potential impact on headroom
within agreed facilities;

» Considering the performance of the various sectors in which
the group cperates and the relative risks to revenues from those
ssetors, and uncertainties regarding timing of recovery from
the impact of Covid-19, and whather these have been included
in sensitivities used by management; and

* Reviewing the group’s going cancern disclosures included in
the annual report in order to assess that the disclosures were
approprigte and in conformity with reporting standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified
any material uncertainties relating tc events or conditions that,
individually er collectively, may cast significant doubt an the
group's or the parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with
respect to going concern are describad in the relevant sections of
this report.

» impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Materiality Group

o Overall materiality: E475,000 (2020: £550,000)
& Performance materiality: £356,000 (2020: £412,000)

Parent Company

e Overall materiality: £180,000 (2020: £525,000)
o Performance materiality: £135,000 (2020; £384,000)

Scope

Our audit procedures covered 84% of ravenue, 89% of total assets and 699% of loss befare tax.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those rmatters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the group and parent
caompany financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or
not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the group and parent

company financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide & separate cpinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Key audit matter description

The Group recognised revenue ul £42.6m (2020: £44.6my), a substantial elerment of this revenue and
profit is recognised from non-recurring contracts, which may span accounting pencds. Contract
accounting requires the assessment of the stage of compietion of each contract and likely outcoms of
the contract in order 1o determine the revenue and profit to be recognised.

Refer to Audit Committee Report (pages 43 to 45), accounting palicies and critical accounting
estimates and judgements {pages 71 and 72) and financial disclosures {note 3 —pages 74 and 75}

There is a risk of misstatement resulting from inappropriate recognition bases being used and
inaccurate estimates being made.

How the rartter was
addressed in the audit

QOur procedures included but were not restricted to:

» A review of the appropriateness of the revenue recognition and contract accounting policies and

practices;

Evaluation of the controls in place 10 assess the accuracy of the stage of complstion and likely

outcome of the contracts;

Testing a sample of contracts to agree details to supporting documentation and consider and

chaltenge the contract accounting estimates;

o A review of significant old accrued income balances; and

* Aretrospective review of the outcome of contracts in progress at the prior year end to assess the
validity of the estimates applied in the prior period.

Goodwill impairment

Key audit matter description

The Group has a carrying value of goodwill of £19.8m (2020: £20.1m} - refer to Audit Committee
Report (pages 43 to 45}, accounting policies and critical aceounting estimates and judgements

{pages 85 and 86) and financial disclosures (note 16 - pages 93 and 94). The risk is that the goodwill is
not recoverable and should be impaired.

Impairment testing requires management to identify appropriate cash generating units ("CGU"),
identify the carrying amaunt of each CGU, including its goodwill, and determine whether the higher

of fair value less cost to sell and the value in use for the CGU, based on the net present value of the
forecast earnings of the CGU, exceeds the carrying amount. Impairment testing involves a significant
degree of judgement due {o the level of estimation involved in forecasting future performance and
setting appropriate assumptions regarding discount rates, growth rates and working capital movements.

How the matter was
addressed in the audit

Qur procedures inciuded but were not restricted to:

« A gritical assessment of the key assumptions made in determining the recoversble amounts of

each CGU, with particular facus on poorer performing components;

Considering whather the CGU raflect the IAS 36 requirement that they reprasent the smallest

identifiable group of assets that generate cash flows that are largely independent and, whethar,

if an altarnative view was takan there would be any impact on the impairment assessment;

* Agreeing the forecast future performance to the most recently approved business pian;

« Considering the forecasts in the cantext of historical forecasting accuracy and our understanding
of the sectors in which the Group operates;

» Considering the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the calculation of the discount rates

used, including comparison with external data sources;

Undertaking our own sensitivity analyses; and

Assessing the appropriatenass of the Group's disclosures about the sensitivity of their

impairment assessment.
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of Synectics plc

Key audit matters continued

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries (parent company only)

Key audit matter description

At 30 November 2021 the parent company balance sheet includes investments of £35.8m
{2020: £35.8m). Refer to accounting policies and critical accounting judgements {pages 85 and 86)
and financial disclosures (note 6 - pages 108 to 110). The risk is that the investments are impaired and

require writing down.

How the matter was
addrassed in the audit

Cur procedures included but were not limited to:

» £ gritical assessment of the kay assumptions made in determining the recoverable amounts of
gach investment, with particular focus on the poorer performing subsidiaries;

Considering whether the investments are supported by future cash flows across the divisions;
Agreeing the ferecast future performance to the most recently approved business plan, and

confirming these are consistent with those usad for the assessrment of goodwill impairment and

going concern;

of the sectors in which the Group operates;

Cansidering the forecasts in the context of historical forecasting accuracy and cur understanding

Considering the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the calculation of the discount rates

used, including comparison with external data sources;

s Undertaking our own sensitivity analyses; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's disclosures about the estimates used.

Qur application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain threshotds which help us to determine the nature, timing and extsnt of our
audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whale,
could reasonably influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the size of the
misstatements. Based an our professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Cverall materiality

Group

£475,000 (2020: £650,000}

Parent company

£180,000 (2020 £525,000)

Basis for determining
overall materiality

0.9% of average revenue over the prior 3 years

0.4% of net assets

Rationale for benchmark applied

Revenua has been chosen as revenue levels are
considered the key driver for the business given

a largely fixed cost base,

Given the significant impact of the Covid-18
pandemic on the results which {s expected to be
a tempaorary impact, an average of the prior 3-year
revenue has been used as the benchmark.

MNet assets chesen as the parent company is a
holding company. As a non-revenue generating
entity, shareholder focus is on the value of
assets held.

Parformance materiality

£356,000(2020: £412,000)

£135.000(2020: £334,000)

Basis for determining
performance materiality

75% of cverall materiality

75% of overall materiality

Reporting of misstatements
to the Audit Committee

Misstatements in excess of £24,000 and
misstatements below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Misstatements in excess of £8,000 and
misstatements below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The group consists of 8 components, located in the following countries; UK, Singapore, USA, Germany, Macau.

The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

16% M%

Revenue Total assets

84% 89%

31%

Loss
before tax

Full scope

69% Analytical procedures

Fuli scope audits were performed for b compenents and analytical pracedures at group level for the rernaining 3 components

Of the above, full scope audits for 1 component were undertaken by component auditors.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and cur auditor’'s
report thareon. The directors are responsible for the other informaticn
contained within the annual report. Cur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other infarmation and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
It we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to @ material misstaternent in the financisl statements
themselves If, based an the work we have performed, we
concludea that there is a material misstatemeant of this other
information, we are regquired 1o report that fact.

We have ncthing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In aur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistant with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

‘Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and
the parent company and their anvironment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatemants in the
Strategic Report or the Directars’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 reguires us 1o report to
yaus if, i our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, of returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches rot visited by us; or

the parent company firancial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

we have not received all the infermation and explanations we
require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set
out on pages 66 and 67, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine 15 necessary 1o enabie the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether dug to fraud ar error.

In preparing the financial staternents, the directors are responstble for
assessing the group's and the parent company's ability 10 continue as
a going coneern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o geing
concern and using the going concarn basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Cur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial staterments as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to rssue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but 1s nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
{UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, indwdually or i~ the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected 10
Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bas:s of these
financial statements.
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Financial statements
Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of Synectics ple

The extent to which the audit was considered capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regardmg compliance with laws and
regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material
amaunts and disclosures in the financial statements, ta perform audit
procedures 1o help identfy instances of non-compliance with other
laws and regulations that may have a material eftect on the financial
statgments, and 1o respond appropriately to identified or suspected
non-¢ompliance with laws and regulations identified durning the audit.

In relation 1o fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and
assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements
due to fraud., to obtain sufficent appropriate audit evidence regarding
the assessed nsks of matenal misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

Howaever, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the
oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the

entity’s operations are conducted in accardance with the provisions
of laws and regulatiens and for the prevention and detection of fraud

Legisiation / Regulation

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in
respect of rregularities, Including fraud, the group audit
engagement team and component auditors:

» cbtained an understanding of the nature of the industry and sector,
including the legal and regulatary frameworks that the group and
parent company operate in and how the group and parent company
are complying with the legal and reguiatory frameworks;

enquired of management, and those charged with governance,
about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged
instances of fraud;

discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations
and how fraud might oceur including assessmeant of how and
where the financial statements may be susceptible 10 fraud.

All relevant laws and regulations identified at a Group level and areas
susceptible ta fraud that could have a raterial effect on the financa!
stataments were communicated to component auditors. Any instances of
nen-comgpliance with laws and regulations identified and communicated
by a component auditor were considered in our audit approach

Ihe most significant laws and regulaticns were determined as follows:

Additionat audit procedures performea by the Group audit engagement team and component avaitass included,

IFRS, FRS101, Companies = Review of the financial staternent disclosures and testing to supporting documentation;

Act 2006 and AIM Rules

» Completion of disclosure checklists to identify areas of non-compliance

Tax compliance regulations » Inspaction of advice received from external tax advisers;

* input fram a tax specialist was obtained regarding the tax accounting and disclosures.

Health and safety
regulations and industry
accraditations

ISAs limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enguiry
of management and where appropriate, those charged with governance {as noted sbove) and inspection ot
legal and regulatory correspondence, if any.

The areas that we identified as being susceptible 10 material misstatement due to fraud were:

Risk Audnt procedures perforred by the audit angagement team:

Revenue recogrition B See key audit matters above.

Management
averride of controls

= Testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments;
» Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potentiai bias; and

e Evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal

course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {s located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at' http://www.frc.org.uk/audrtorsrespansibilities. This descrniption forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 1o the company’s members, as a body.
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
cormpany’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone
other than the corpany and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit waerk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 30 November 2021

2021 2020
Bafora Before
noa- MNan- non- Nan-
underlying underlying underlying  underlying
itams itams’ Total items items! Totai

Note £000 £000 £000 ja+hala] EQDG £ooo
Revenue 2,3 43,595 - 43,595 44,648 - 44,648
Cost of sales excluding other income {27,993) - (27,993) {30.054) - (30,054
Other income? 4 1 - 1 418 - 416
(Cast of sales {27,932} - 127,992} {29,638} - (29,638)
Gross profit 15,603 - 15,603 13,010 - 15,010
Operzting expenses (16,484) - {16,464} 119,857) {2,181) {22,038)
Other ingome? a 387 - 387 380 - 880
Loss from operations {474) - {474) {6,967) (2,181) {6,148)
Finance income 10 - - - 124 - 124
Finance costs 1 [121) - (121} 1263) - (263)
Loss before tax {695) - {695} (4,1086) {2,181} {6,287)
Income tax credit 12 118 - 116 1,199 417 1,616
Loss for the year attributable to aguity holders of tha
Parent Company (478) - (479} {2,907} {1,764) 4,671)
Basic loss par share 14 {2.8)p 17.2)p 27.7p
Diluted (Joss)/earnings per share 14 {2.8)p 127.7p

1 Underlying {loss)/profit before tax and non-underlying items; sea note € for further detail. Underlying earnings per share are based on {lossi/profit after tax

but before non-underlying items

2 Other income represants government grant income received in relatron to Covid-12. See note 4 for further detail.

Cansolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 November 2021

2021 2020

£000 £000

Loss for the year (479} (4,61}

Hems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined bensfit pension scheme, net of tax {1,073) 492

(1.073) 492

tams that may be reclfassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 37 39

Gains/llosses) cn a hedge of a net investment taken ta equity (184) 160
[147) 199

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Paremt {1,699) (3,980)
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Financial statements
Consolidated statemant of financial position
As gt 30 November 2021

2021 2020

Note £000 £006
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment’ 15 4,981 5243
Intangible assets 1€ 21,728 22,155
Retirement benefit asset 28 - 1,325
Deferrad tax assets 12 2,462 1,864

239,161 30,587
Current assets
Inventories 17 3,938 4,661
Trade and other receivables 18 11,186 9.013
Contract assets 3 5244 8,185
Tax assots - 505
Cash and cash equivaients 19 4,641 6,864
24,977 29,228

Tota] assets 54,138 58,815
Current liabilities
Trade and othar payables 20 {12,802} {12,838}
Contract liabilities 3 13,096) {4,295)
Lease lianilities 21 818) 1370)
Tax liabilizies - (B3
Current provisions 22 1487) (1,621

{15,301) {19,688)

Non-current liabllities

Non-current provisions 22 {921) (575)
Lease fiabilities 2% 2,023) 1,920
Defarred tax liahilities 12 (543) son
(3,433) (3.09€)
Total abilities 18,794}  (22,784)
Naot assets 35,344 37,031
Equity attributabla to equity halders of the Parent Company
Cailag up share capital 23 3,555 3,559
Shareg premium account 16.043 16,043
Marger reserve 9,971 397
Othar raserves {1,438} 1,448}
Currency translation reserve 772 ¢15
Retained sarnings 6,435 7,987
Total equity 35,344 37,031

The financial statements on pages 58 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2022
and were signechen its behalf by:

Pau! Webb David Bedford
Chief Executive Finance Director

Company number: 1740011

Synectics pic
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 November 2021

Called up Share Currency
share premium Merger Other  translation Retained
capita account reserve resarves raserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £600 £000 £000 £000 f£Coo
At 1 December 2019 3,559 16,043 9,971 1,499) 720 12,167 40,961
Profit for the year - - - - - 14,671} 4,671)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation adjustment - - - - 199 - 189
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit pension scheme,
net of tax - - - - - 432 492
Total other comprehensive income - - - - 198 492 691
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - - - 192 (4,1791 {3.9801
Transactions with ownaers In their capacity as owners
Credit in relation to share-based payrments {note 5) - - - - - 60 50
Shars scheme interasts realisad in tha year - - - 51 - (1) -
Af 30 Navember 2020 3,559 16,043 9,971 {1,448) 8186 7.987 37031
Loss for the year - - - - - {479 (473}
Cther comprehensive fncome
Currency translaton adiustment - - - - {147} - (147}
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit pension scheme,
net of tax - - - - - {1,073) {1,073)
Total other comprahensive income - - - - {147) {1,073) 1,220}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (147 {1,652} 1,698}
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Credit in relation to share-pased payments (note 25} - - - - - 12 12
Share scheme interests realised in the year - - - 12 - {12 -
At 30 November 2021 3859 18,043 9,971 (1,438) 772 6,435 35,344
Synectics plc
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Financial statements
Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 November 2021

2021 2020
Mot £000 EQODD
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year 479} {4,671)
Incame tax credit 12 (116) (1,616}
Financeg income 10 - {124)
Finance costs 11 k3l 263
Depraciation and amortisation charge 211 2,348
{_oss on disposal of nan-current assets 88 1
Net foraign exchange differences 6 80
Non-underiying items - 2,138
Other inventory write down (658} 448
Cash flow ralating to non-underlying items (1,321} 1,652
Other non-cash movements 14) 359
Share-based payment charge 12 50
Operating cash (outflow}/inflow before movement in working capital (220} {2,356)
Decreass in inventories 1,333 1,969
Decrease in receivables 260 7923
{Decrease} in payables {2,571) (1,778)
Net movement in provisions 394 141
Cash {used in)/generatad from aperations (764) {8,898}
Tax receivedfipaid) 157 (148)
Net cash (used Inj/generatad from operating activities {607} 5751
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 15 (73] (320}
Capitalised development costs 18 {8as} (828}
Purchasad software 16 (154} 81)
Froceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 33 -
Net cash used in investing activities (842) {1,218}
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease payments {1.006} 117
Bank interest paid {12) 133)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,018) {1,3501
Effact of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalants 244 (99)
Net {decrease)/increase in ¢ash and cash aquivalents {2,223) 3,284
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 6,864 3,580
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 4,541 6,864
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year endad 30 Novernber 2021

1 Principal accounting policies

Synectics ple is a public limited company incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in the UK.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staterments are set out below. These pelicies have been
applied consistently to all the periods presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the Companies
Act 2006 {‘adopted IFRS’), and with those parts of the Companias Act 2008 applicable to companies reporting under adopted IFRS.
The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard {'FRS') 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework”; these are presented on pages 83 to 102. The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at
and for the year ended 30 Novernber 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except where the measursment of balances at
fair value is required as set out below. The following policies are those that the Group considers 1o be its principal accounting policies
in respect of its consolidated rasults, These finangial staternents are rounded to the nearest thousand.

The following new standards became applicable for the current reporting period and the Group changed its accounting policies and,
where applicable, made retrospective adjtistments as a result of adopting:

» armendments to IFRS 3, I1AS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform;
» amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material;

s amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business; and

e amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases” Covid-19 Related Rent Cancessions.

Nane of these had a material impact on the financial statements.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2021 but do not have an impact on the consolidated financia!
statements of the Group. The Group has not garly adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Accounting standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted by the
consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 November 2021. The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of
these new or amended accounting standards and interpretations, maost relevant to the consolidated entity, is set oul below.

The following standards and interpretations are apglicable in future pericds but are not expected to have a significant impact on the
cansotidated financial statements:

¢ IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts’;

+ amendments to 1FRS 3: Definition of a Business;

» amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2;
= amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’;

» amendments to |AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets’;

annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2028 Cycle; and

amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases”: Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,

s amendments to |AS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from Single Transaction;

amendmenis to 1AS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates;
* amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies; and

* amendments 1o IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current,
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Financial statements
Notes te the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

1 Principal accounting policies continued
Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Girectors have reviewed the Group's funding position and
financial forecasts for the foreseeable future. This year, due to the continued uncertainty from the giobal pandemic, this review continued
to include in depth scenaric modelling and stress testing of budget and strategy planning

The Group regularly reviews the risks associated with the business and the Directors are satisfied with the position. The Directors
consider that the Group benefits from a level of diversification within both sectors and geographies that helps mitigate an element of
macre-econemic risk. Despite the challenging trading envirenment experienced in the financial year, this diversification was seen, with
some areas of the business performing better than others.

The Directors guickly tcok action in the priar year which mitigated a Iot of the impact from the pandemic. The positive impact from this,
in particular from the restructuring of the Group, has been extremely successful for the business from a performance perspective. This is
largely due to efficiencies and cost savings which have a leng term benefit gaing forward.

Forecasting and stress testing

The Directors have undertaken a rigorous budgeting and forecasting process with management to understand the impact of the
ecenomic environment on the future of the business. The base case scenario was ternpered by the Dirsctors te reflect the remaining
uncertainty regarding the timing of the return to normal trading circumstances, most importantly for the Group within the gaming sector.
Despite the rigour applied, the base case showed a positiva cash balance throughout the year. Various plausible but severe downside
scenarios were then applied to the base case linked to the trading conditions seen in the 2021 financial year, assuming that revenues
would gnly see a marginal improvement and even that margins would deterigrate on the same leve! of trade. Again, the results showed
sufficient cash headreom throughout the outlook period. The base case was then reverse stress tested and the level of deterioration
required for the Group to become close to the banking headroom was deemed to be highly unlikely.

Cash and funding position

As a result of the actions taken by the Directors during the year, positive cash balances were maintained throughout and ended the year
at £4.9 million. Undrawn facilities of £3 million wera held throughout the period. Despite the central forecast indicating that the Group
should net require to draw upon overdraft facilities for the foreseeable future, the Directors have secured, as a matter of prudence,

an overdraft facility of £3 million with Lloyds Bank until January 2023,

Conclusion

Based on ali of the work performed, the Directors have a reasanable expactation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operatienal existence for the foreseeable future without material uncertainty. For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial staterments.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights tg, variable returns from
its involvernent with the entity and has the ability ta affect those returns through its power over the entity. In agsessing control, the Group
takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred
to the acquirer. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control
Changas in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Where the Group loses contro! of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities are derecognised along with any related nan-controlling interest
and other components of equity. Any resuiting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary
is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising fram intra-Group transactions, are eliminatad.
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1 Principal accounting policies continued
Goodwill

Goodwitl is recorded at cost, being tha excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair vaiue at the date of acquisition of the Group’s share
af identifiabie assets, liabilities and cantingent liabilities, less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units ('CGUs") expectad to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or mare frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goedwill allocated 1o the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the hasis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for geodwill would not be
reversed in a subsequent pericd.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sald.
Revenue

Revenue rapresents income derived from contracts for the provision of goads and services, over time or at a point in time, by the Group,
to customers in exchange for consideration in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

Performance obligations

Upon approval by the parties to a contract, the contract is assessed to identify each promise o transfer either a distinct good or service.
Goods and services are distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations in the contract if the custorner can benefit from
them either on their own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer and they are separately identifiable
in the contract.

The Group has determined that most of its contracts (both installation and maintenance) include a single performance obligation
as the prornises within the contracts are generally not separately identifiable within the contract.

The Group provides warranties to its customers to give them assurance that its products wilt function in line with agreed-upon
specifications. Warranties only represent separate performance obligations where they are deemed to be service-type warranties.

Transaction price

At the start of the contract, the total transaction price is estimated as the amount of considaration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods and services to the customner, excluding szles taxes. Variable consideration, such
as discounts, tiquidatad darnages or penaities, is included based on the expected value or maost likely amount only t¢ the extent that itis
highly probable that there will not be a reversal in the amount of curnulative revenue racognised. The transaction price does not include
estimates of consideration resulting from contract modifications, such as change orders, until they have been approved by the parties to
the contract. Tha total transaction price is allocated to the performance obligations identified in the contract in proportion to their relative
stand-alone selting prices.

Revenue and profit recognition
Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satistied as control of the goods and services is transferred to the customer.

For each performance obligation within a contract, the Group deterrnines wheather it is satisfied over time or at a point in time.
Perfarmance obligations are satisfied over time if one of the following criteria is satisfied:

« the customer simultaneously receives and consumness the benefits provided by the Group's perfarmance as it performs;
o the Group's performance crastes or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

« the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and it has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

The Group has determined that most of its contracts satisfy the over time criteria, either because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's perfarmance as it performs (typically support or maintenance contracts} or the
Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and it has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date (typically installation contracts).
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year endad 30 November 2021

1 Principal accounting policies continuad
Revenue continued
Revenue and profit recognition continued

For each performance method to be recognised over time, the Group recognises revenue using an input method, based on costs incurred
or a5 a propartion of estimated total contract costs or physical proportion of contract work completed in relation to the total. Revenue and
attributable margin are calculated by reference to reliable estimates of transaction price and total expected costs and are therefore
recognised prograssively as costs are incurred or work is completed.

I the over time criteria for revenue recognition are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time that control is transferred
to the customer, which is usually when lega! title passes to the customer and the busingss has the right to payment.

I it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenus, the expected loss is recognised immediately as an expense.

Software licences

The Group has determined that sales of scftware licences are not distinct within the context of the contract and are not the predominant
component of the combined perforenance obligation. Therefore, revenue in relation to software licences is recognised as part of the
single performance obligation.

Contract modifications

The Group’s contracts can be amended for changes in customers’ requirements and specifications. A contract modification exists whan
the parties to the contract approve a modification that either changes existing or creates new enforceable rights and obligations The effact
of a contract madification on the transaction price and the Group's measura of progress towards the satisfaction of the performance
obligation to which it relates is recognised in one of the following ways:

1. prospectively, as an additional, separate contract;
2. prospectively, as a termination of the existing contract and creation of 2 new contract; or
3. as part of the criginal cantract using a cumulative catch-up.

The majority of the Group’s contract modifications are tregted in line with paint 2 sbove {for example, a change in the specification of
the distinct goeds or services for a partially completed contract), althcugh the facts and circumstances of any contract modification
are considered individually as the types of modifications will vary contract by contract and may result in different accounting outcomes.

Warranty arrangements

The Group provides both assurance and service-type warranties. Assurance-type warranties are accounted for in accordance with [AS 37
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’; an estimate of costs is expensed as a provision. Revenue in relation to service-type
warranties is deferred gver the term of the warranty and no cost pravision is made.

Costs of obtaining a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are recognised as an asset if the Group expects 10 recover them.
The Group incurs costs such as bid cost, legal fees and sales commission when it enters into a new ¢antract.

Judgement is applied by the Group when determining what costs qualify to be capitalised in particular when considering whether these
costs are incremental and whether these are expected to be recoverable. Far example, the Group considers which type of sales commissions
are incremental to the cost of obtaining specific cantracts and the point in time when the costs will be capitalised.

The Group applies the practical expediant within IFRS 15 not to capitalise costs on contracts that are less than one year in length.
Caosts incurred pricr to winning a contract are not capitalised, but expensed as incurred.

Contract balances

An unconditianal right ta consideration is disclosed as a receivable and a conditional right to consideration is disclosed separately as a
contract asset. in addition, any chligation of the Group to transfer gocds or services to a customer for which cansideration has already
been received is disclosed separately as a contract liability.
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1 Principal accounting policies continued
Government grants

The Group has received funding from various governments in relation to Covid-19. Government income is recognised in profit or loss
(within other income) on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate, Where 1t is not yet considered highly probable that governrment funding will not have to be repaid, this element is deferred
on the balance sheet within other creditors.

Foreign currency

The individual financial staterments of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the antity aperates {its functicnal currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial staternents, the results and financial position
of each Group entity are expressed in sterling {'£'), which is the presentation currency for the consclidated financial statements.

In prepanng the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
{foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each Statement of Financial
Position date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retrapslated at the prevailing rates. Non-menetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in torms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, the settiement of which is neither
planned nor kkely in the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised
directly in equity in the translation reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective. When the hedged part of a net investment is
disposed of, the associated cumulative amount in equity is recycled to profit or loss as an adjustment to the profit or loss on disposal.

For the purpgse of presenting consolidated financial staternents, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are expressed
in sterling using exchange rates pravailng at the Staternent of Financial Position date. inccme and expense items are transiated at the
average exchange ratas for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and recognised in the Group's foreign
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposad of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rates prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Retirement benefit costs

Group employees are members of various pension schemes, all of which operate on a money purchase basis. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the Consolidated income Statement as an expense whan employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The Group atso operates a retirement benefit schame, which has deferred defined benefit members. The expected return on the
scheme’s assets and the expected increase in the present value of the scheme's liabilities during the period are includedin the
Consclidated Income Statement as other finance inccme and charges as appropriate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Pension scheme liahilities and, to the extent that they are recoverable, pension
scheme assets are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Finaneial Position and represent the difference between the market
value of the scheme’'s assets and the prasent value of the scheme’s liabilities.

Pension scheme liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at a rate using
the current rate of return on & high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the fiability. Past service cost is recognised
immediataly to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
untif the benefits become vested.
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Financial statements
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

1 Principal accounting policies continued
Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS 2, equity-settied share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value is
racognised as an employee expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of
shares that will eventually vest. The fair value of the opticns granted is calculated using an option pricing model which is based on the
Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

Transactions of the Company-sponsored Executive Shared Ownership Plan are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore
reflectad in the Parant Company and Group finarcial statements. In particular the scheme’s purchases of shares in the Company are
debited directly to equity, within “Other reserves”.

Taxation

The income tax credit/expense is the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit/(loss} for the year. Taxabls profit/{loss) differs from profit/{loss) as reported in the
Consolidated Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
turther excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is celculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Pasition date.

Defarred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences betwaen the carrying amounts of asserts and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the Statement of Financial Pesition fiability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temperary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the ternporary difference arises
from goadwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other zssets and liabilitias in a transagtion that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxahte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except whare the
Group is able to control the revarsal of the temporary differsnce and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sutficient taxable profits against which to wtilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and habiities are measurad at the 1ax rates that are expected ta apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been engcted or substantively enacted by the Statemant of Financial
Position date. The measuremant of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflacts the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the reporting date. to recover or sattle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is @ legally enforceabie right to set off tax assets against tax liabilities and when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the Group intends to settle 1ts tax assets and liabilities cn a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferrad tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Consolidated Income Statement, except when they relate to
iterns gredited ar debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, ar where they arise fram the initial
accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill
or in determining the excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquires’s identifiable assets, iiabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the business combination.

Non-underlying items

The Group discloses certain financial information both including and excluding non-underlying items. The presentation of information
excluding non-underlying items allows a better understanding of the underlying trading performance of the Group and provides consistency
with the Group's internal management reporting. Non-underlying items are identified by virtue of their size, nature or incidence and the
Dirgctors consider that these items should be separately identified so as to facilitate comparison with prior pericds and ta assess the
underlying trends in the financial performance of the Group.
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1 Principal accounting policies continued
Dividends

Dividends proposed by the Directors and unpaid at the end of the year are nat recognised in the financial statements until they have been
approved by shareholders at a genaral meeting of the Company. interim dividends are racognised when they are paid.

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment {including right of use assets) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land which is not depraciated,
less their estimaied residual values, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, cornmencing on the first day of the month aftar
being brought into use. The principal annual rates used for this purpose ara:

+ Freshold buildings -2%
» Leasehold property and right of use assets - the shorter of term of the lease or the useful economic |ife of the asset
» Plant, machinery and equipment -10% to 33%

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
Gains or losses on disposal are includad in the Consolidated Income Staterment.

Research & development costs
Research costs are written off to the Consglidated Income Statement as incurred.

Development costs are capitalised and held as "Intangible assets” in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the costs
relate to a clearly defined project; the costs are separately identifiable; the outcome of such a project has been assessed with reasonzble
certainty as to its technical feasibility and its ultimate commercial viability: the aggregate of the deferred costs plus all future expected
costs in bringing the product to market is exceeded by the future expected sales revenue; and adequate resources are expectad 10 axist
o enable the project to be completed. Amortisation is chargad to operating expenses over the useful life of the product, from the
cammencement of commercial sales, which is usually over a period of thrae to five years.

Amortisaticn periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

This policy includes judgements regarding the initial recognition of the asset based upon market research and expected future net
revenues. It also includes estimations regarding the period of amortisation.

Development costs that do not meet these criteria are written off to the Consoclidated Income Statement as incurred.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, such as purchased computer scftware, are shown at historical cost less accurnulated amortisation
and impairment lossas.

Amertisation is charged to operating expenses in the Consalidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis from the date the assets
ara available for use aver the astimated useful lives of the intangible asset. The useful life of purchased software is three to five years.

Amortisation periods and methads are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each Statement of Financial Position date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets, other than
goodwill, 1o determine whether there is any indication that thase assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment lass (if any}). Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonahle and censistent basis of allocation ¢an be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

The future cash flows used in the value-in-use caiculations are based on the latast five-year financial plans approved by the Board.
Expectations about future growth reflect the expectations of growth in the markets in which the CGU operates. The discauntrate is
derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital, which is assessed each year. The discount rate used in each CGU
is adjusted for the risk specific 1o that CGU, The Diractors perform sensitivity anatysis tc determine whether any reasenably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverabie amounts are based would cause the CGUs’ ¢arrying amounts to exceed the
recoverable amaunts.
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Financial statements
Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

1 Principal accounting policies continued
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset lor CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in income,

Where an impalrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU} is increased to the ravised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in income. Goodwill is assessed for impairment gn an annual basis.

Inventories

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first in first cut basis. n the case of finished goods, cost includes
all direct expenditure and production overheads based on the normat fevel of activity. Where necessary, an eppropriate allowance is made
for cbsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the Consoclidated Statemaent of Financial Position when there is a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probabla that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made cf the obligatian.

The amount recegnised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present abligation at the Statement
of Financial Position date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Restructuring

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has created

a consiructive obligation by raising a valid expectation in those affected that it will be carried out.

Warranty provisions

The Group provides both assurance and service-type warranties. Assurance-type warranties are accounted for in accordance with
I1AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; an estimate of costs (s expensed as a provision. Revenue in relation
to service-type warranties is defarred over the lerm of the warranty and no cost provision is made,

Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or

an equity instrument in accardance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Hedge accounting is undertaken by the Group
in respect of a balance sheet hedge of a net investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivaients comprise cash held by the Group and shart-term bank deposits and bank current accounts.

Trade receivabias and contract assets

Trads receivables and contract assets are initially recognised at fair value; they are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The carrying amount of these balances approximates to fair value due o the short maturity of amoumts receivable.

Trade receivables and conwract assets are assessed for impairment using an expected credit loss 'ECL) madel. The Group applies

a simplified approach in calculating ECLs; therefors, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs, at initial recognition and at each subsequent reparting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical experience over a period of 24 months before 30 November 2021, adjusted for ferward-looking
factors such as the economy and particular market issuss. All reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort is considered. The provision rates are based on days past dus for groupings of various customer segments (i.e. by
geography and business activities]. Once recognised, trade receivables and contract assets are continuously monitored and updated.

Forward contracts

The Group enters into forward contracts from time to time in order to mitigate the Group's expeosure 1o the risk arising from fluctuation
in currency exchange rates, Open forward contracts are measurad at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and lease liabilities

Trade and other payables and lease liabilities are initialty recognisad at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying ameunt of these balances approximates to fair value due to the short maturity of amaunts payabie.

Synectics plc
70 Annual Report and Accounts 2021




1 Principal accounting policies continued
Financial instruments continued
Financial liabilities continued

Loans and barrowings

Loans and berrowings comgrise bank overdrafts.

Offsetting of financial assats and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if
there is a currently enforceable iegal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities stmultaneously. To meet these criteria, the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future event
and must be legally enforceable in all of the foliowing circumstances: the normal course of business, the event of default and the event
of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Leases

Post adoption of IFRS 16, the Group considers whether a contract is {or contains! a lease, defined as “a contract, or part of a contract,
that convays the right to use an asset for a pericd of time in exchange for consideration”. In applying this definition the Group assesses
whether the contract mests three key evaluations, which are whether: (a) the contract contains an identified asset either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly by being identified at the time the asset is made available for use; (b} the Group obtains substantially
all economic benefits throughaout the period of use; and (¢} the Group has the right to direct the use of the assat.

Upon lease commencament, the Group recognises a right of use ((ROU’) asset and a lease liability. The ROU asset is recognised at cost,
consisting of the initial measusement of the lease liability, any direct costs incurred in asranging the l2ase and any net payments mada in
advance of commencement. The Group depreciates the ROU asset on a straight-line basis from commencement to the earlier of the end
of its useful life or the end of the lease term. The Group assesses the ROU assat for impairment when any indicators are present. At
cammencement, the Group measures the lzase ligbility as the present vatue of future lease payments, discounted at the interest rate
implicit in the lsase {if readily available) or tha Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payrnents included in the measurement of the
lease liabitity consist of fixed payments and amounts arising from options that are reasonably certain to be exercised Service payments
are recognisad in the Consolidated Income Statement in line with their usage. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced by the valug of payments made and increased by accrued interest.

The Group has used the slection not to apply IFRS 16 to short-term leases or leases of low-value assets. Payments in relation ta thase
are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. We continually evaluate our
estimates, judgements and associated assumptions based on avallable information, experience and any other factors that are considered
to be relevant. As the use of estimates is inherent in financial reporting, actual results may diffar from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affacts both current and future periods. To date there has besn no
material impact on the carrying value of assets or liabilities from such estimates.

Management has discussed its significant estimates and associated disclosures with the Audit Committee. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity are described below:

Estimates

Revenue recognition

The ultimate profitability of contracts is based on estimates of revenue and costs which are raliant on the knowledge and experience
of the Group's project managers and finance and commercial professionals. Material changes in these estimates could affect the timing
of profitability of individual contracts. Revenue and cost estimates are reviewad and updated monthly,

The Group datermined that the promises within its contracts are not distinct within the context of the contract. The Group is praviding
a significant integration service which rasults in additional or combined functionality. In addition, the promises are highly inter-related.
Consequently, the Group has determined that most of its centracts inciude a single performance abligation.
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statemsnts continuad
For the year ended 30 November 2021

1 Principal accounting policies continued
Estimates continued
Goodwill

Gaodwilll recognised in a business combination does not generate cash flows independently of other assets or graups of assets. As a
result, the recoverable amount, being the value in use, is determined at a CGU level. The determination of the CGU is judgamental and for
goodwill impairment purposes represents the lowest level within the business at which the goodwill is menitored for internal management
purpeses, and cannot be larger than an operating segment. The refevant CGUs are deemed 1o ba Systems, Synectics Security and $8%
Management Services, which are no larger than the segments identified in the Group's segmental reporting.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs 1 which goodwill is allocated. The
value-in-use calculation includes estimates about future financial performance and long-term growth rates and requires management to
select a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The key assumptions used in the impairment
review are disclosed in ncte 16 1o the financial statements,

Judgements
Provisions

Judgement is required in assessing the level of provisions required against assets, including slow-rnoving and potentially opsolets
inventory, and for ligbilities including onercus property obligaticns and warranties. The Directors use information available at the balance
sheet date to detarmine the level of provisions required and consider whether further information received after the balance shest date
impacts these provisions.

Non-underlying items

Judgement is required in determining which items, by virtue of their size, nature or incidence, should be separately identified and
disclosad as non-underlying items. The Directors assess which items of a non-recurring nature detailed in the Group’s internal management
reparting are of sufficient significance as to warrant separate presentation to provide a better understanding of the trading performance
of the Group.

Retirement benefit schemes

The present value of cbligations is calculated an an actuarial basis which depends on a number of assumptions relating to the future.
These key assumptions are assessed regularly according to market conditions and data available to management,

The pensian buy infout transaction has been presented as two separate transacticns which management have done based on advice
received from the actuaries.

2 Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be determinad based on the Group's intemai reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker {{CODM').
The CODM has been determined to be the Chief Executive as he is primariiy responsible for the allocation of resources to the segments
and the assessment of the performance of each of the segments. Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's strategic
operating segments. The cperating segment reporting format reflects the differing economic characteristics and nature of the services
provided by the Group and is the basis on which strategic and operating decisions are made by the CODM.

The management of the Group's operaticns, excluding Central functions, is organisad within two stratsgic operating segments:
Systems and Security {formerly Integration & Managed Services}. The Systems segment davelops, integrates and delivers resilient,
flexible electronic surveillance solutions based zround its proprietary hardware and software, and pperates globally across 2l sectors.
The Security segment focuses on the design, delivery, maintenance ang management of end-tc-end security and surveillance systems
for high security & public space applications, and operates principally in the UK. These, tegether with Central functicns, comprise the
Graup’s three reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form these reportable segments.

The CODM uses underlying operating prefit, as reviewad at monthly businsess review meetings, as the key measure of the segmaents’
results as it reflects the segments’ underlying trading performance for the period under evaluation. Underlying operating profit is
a consistent measure used within the Group.
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2 Segmental analysis continued

2021 2020
Revenue £000 £000
Systems 20,681 23,645
Security 24,965 21,802
Total segmental revenue 45,626 45,447
Reconciliation to consolidated revenus.
Intra-Group salas {2,031) {799)

43,595 44,648

Na singte customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenues in either year.

2021 2020
Underlying operating profit/{loss} £000 £000
Systems 58 {1.774)
Security 924 (388)
Total segmental underlying operating prafit/{ioss) 882 2,182)
Reconciliation to consolidated undertying cperating loss:
Centrat costs {1,458} (1,305)
(474} (3,967}
Undearlying Pansion Amortisation Total
oparating Lagal buy-out Rastructuring of acquired  operating
profit/{loss]’ provision costs costs intangibles loss
Underlying operating profit/{loss) 2021 £000 £000 £000 £00D £000 £000
Systemns 58 - - - - 58
Security 924 - - - - 924
Total segmental underlying operating loss? 982 - - - - 232
Reconciliation to consalidated underlying operating loss.
Central costs {1,4586) - - - - {1,456)
{474) - - - - {474}
Underlying Pension Amortisaticn Total
operating Legal buy-out  Restructuring of acquired operating
loss' provision costs costs intangibles loss
Underlying operating profit 2020 £000 E0Q0 ECOO £000 £000 E£000
Systems {4.774) 42 - (1,249) - (2,981)
Security (388) - - 1528) - 1516)
Total segmental underlying operating loss? 2182) 42 - (1.777) - (3.897)
Reconciliation ta consolidated underlying cperating loss:
Central costs {1,805) - (15Q) {273} (233 {2,256%)
{3.967) 42 {160) {2,060) 123} (6,14€)

1 Underlying operating loss represents operating profit before non-underlying items (2020 release of cverprovisian for costs on settlement of a legal claim,
costs associated with the defined benefit pension scheme buy-out, restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles,

2 Netfinance axpenses and incorme and incoma tax credit/icharge) are not allocated to segments.
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 Novemnber 2021

2 Segmental analysis continued

Net assets

Net assets attributed to each business segment represent the net external operating assets of the respective businesses excluding
goodwill, bank balances and debt which are shown as unallocated amounts, together with Central assets and liabilities.

2021
Asssts  Liabilities Notassers
£000 000 £000
Systems 21,622 {8,865} 12,757
Sacurity 7.884 {9.665) (1,781}
Yotal segmantai nat assets 29,506 (18.530) 10,976
Recanciliation to consolidated net assets:
Goodwill 19,844 - 19,844
Cash and borrowings 4,641 - 4,641
Unallocated 780 {8971 [117)
54,771 (19,427} 35,344
2020
Assets Llanilities  Net assets
£000 £0600 £0G0
Systams 22,004 9,321} 12,683
Security 9.024 (12,430) (3,408}
Total segmenta! net assets 31,028 (21,751} 9,277
Reconciliation ta consolidated net assets:
Goodwill 20,058 - 20,059
Cash and borrawings 6.864 - 6.864
Unallocated 1,864 {1,033) 831
59,815 (22,784} 37,031
2021 2021 2020 2020
2021 Yotal Capital 2020 Toral Capital
By geographical sagment Revenug assets additions Revenue assets additions
Gaographical location of contract £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £600
U and Europe 32,317 48,710 948 30,548 49,548 319
MNorth America 5,276 3,480 - 3,186 2,550 13
Midale East & Africa 724 350 - 2,600 1,648 -
Agta Pacific 5278 2,230 42 3,334 6,068 396
43,595 54,771 990 44,648 £9,815 728
3 Revenue from contracts with customers
Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:
Systems Security 2021
Revenue by contract lecation 2021 £000 £000 £000
UK and Europe 7.354 24,963 32,317
North Arrerica 5,276 - 5,276
Middle East & Africa 724 - 724
Asia Pagitic 5,278 - 5,278
18,632 24,963 43,595
Systems Security 202G
Revenue by contract location 2020 £000 £000 £000
UK and Europe 8,881 21,687 30,548
North America 3,188 - 3,168
Middle East & Africa 2,600 - 2,600
Asia Pacific 8,208 126 8,334
22,855 21,793 44,648

7 4 Synectlcs ple
Annual Report and Accounts 2021



3 Revenue from contracts with customers continued
Disaggregated revenue informatien continued

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts disclased in the segment informaticn {note 2):

Systarns Sacutity 2021

Reconciliation 1o segmant revenue 2021 £000 £000 £000
Externa! 18,632 24,963 43,6585
Intra-Group 2,023 2 2,031
20,661 24,965 45,828

Systems Security 2020

Reconcfiiation 1o segment revenue 2020 £GO00 E00D [Zalia]
Extarnat 22,855 21,793 44,648
Intra-Group 790 9 799
23,645 21,802 45,447

Set out below is a reconciliation of the timing of revenue showing goods transferred at a peint in time and services transferred over time:

Systems Sacurity 2021

Timing of reverue recognition 2021 £000 £000 £000
Ravenua transfarred at a pointin tima 4,078 9,513 13,591
Revenue transfarred over time 14,554 15,450 30,004
Intra-Group 2029 2 2,031
20,661 24,965 45,626

Systems Security 2020

Timing cof ravenue racognition 2020 £000 E0OOD £000
Ravenus transferrad at 5 pointin time 529 8,820 9,349
Revenus transferrad over tme 22,326 12,972 35,298
intra-Group 790 ] 795
23,645 21,801 45,447

Contract balances

2021 2020

£000 £000

Contract assets 5,244 8,185
Contract liabilities {3,096) {4,295}

Contract assets relate to revenue earned from angoing projects. As such, the balance of this account varies and depends on the number
of ongoing projects at the end of the year. The timing of payment in respect of both contract assets and liabilities varies depending on the
nature and terms of each individua) contract, with payment sometimes being before and sometimes after satisfaction of the corresponding

performance obligations. No expected credit loss has been recoegnised in refation to the contract asset as the Group’s historical
experience shows that no credit losses have been incurred.

Contract liabilities relate to short-term advances received to deliver ongoing projects.

£4.3 million {2020: £4.1 million) of the contract liakilities balance at 1 December 2020 was recognised as revenus during the year.
No revenue was recognised in the current year in relation to performance obligations satisfiad, or partially satisfied in previous years.

Performance cbligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance abligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied} as at 30 November 2020
that are expected to be recognised over more than one year is £8.7 million {2028: £18.0 millien}. These performance obligations relate

predominantly to the provision of service and maintenance contracts.

The Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient within IFRS 15 not to disclose the amount of the remaining performance

obligations for contracts with original expected duration of less than one year.
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

4 Other income

The Group applied for various government suppert prograrmmes introduced in response to Covid-19.

Payroi! support

Included in profit orloss is £23,000C (2020: £1,062,000) of government grants obtained relating to supporting the payroll of the Group’s
employees. The Group has elected to present this govsrnment grant separately rather than reducing the refated expense. The Group
had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll expenses. The Group dees not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to these
programmes.

Forgivable ioans

The Group received a forgivable loan of £291,000 {(2020: £312,000) from the federal government of the United States of America. There
are a number of eriteria relating to how much of this loan might be forgiven all of which were mat before 30 November 2021, £364,000
{2020: £234,000) has been included in profit or loss for the year. The current year includes £73,000 which was received in the priar year
but not recognised due to the Directors taking a prudent approach and not recegnising ali of the forgivable loan received due to
torgiveness not being granted. tn prior year the £73,000 was inciuded within creditors despite full forgiveness having been applied for.

All of the above amounts have been received in cash in the year.

§ Net operating expenses

2021 2020
£000 £000
Pistribution costs 249 212
Administrative expensgs (before non-underlying items) 16,215 19,645
Non-underlying itarms (note §) - 218t
Total administrative expenses 16,215 21,826

16,464 22,038

6 Non-underlying items

2021 2020
£000 £000
{Releasal/accrual of costs associated with settlement of a legal claim - 142)
Costs associated with the restructuring of the Systems division - 1,249
Costs associated with the restructuring of the Security division - 528
Costs associated with restruciuring Centra! oparations " 273
Costs associated with the buy-out of the defined benafit pension scherme - 150
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - 23
- 2,181

The Systems restructuring costs ineurred during 2020 refated to the consolidation of the Munich office into Berlin, along with a review
of the cost base across the Systems division.

Tne $ecurity restructuring costs incurred during 2020 relate to the merger of Synectics Mobile Systems into Quadrant Security Group
{i.e. the formation of "Synectics Sacurity”}, along with a review of the cost base across the whole Security division.

The Central restructuring costs incurred during 2020 relate to the closure of the Group’s Studley office and consolidation of Head Cffice
functions inta Shetfield.

The accrual of costs associated with an ongoing buy-out of the defined benafit pension scheme reprasent the estimated costs to be incurred
by the Group in order to wind up the scherme. Full disclosure is included in note 28.
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7 Auditor’s remuneration

2021 2020
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 56 51
Fees payable to the Company’s suditor for other services 1o the Group’
- the audit of the Campany's subsidiaries pursuant 10 logislation 132 129
Naon-audit services 3 -
191 180
8 Loss from operations
2021 2020
£000 EOOO0
Loss from operations is stated after charging:
Amartsation of intangible assets 955 570
Depraciation of proparty, plant and equipment — owned assels 237 537
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment - right of use assets 9229 1.084
Nat foreign exchange losses 77 136
Write {backi/down of inventones recogrised as an axpense {658} 783
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 18,900 20,491
Research & development costs 2,800 3,193
Rentai paymeants under leases.
- short-life/low-value leases 191 250
9 Staff costs and Directors’ remuneration
The average rurnber of persons {including Executive Directorsi employed by the Group during the year was:
2021 2020
Numbar Number
Reportable sagment {see note 2)
Systems 155 172
Security 153 182
Central 20 13
328 369
2021 2020
£000 £000
Staff costs
Wages and szlaries 14,661 18,277
Social securlty costs 1,389 1,662
Pensian costs 926 982
Share-based payment charge {note 25} £8 50
17,044 18,971

The Directors consider that the key management personnel of the business comprises its Baard of Directors, whosa remuneration
is shown in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 46 to 49. Details of the remuneration for key management personnel are set

out in note 26,

10 Finance income

Interest income on pansion scheme assets (note 28}

2021 2020
£000 £000
- 124
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

11 Finance costs

2021 2020
£0a0 £000
Interest payabie on bank overdrafts 12 33
Interest payable on lease liabilities 109 119
Interest on pension scheme lizbllities (note 28} - m
121 283
12 Taxation
w21 2020
Tax {credit}/charge £000 £000
Current taxation
K tax 285 4
Overseas tax - {473}
Adjustmaents in respect of prior periods - 173
Total current tax charge/{credit) 285 642)
Defarrad taxation
Qrigination and reversal of tampotrary differences (927) {913)
Adjustmeants in respect of prior pariods 526 a8
Total deferred tax (credit] {401) 974
Tota! tax eredit for the year (118} (1,618)
Further analysed as tax relating tc:
Underlying profic {116} {1,199}
Mon-underlying itermns - 417)

Reconciliation of tax {credit)/charge for the year

The corporation tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% {2020: 19%,). The differences

are explained below!:

2021 2020
£000 £000

{Loss)/prafit on ordinary activities before tax [{595) 6.287)
Tax on {lossl/profit an ordinary activities before tax at standard rate of 1% {2020: 19%) {113} (1,195}
Etfects of:

Net affact of different rates of tax in overseas businesses (272) n

Tax losses not recognised 142 180
Utilisation of praviously unrscognised tax losses (81} -

Nst parmanent differsnces {493} 377
Effect of changes in tax rates and tax laws 2 (80)
Other differences and (income)/expenses not deductible for tax purposes 153 79

Adjustmant in respect of prior periods 526 {234j
Total tax credit for the year (116} {1.616)

The Group's tax rate is sensitive to a geographic mix of profits and reflects a combination of higher rates in the US and lower rates
in Singapore and Macau. The Group's affactive tax rate in 2027 has been impacted by R&D tax relief and current year losses, as well as

an increase in the recognition of US net operating losses as a result of the CARES Act.
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12 Taxation continued
Deferred tax

The defesred tax in the Censclidated Statement of Financial Position relates te the following:

Property. Other Retirement

plantand  temporary benefit
equipment  differences asset Losses Total
Daferred tax {liability)/asset £000 £000 €000 EOQC £000
At 1 December 2019 {229 3651 117\ 1,163 452
{Charged)/credited to the Income Statarment (90} 32 - 1,032 974
Charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income - (135} - (135)
Currency translaticn adjustment - 2 - (30) (28}
At 30 Novemper 2020 {319} {331} 1252} 2,165 1,263
{Chargedl/cradited to the Income Statement 19 (78} - 598 401
Credited to the Staterment of Comprehensive income - - 252 - 262
Currency translation adjustment - [#3] - {11} {(13)
At 30 November 2021 (438) 411} - 2,752 1,803

During the year an increase in the main rate of corporation tax in the UK 10 25% was substantially enacted, taking effect from 1 April 2023.
Factors that may affect future tax charges

Deferred tax assets of £1.9 miflion (2020: £2.3 millicn) have been recognised in relation to legal entities which suftered a tax loss in the
current or preceding pericds. The assets are recognised based upon future taxable profit forecasts for the entities concerned.

The Group has further losses which may be available to be carried forward for ofiset against the future taxable profits of certain Group
campanies amouniting to approximately £6.6 million {2020: £6 2 miilion). Ne deferred tax asset (2020: £nil} in respect of these losses has
been recognised at the year end as the Group does not currently anticipate being able to offset these against future profits.

In addition to the above, the Group has capital losses of approximately £17.8 million (2020: £17.8 million} availlable for offset against future
taxable gains. Mo deferred tax asse? in respect of these losses has been recognised in these financial statements as there is insufficient
certainty that the asset will ba recovered against future capital gains.

13 Dividends

The following dividends were paid by the Company during the year:

2021 2020
Penca Pence
per shars £000 per share £000

Final dividend paid in respect of prior year but not recognisad as a liability in that year - -
tnterim dividend pard in respect of current year -

Tota! dividend paid, net of treasury share dividends -

Proposed fina! dividend for the year ended 30 Novamber -

The Directors recommend the payrent of a final dividend of 1.5p per share held at 30 November 2021 {2020: £nil). No interim dividend
was paid during 2021 (2020: £nil}.

14 Earnings per share

2021 2020

Pence Pence

per share per share

Basic (ioss)/earnings per share {2.8) {27.7)
Diluted (lossifearnings per share (2.8) 220
Underlying (loss)/basic earnings per share {2.8) (17.2}
Underlying {loss)/diluted earnings per share {2.8) 17.2)

Loss per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent after taxation for each financial year
by the weighted average nurmbar of ordinary shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year.
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

14 Earnings per share continued

The calculations of basic and underlying earnings per share are hased ugon:

2021 2020

£000 £000
(Loss)fearnings for basic and diluted earnings per share {479) 4,671
Ngn-underlying itemns - 2181
Impact of non-underlying items on tax credit for the year - {417}
{Loss)/earnings for underlying basic and underlying diluted earnings per share {479) {2,907
2021 2020

a00 juluied

Waighted average numaber of ordinary shares - basic calculation 16,8386 16,880
Dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share ¢ptions - -
Waighted average number of ordinary shares — diluted calculation 1£,828 16,880

Note: As a result of the Group's loss in 2021 and 2029, potantial ordinary shares arising from share options are considered anti-dilutive and have therefara
been excluged from the diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares calculation.

15 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,

Freehold Short  machinery Right,

land and leasehald and of use

buildings improverments  equipment assets Total

£000 £000 £000 €000 £000

Cost
At 1 December 2019 1,832 1,541 3.700 - 7,073
Recognition on adaption of IFRS 16 - - - 3,445 3,445
Additions - 147 183 398 728
Disposals - {118) {3583) - (474)
Currency translation adjustment - {15) (31 {9) (55)
At 30 Novernber 2020 1,832 1,554 3.497 3,834 10,717
Additions z 27 44 917 890
Disposals - 108 {229) (1,042) {1,380)
Currency translation adjustment - i 13 {14} {28)
At 30 November 2021 1,834 1,473 3,299 3,895 10,301
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 December 2019 182 1,015 2,962 - 4,169
Charge for the year 37 194 345 1,084 1.621
Disposals -~ 1108) 333 - (442)
Impairmant - - 22 136 158
Currancy transiaticn adjustment - {5) 128) )] 32
At 30 Novembar 2020 229 1,055 2.571 1,218 5,474
Charge for the year 37 148 52 928 1.166
Disposals - (37) {227} (1,027) {1,341)
Currency trans/atinn adiustment - (3) 12 12 21
At 30 November 2021 266 1113 2,808 1,133 5,320
Net book value
At 30 November 2021 1,568 380 491 2,562 4,931
At 30 November 2020 1,603 499 526 2,815 5,243

The net book value of right of use assets at 3¢ November 2021 relates to leasenold property £2,301,000 {2020: £2,357.000) and vehiclas

£261,000 (2020: £258,000).
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16 Intangible assets

Caprtalised
Acquired development  Purchased
Goodwili  intangblas costs software Total
£000 £000 £000 £C000 £o0c

Cost
At 1 December 2019 24,390 755 8,657 1,812 35,314
Additions - - 828 62 890
Disposals - - 4,622} {116} {4,738}
Currgncy translation adjustment 282 12 19 2 315
At 30 November 2020 24,672 767 4,782 1,660 31,781
Additions. - - 648 154 802
Disposals - - - (230) {230
Currency translation adjustment (356) (1) (19} {3 389
At 30 Novembar 2021 24,316 756 5411 1.481 31,264
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 December 2018 4,454 719 6,969 1,460 13,692
Charge for the vear - 23 441 106 570
Disposals - - {4,622} {1186) (4,738)
Currancy transiation adjustment 159 1G 19 4 192
At 30 Nevermber 2020 4,613 752 2,807 1,454 9,626
Charge for the year - 3 880 72 355
Disposals - - - (181) (181}
Currengy translation adjustment 1142 - (gt )] (164)
At 30 November 2021 4,471 755 3,668 1,342 10,236
Nat book vaiue
At 30 November 2021 19,845 1 1743 139 21,728
At 30 Novemnber 2020 20,059 15 1,975 108 22155

Annual test for impairment of goodwill

The Group has assassed the recovarable amount of goodwill by cormparing it to the value in use of the cash-generating units ((CGUs') to
which it refates. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated. at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from

that business combination.

Synectics Secusity was formed in 2020 by merging Synectics Mobile Systerns and Quadrant Security Group, hoth of which previously
resided in the Integration & Managed Services {'IMS") CGU. Foliowing this and the restructure of the wider Security division {formerly
known as IMS), it is considered that Synectics Security now constitutes its own cash-generating unit on the basis that its asset base,
warkforce and revenue strearns are together sufficiently distinct from 585 Management Services, the other business within the Security
division. SSS Management Services now represents its own CGLUL

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the CGUs as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £060

Systems 10,656 10,870
Synectics Security 8.812 3,812
S5S Management Services 277 377
19,845 20,059

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and business plans approved by the Directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond that period have been
extrapolated intc perpetuity using a steady 2.0% per annum growth rate (2020: 2.0%), which the Directors consider to be specific to the
business and does not exceed the UK long-term average growth rate, and is therefore considered appropriate to apply to each CGU.
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

16 Intangible assets continued
Annual test for impairment of goodwill continued
The other key assumption used in the cash flow projections is considered to be the pre-tax discount rates:

2027 2020

% %

Systems 16.2 18.2
Fynactics Security 125 145
S55 Management Services 125 14.5

The discount rates used are based on the Group weighted average cost of caplital, which has been risk adjusted 1o reflect divisional-specific
risks such as the natura of the market sarved, cost profiles and the barriers to entry into each market segment, as well as other macro-economic
factors such as forecasting risk in light of the general economic uncertainty created by the ongoing Covid-13 pandamic.

The ather key assumptions have been assigned values by management using estimates based on past experience and expectations
of the future performance of the CGUs,

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the pre-tax discount rates, which shows that a pre-tax discount rate of 20% {Systems)

or 14,0% {Synectics Security} weuld be required in order to eliminate the headroom which exists in these CGUs. The Directors cansider
that the discount rates used, which are already risk adjusted to capture the Directors’ view of the extent to which each CGU is exposed
to macro-economic factars including the angoing uncertainty caused by Covid-19, reprasent a balanced view,

Further sensitivity was applied that the CGU’s would only achieve 80% of the projected budget going forward. The Directors consider this
to be satisfactory to capture any risk associated with achigvement of budgat based on a review of the lavels achieved over previous years.

The breakeven anatysis performaed by management identified that the Systems Division wauld need to achieve less than 63% of budget,
Security less than 72% over the coming years to resuit in an impairment. These results would Be significantly lower than previously
achieved by the Group and therefore is an unlikely situation.

The Directors believe that, based on the sensitivity analysis performed, any reasenakly possiblé change in the key assumptions on which
the recoverable amounts are based would not cause the 555 Management Services carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.

The valus in use for the Group exceeds the carrying value of the assets by £14 million (2020: £29 million).

There is ne impairment 1o goodwill in the period (2020: no impairment).

17 Inventories

2021 2020

£000 £000

Raw materials and consumables 1,666 2,268
Work in prograss 870 1,267
Finished goods for resale 1,480 1,128
3.938 4,561

The cost of inventaries recagnised as an expense during the year was £18.8 million (2020: £20.6 million).

The write back of inventories recognised includes £6858,000 (2020: expensed £783,000) in respect of write backs of inventory to net
realisable value,

18 Trade and other raceivables

2021 2020

£000 E£Q0C

Trade receivables 10,525 8,124
Allowance for expected ¢credit losses (468} {465)
10,057 7,689

Farwarg foreign currency contracts 46 67
Other receivables 660 623
Prepayments 393 664
11,156 9,012

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have 30 to 90-day terms. At 30 November 2021 the Group had 83 days' sales
autstanding in trade receivables (2020: 61 days’).
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18 Trade and cther receivables continued

Due 10 their short maturities, the fair value of trade and other receivables approximates to their book value.

Movement in allowance for expected credit losses

2021 2020

£000 £000

At 1 December 465 106
Provided for in the year 83 387
Amounts utilised in the year {59 -
Amounts released in the year {27} {28)
At 30 November 488 465

As at 30 Novermnber 2021, trade receivables of £2,884,000 (2020: £2,759,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of

these trade receivables is as fallows:

2023 2020
£000 £000
Up ta three months past dus 1,831 1,809
Three to six manths past due 776 604
Over s months past dus 227 348
2,884 2,753
19 Cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,641 6,864
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to their hook value.
Cash at bank earns interest at the daily bank base rate.
At 30 November 2021 the Group had undrawn overdraft facilities of up to £3.0 million {2020: £3 million), on which interest would be
payable at the rate of Bank of England base rate plus 2.5% (2020: Bank of England base rate plus 2.5%).
20 Trade and other payables
2021 202¢
£000 £000
Trade payables 4,201 3,926
Other taxation and social security 585 800
Other payables 94 144
Accruals 6,022 7.969
10,902 12,839
Due to their short maturities, the fair value of trade and other payables and accruals approximates to their bock vatue.
21 Lease Liabilities
The carrying amount of leass liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
Vehicie Property Total
£QGG0 £0G0 £000
At 1 December 2019 388 2,996 3,354
Accretion of interest 10 109 119
Payments {145} {578) 723
At 30 Navernber 2020 263 2,527 2,790
Additions 133 813 946
Accretion of Interest 25 84 109
Payments {1587} {849) {1.008)
At 30 November 2021 264 2,575 2,839
Synectics plc
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Financial statements
Notes to the cansolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

21 Leass Liabilities continued

Lease liabilities are classified based on the amounts that are expectad to be settied within the next 12 months and after more than 12

months from the reporting date as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Currant liabilities 816 870
Mon-currant liabilities 2,023 1,920
Total liabilities 2,339 2,790
Contractual maturity of lease fiabilities:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Up to 1 year 816 870
Between 1 year and 5 years 1.512 1,318
More than b years M 802
2,839 2,790
Amounts recognised in profit or loss include the following:
2021 2020
£000 EOC0
Interest on lease liabilities 109 13

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applhed to the legse liabilities racognised ranged between 3% - 3.1% (2020: 3% -3.1%).

22 Provisions

Legal Warranty Restructunng Proparty Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 December 20719 903 713 - 66 1,687
Utilised in the year {868) {359) 1775} - (2,060)
Raleased in the yaar 42} - - - (42)
Charged to the Income Statement - 270 2,050 231 2,551
At 30 November 2020 - 624 1,275 297 2,196
Utilised in the year - an 11,182} (97) (1,320)
Released in the year - (83 - - 8
Chargad ta the Income Statement - 414 - 124 538
At 30 Novembar 2021 - a9 a3 324 1,408
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £300
Current 437 1,621
Nan-currant 921 575
1408 2,196

Costs of warranty include the cost of labour, material and related overhead necessary to repair a product during the warranty period.
The standard warranty periods are usually one to three years. The Group accrues for the estimated cost of the warranty on its products
shipped in the provision for warranty, upon recognition of the sale of the product. The costs are estimated based on actual histarical
expenses incurred and an estimated future expenses related to current sales, and are updated psriodically. Actual warranty costs are

charged against the provision for warranty.

The Group has certain properties where the Directors believe that dilapidation costs may be incurred; thersfore, appropriate cost

provisions have been made. It is anticipated that substantially all of the praperty cost provision carried forward at 30 November 2021

will be utiised within a year.
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22 Provisions continued

n 2020 the restructuring provision related to the costs recogrised in relation to the Group's restructuring activities in the prior year (see
note 8) where the associated cash outfiow has not yet occurred. There is £93,000 of this provision remaining which is expectad to be
utilised in 2022. The impact of discounting the above provisions is immaterial.

23 Called up share capital and reserves

The number of authorised, allotted, called up and Fully paid shares is as follows:

2021 2020
Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of 20p sach
Authorised 25,000,000 8,000 25,000,000 5,000
Allottad, calied up and fully paid 17,794,439 3,559 17,794,439 3,559

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
shareholder meetings. No shares were held in treasury; however, 905,623 shares (2020: 905,629} were held by the Group Executive
Shared Ownership Flan ["ExS0P"} at 30 November 2021 and are therefore excluded from the basic earnings per share calculation.

The merger reserve has been created in accordance with sections 612 and 613 of the Companies Act 2006 whereby the premium on
ordinary shares in the Company issued to acquire shares has been credited to the merger reserve rather than the share premium account.

The cost of own shares held within the ExSOP of £2,185,000 (2020: £2,185,000} has been deducted from other reserves. The nominal
value of these shares is £181,000 {2020: £181,000).

24 Options over shares of Synectics plc

The Group operated three share schemas in the year: the Quadnetics Employess' Share Acquisition Plan, the Quadnatics Exacutive
Shared Ownership Plan and the Synectics Performance Share Plan.

Quadnetics Employees’ Share Acquisition Plan (‘'ESAP’)

The ESAP was adopted on 23 April 2010. Deductions from salary are used to buy partnership shares in Synectics plc at the end of each
six-month accumulation pericd. The Trustee will use any dividend income paid on these shares to buy further shares to be held in the
scheme as dividend shares.

Partnership shares can be withdrawn from the scheme by the employee at any time, but withdrawals before the fifth anniversary aftar
purchase are subject to incorne tax; withdrawals after the fifth anniversary of their purchase date can be made in fuli and are not subject
1o income tax. Dividend shares are reguired to be held in trust for a period of three years following the purchase date. Employees who
leave the Group are required to withdraw all of thelr shares in the scheme and are subject to the same rules.

At 30 November 2021, the scheme holds 96,062 {2020: 89,166} ordinary shares with a market value of £108,069 (2020: £95,853).

Movements during the year were as follows:

Number of

shares

Shares held at, 1 December 2020 B9,166
Shares acquired during the year 6,886
Withdrawals from the scherne during the year -
Shares held at 30 November 2021 96,062

Quadnetics Executive Shared Ownership Plan ('"ExSOP’)

The ExSOP was formed in July 2008. Under the provisions of the ExSOP, shares {'ExSOP shares’} are jointly owned by nominated senior
empiloyees and by an employees’ share trust on terms, similar to a share option scherne, whereby the value of appreciation in the
Company’s share price over a minimum three-year pericd accrues to the refevant employee, provided the Company meets certain
performance threshelds.

In summary, none of the awarded ExSOP shares will vest unless the total return {dividends plus share price appreciation) on the
Company's shares is better than the performange of the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index (the 'Index’} over the three-vear period
from award. The shares will vest fully if the Company’s performance beats the Index by more than 5% over that period. If the Company's
share performance maiches the Index, then 25% of the awarded shares will vest and between these points vesting will be pro-rata.

Synectics plc |
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Financial statements
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

24 Options over shares of Synectics plc continued
Quadnetics Executive Shared Ownership Pfan continued
ExSOP shares cutstanding at 30 November 2021 are exercisabie as follows:

Relevant
share price 2021 2020
atdate of Numberof Number of
Date awarded Exgrcise dates award shares shares
7 July 2008 8 July 2012 anwards 14750 157,243 187,243
7 March 2011 8 March 2014 onwards 178.0p 108.000 108,000
Balance of shares in raspect of leavars 600,386 600,386
905,629 905,629

Mavernents during the year were as follows:

Number of
shares
Shares held at 1 December 2020 930,628
Vested shares sold or transferrad in the year _
Shares hald at 30 November 2021 905,629

Dividends have been waived in respect of the 600,386 (2020. 615,886) shares not spacifically allocated ta employees.

Synectics Performance Share Plan (‘PSP’)
The PSP was formed on 9 Octaber 2012,

2015-2019 awards

Under the PSP, selectad employees are entitled to exercise an option to receive a certain number of Synectics plc shares at any time
after a three-year vesting period, at no cost to themselves. The number of shares that are awarded at the end of the three-year period
is dependent on the achieverment of certain performance criteria.

The performance criteria are idenitical to these that apply under the existing ExSOP. Provided that the tatal return on Synectics plc shares
has outperformed the Index by 5% or more in the three years following the award, beneficiaries will be entitled 1o receive the full number
of shares awarded. If Synectics plc’s share performance matches the Index, then 25% of the awarded shares will vest and batween
these points vesting will be pro-rata. If the total return on Synectics plc shares underperforms the Index, then no entitlement will vest.
The limit on the number of shares over which interests may be awarded also remains unchanged.

ltisintended that if the performance criteria are met in fuil or part, the appropriate number of shares will be transferred to the emplayees
from unallocated Synectics plc shares already held within the employee benefit trust estahlished for the existing ExSOF.

20202021 awards

In 2020, the Committee made 2 one-off award to the Executive Directors vesting over a five-year period up to the end of the Company's
financial year ending 3C November 2026. The options are divided into three equal tranches, vesting after the next thrae, four and five full
financial years respectively, depending on the achievement of the performance criteria at each measurement date, and are exercisable at
nil cost. All options must be exercised within ten years of the date of award.

The performance criteria for the one-off award will be measured according to the average of the compound annual growth rate (CAGR'}
of the total shareholder return and the CAGR of adjusted undertying diluted earnings per share for each of the three relevant pericds of
roeughly three, four and five years respactively. If this average is 25% or more, 100% of that tranche of options will vest. If this average is
above 15% and below 25%, between 0% and 100% of the options will vest {on a straight-line basis). 76% of any options not vesting at
the three-year and four-year vesting points may be carriad forward to the following year. Aay options not vesting at the five-year point will
lapse. The baseline for calculating the CAGR of total shareholder return is £1.35 per share, and the basefine for calculating the CAGR

of adjusted underlying diluted earnings per share is 11.87p per share (baing the actual equivalent adjusted eatnings per shara of the
Campany in the financial year to 30 Novernber 2019).

Synectics ple
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24 Options over shares of Synectics ple continued

Synectics performance share plan continued
PSP shares outstanding at 30 November 2021 are exercisable as foliows:

Refevant
share price 201 2020
atdate of MNumberof Number of
Date awavded Exercise gaies award shares shares
30 Maich 2015 30 March 2018 onwards 125.0p 1,300 1,300
1 March 2016 1 March 2013 onwards 17.5p - 1.000
28 March 2018 28 March 2021 onwards 181.6p - 30,000
7 March 2019 7 March 2022 onwards 200.0p 45,000 45,000
7 August 2620 24 February 2024 onwards 130.0p 222,000 222,000
7 Augyst 2020 1 March 2025 onwards 130.0p 162,000 162,000
7 August 2020 28 February 2028 onwards 130.0p 162,000 162,000
3 March 2021 24 February 2024 onwards 137.5p 20,000 -

812,300 623,300

31,000 (2020: 58,477} shares under the PSP expired during the year.

25 Share-based payment charge

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted or awards made under the Group’s share schemes is measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted or share scheme shares awarded.

For the equity-settled share scherme awards, the estimate of the fair value of the services received for accounting purposes is measured
based en a Biack-Scholes option pricing model adjusted [based on a Monte Carlo simulation} to reflect the percentage reduction
necessary as a resuft of the market-based performance conditions, using the following assumgptions:

March 2018 March 2019 August 2020 August 2020 August 2020  March 2021

Synectics PSP awards awards 3yrawards dyrawards Syrawards 3yrawards
Number of share opticns awarded 30,000 5,000 222,000 162,000 162,000 20.000
Exercise grice £l £nil Erul £nil £l £nil
Share price on date of award £1.818 £2.00 £1.30 £1.20 £1.30 £1,375
Expected volatility 35% 30% 50% 0% 50% 50%
Expected dividend yiald 35% 20% 4.0% 4.7% 53% 4.0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 1.35% 0.33% 0.33% 0.33% 0.33%
Vasting period 3 years 3years 3.565years 4.57 years 556 vyears 3 years
Expected life of aption 4 years 3vyears 3.55years 4.57years 556 years 3 years

The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2021, et the date of grant, is £0.44 {2020: £0.36).

The expected volatility is based on histarical volatility. In respect of the 2021 and 2020 ogptions, histarical volatility has been uplifted in
order to account for the expectation of future growth in excess of historical volatility.

Shara options and share scheme awards are granted under a service condition and also for grants to employees under the ExSOP and
PSP, a performance measure based around the Company's share price relative to the Index.

The total charge recognised for the year arising from share-based payments is as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Eqguity-settled share-based paymants 63 45

26 Contingent liabilities
As at 30 November 2021 there are no contingent liabilities (2020: £nil).

27 Related party transactions

Transactions hetween the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. The subsidiaries in the Group are listed in note 7 of the Company accounts.

During the year an amount was paid to the spause of a director of Synectic Systems (Asia) Pte Limited of $8ni for provision of
accommodation to an external consultant engaged by the company {2020: 55264},
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Financial statemants

Notes to the consplidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

27 Related party transactions continued

During the year renta| armounts of S$nil were paid to a company in which twao of the directars of Synectic Systemns (Asia) Pte Limited held
a direct interest (2020: 5$23,463).

Transactions with key management personnel are as follows:

2021 202¢

£000 E£000

Salary and fees 602 523
Bonuses - -
Benefits 4 9
Total short-term remunaration 806 B3z
Post-ampigyment henefits L4l a1
Share-based payments 12 22
659 595

Share options exercised by key managemant personnel during the year amounted to £nil {2020: £nil).

28 Capital commitments

At the year end, capital commitments net provided far in these financial statements amounted to to £4,000 (2020: £40,000).

29 Pension commitments
The Group operates a closed defined benefit pension scheme and a number of defined contribution schemes.
a) Defined benefit scheme

The Group operates the Quadrant Group ple Retirement Benefit Scheme. This scheme includes a defined benefit section and a defined
contribution section both in respect of past employees. The accrual of benefits in the defined benefit section ceased in 1996 and the
liabilities relate only to members with greserved benefits or pensions in payment. A full actuarial valuation was carried out by a qualified
independent actuary, indepsndent of the scheme’s sponsoring emplayer, as at 30 June 2016. These results have been updated t¢

30 November 2021. The major assumptions used by the actuary are shown below.

The Group has paid contributions of £nid {2020: £nil} in the year.

The disclosures below relate to the defined benefit section, with the contributions to the defined contribution section being disclosed
in section b} on page 90,

Net defined benefit assat

2021 2020

£000 £000

Fair value of schems assets ' 3,19 6,917
Cash hald in other debtors {40} -
Present value of schemag fiabilities (5.151) {6,592}
Net definad benefit asset recognised in the Statement of Financial Position - 1,325
Associated deferred tax liability - (252

Future econcmic benefits are available to the Group in the form of a reduction in future contributions or a cash refund. Any surplus
ultimately repaid by the Trustees would be subject to a tax charge deducted at source.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligations

2021 2020
£000 £000

Defined benefit obligations at the start of the year 5,592 6,014
Interest cost 76 m

Remeasurements:

= gains dus to scheme experience {24) 1431
- gain/iloss} due to changes in demographic assumptions 26 (139)
- loss/(gain} dua to financial assumptions [158) 352
Benefits pad (361) {315)
Defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 5,151 5,582
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29 Pension commitments continued

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

2021 2020

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year 6,917 5,701
Interest income 98 124
Return on plan assets, exciuding amounts recognised in interest income (1.459) 407
Cantributions by the Company - -
Benefits paid (363} {315}
Fair value of plan assets at tha end of the year 519 6,917
Assets

2021 202G

Fair value of Fair value of
plan assets plan assets

£000 £000
UX equities - "
Government bonds - -
Corporate bonds - 5,966
Assets held by insurance company 5,151 -
Cash 49 40
Total assets 5,191 6,917

All of the scheme assets have a quoted market price in an agtive market with the exception of the cash holding, being the Trustee’s bank
account balance.

As at 30 November 2021, the fair value of the assets shown above includes holdings of £nil {2020: £11,000) in Synectics plc shares which
constitute employerrelated investmaents. There are no further amounts in assets which represent the Company’s own financial
instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Company.

Actual return on plan assets
The actual return on the plan assets over the year ended 30 November 2021 was £nil (2020: profit £631,000).

Principal actuarial assumptions

201 2020 2019

% per % per % per

annum annum annum

Inflation 4.00 3.30 330

Inflation {CPI} 3.45 275 2.40

Rate of discount 170 1.40 1.90

Allowance for revaluation of deferred pensions of CP{ or 5% p.a. if less 3.45 275 2.40
The mertality assumptions adoptad at 30 November 2020 imply the following life expectancies at age 65:

2021 2020

Years Years

Male currently aged 45 22.8 22.4

Female currently aged 45 24.8 ?24.3

Male currently aged 65 215 214

Female currently aged 65 23.3 231

Analysis of the sensitivity to the principal assumptions of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

The sensitivities shown are approximate and each sensitivity considers one change in isclation. The inflation sensitivity includes the
impact of changes to the assumptions for revaluation and pension increases. The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
30 November 2021 is twelve years (2020: twelve years).

Change in assumption Change in liability
Discount rate
Rate of inflation

Rate of mortality

Dacrease of 0.25% p.a.
Increase of 0.25% p.a.
Incraase in life expectancy of cne year

tncrease by 3.7%
Increase by 0.2%
Increase by 5.0%
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Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

29 Pension commitments continued

Analysis of the sensitivity to the principal assumptions of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
continued

The Company estimates that no additional contributions will be paid to the plan during the year ending 30 November 2022,

In 2020 the decision was taken before the year end by the Board of Trustees and approved by the plc Board of Directors to secure a
“buy-out” for all remaining liabilities by an insurance company and to wind up the pension scheme. During the year end, an insurance
company has insured the pensicn the liabilitias which existed at 30 November 2020. The insurance policies are held by the scheme
trustes and therafore are considered to be assets of the Group. A remeasurement loss of £1,073,0800 has risen following the transaction
which has baeen recognised in cther comprshensive income.

b} Defined contribution schemas

There are a number of defined contribution pension schemes operated by various companies within the Group. The Group's total expense
for these other schemes in the year was £826,000 (2020: £882,000).

30 Financial instruments
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders.
The c¢apital structure of the Group consists of cash held in interest-bearing current accounts {note 191, bank overdrafts (note 19) and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent, comprising issued share capital inote 23}, reserves and retained earnings. The Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirernents. The Group's dividend policy depends on both the earnings profile and
investment opportunities together with wider macro-economic factars.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally giving rise to exposure frem changes in foreign exchange rates, The main foreign currencies in which
the Group currently operates are the US dollar and the euro.

The Group's policy is to manage transaction exposure in respect of the Group’s UK subsidiaries where appropriate threugh the use of
forward exchange contracts, which are entered into in respect of forecast foreign currency transactions when the amount and timing of
such forecast transactions becomes reasonably certain. At 30 November 2021 the Group had the following commitrments in respect of
forward exchange contracts:

2021 2020

Average Average

rats rate

$000 $:£ $000 5.£

Forward US doliar sales 501 1.338 1,600 1.278

Forward US dollar purchases - - - -
2021 2020

Average Avarage

rata ratg

€000 € €000 €£

Farward euro sales - - 1,800 1.1

Farward euro purchases - - - -

The fair value of these forward foraign exchange contracts is presented within trade and other receivables. Hedge accounting has
not been applied.

At 30 November 2021, certain subsidiaries within the Group had the following forecast foreign currency transactions during the next
two years which have not been hedged:

2021 2020
€000 $000 €000 $000
Receipts 7721 32,637 800 11,250
Payments [1.284)  {24,556) {1,145) (7,089}
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30 Financial instruments continued
Foreign curreney risk continued

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates on the translation of profits earned by its overseas subsidiaries. These profits are
translated at average exchange rates for the year, which is an approximation to rates at the date of transaction. The Group's overseas
subsidiaries account for approximately 6.1% {2020: 6.1%) of the Group's net assets as follows:

2021 2020
Functional currancy of antity % %
US dollars (1.1 {c.8)
Eurcs 7.2 6.9
Total 6.1 6.1

Translation expasure in respect of these assets is not hadged.

At 30 November 2021 the Group held forsign currency cash balances of $1,420,000 {2020: $1,759,000 overdrawn balance), €241,000
(2020: €171,000} and S$352,000 (2020: 5$:3,000).

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% fall in the relevant foreign currencies:

USD impact Euro impact
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
(Lossl/profit {204} (35) (24} (1)
Qther equity {299) (448} 548 574
Total {503) (543} 524 563

The 1able below shows the extent to which the Group had significant menetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the
functional currency of the company in which they are recorded. Foreign exchange differences on the retranslation of these assets
and liabilities are reccgnised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

2021 2020

Sterling usD Sterling usD

£000 £000 £000 £000

Sterling - 537 - 392
US doliars {842} - 546) -
Euras 33 - 135) -
Singapore dollars - | - 171
Total {808} 613 581} 563

Credit risk

Credit risk refers 1o the risk that a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fzils to meet its centractual obligations, resulting

in financial loss to the Group, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and interest-bearing current accounts.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit using information supphied by independent rating agencies where available. The Group also uses other

publicly available information and its own trading records to rate major customers, The credit risk on current accounts is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

For some wrade receivables the Group may obtain security in the form of guarantees or letters of credit which can be called upon
if the counterparty is in default under the tarms of the agreement.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, there were no significant concantrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to cradit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position.
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fFinancial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

30 Finane¢ial instruments continued
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group ensures

that sufficient cash and undrawn facilities are aveilable to fund ongeing operations and ta meet its medium-term capital and funding
obligations, and to rmeet any unforeseen obligations and cppartunities.

At the year end, the Graup had net funds of:

2021 2020
£000 £Q0Q
Current accounts {nota 19} 4,641 6,864

The level of the Group’s bank overdraft facilities is reviewed annually, and at 30 November 2027 the Group had undrawn overdraft
facilities of up tc £3.0 million, on which interest would be payable at the rate of bank base rate plus 2.5%.

Financial liabilitias of the Group principally comprise trade creditors falling dus for payment within twelve manths of the Statarmnent of
Financial Position date (2020: twelve months), an undrawn bank overdraft {2020: undrawn) repayable on demand and lease liabilities.

Interest risk

Interest-bearing assets comprise cash held in current accounts, earning interest at kank base rate. During the year these bank deposits
bore interest at base rate of 0.1% in line with the bank base rate {2020: 0.1%-0.75%). The Group benchmarks the rates bsing obtained in
order to maximisa its returns within the credit risk framework referred to above.

Interest rates charged for the bank overdraft are set out in note 19.
The Group's funding position did not carry any significant interest rate risk at 30 Novemnber 2021 or 30 November 2020.

A 0.5% rise or fall in interest rates wou'd not have a material impact on the results of the Group.

31 Subsidiaries

The Graup consists of a Parent Company, Synectics plc, incorporated in the UK, and a number of subsidiaries held directly and indirectly
by Synectics plc, which operate and are incorporated around the warld. Note 7 to the Company's financial statements lists details
of all subsidiaries.

The following campanies have taken their entitlement to exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating
to subsidiary companies for the year ended 30 November 2021:

» Synectics EFX Limited; and
* Protec Limited.

One subsidiary, Synectic Systems (Macau) Limited, has an accounting reference date of 31 December, which is different to that of the
conseclidated financial statements of 30 November. This is to more closely align the accounting period with the tax reporting requirements
in Macau and thereby reduce administrative costs.

32 Post-balance sheet events
There are no material post balance sheet events known at the date of this report.
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Company staterment of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 November 2021

2021 2020
£000 £000
{Loss)/profit for the year {1.204) 140
Itams that will not ba reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit pension scheme, net of tax {1.073} 492
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,277} 632
Cumpany sltaleinenl of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 November 2021
Called up Share
share premium Merger Other Retained
capital account resarve reserves earnings Total
£000 £C0C £000 £000 £000 £500
At 1 December 2019 3,559 16,043 5,871 (665) 12,662 41,870
Prafit for the yaar - - - - 140 140
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit pension scheme, net of tax — - - - 492 492
Total other comprehensive income — - - - 492 492
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 632 632
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Dividends paid - - - - - -
Credit in relation to shara-based payments - - - - 50 50
Share schemea interests realised in the year - - - 33 (93) -
At 30 November 2020 3,559 16,043 9,971 {572) 13,551 42,552
Prafit far the year - - - - (1,204} {1,204)
Other comprahenslve income
Remeasurament gain on defined benefit pension scheme, net of tax - - - {1.073) - {1,073)
Total aother comprehansive income - - - (1,073) - {1,073}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 12,277) 2,277)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Dividends paid - - - - - -
Credit in relation to share-based payments - - - 69 - &89
Share scheme interests realised in the year - - - - - -
At 30 November 2021 3,559 16,043 9,971 (503} 1,274 40,344
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Financial statements
Company statement of financial position
For the year ended 30 November 2021

2021 2020
Note £000 £000

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 4 8 16
Intangibie asssts 5 13 35
Investrments in subsidiary undertakings 8 35,835 35,828
Retirement benefit asset 14 - 1,325

35,858 37,202

Current assets
ther recarvables 7 4,530 6,367
Cash at bank and in hand 808 3,686
Deferred tax assets 200 -
5,538 10,083
Total assets 41,394 47,255
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 8 - —
Trade and other payables 9 {1,361} (4,651)
Provisions 10 - -
(1,361) 4,651
Non-current liakilities
Deferred tax Yabilities 10 - {52)
- (52)
Total liabilities 1,361 4,7031
Nat assats 40,033 42,552
Equity
Calted up share capital 1 3,559 3,559
Share premiurn account 15,043 16,043
Merger reserve 29M 2,97
GOther reserves {2,025) (572}
Retained earnings 12,435 13,851
Total equity 40,724 42,552

The amount of loss far the year of the Company is £1.2 million {2020: profit £0.14 millicn).

The financial statements on pages 93 1o 102 were approved and authorised for issua by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2022 and

ware signed on its behalf by:

Paul Webb David Bedford
Directer Director

Company number; 1740011
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Notes to the Company financial statements
As at 30 November 2021

The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for its trading subsidiaries.

1 Company accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statemants have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS'} 1071 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’. In preparing these financial staterments, the Company applies the recognition, measurermnent and disclosure requirements of
International accounting standards in conformity with the Companies Act 2006 ("adopted IFRS'). Figures in these financial statements
have heen roundad 1o the nearest thausand.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in
accordance with FRS 101:

« paragraphs 45{b) and 48 to 52 of IFRS 2 'Share-based Payments’ (details of the number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options, and how the fair valug of geods or services received was determined};

¢ IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures”; and

« paragraphs &1 to 99 of IFRS 13 "Fair Valus Measurement’ (disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used for fair value
measurement of assats and liabilities).

Paragraph 38 of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements’, comparative informartion requirements in respect of:
= paragraph 79{aliv) of IAS 1; and

» paragraph 73 of IAS 16 '‘Property, Plant and Equipment’.

The following paragraphs of IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements”

« 10(d} istatement of cash flows);

= 10({fi{a) (staternent of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period);

s 16 (statoment of compliance with all IFRS),

38A (requiremnent for minimurn of two primary statements, including cash flow statements);
e 38B-D (additional comparative information};

* 40A-D frequirements for a third statement of financial position);

L 2

111 (cash flow statement information);

» 134-136 (capital management disclosures);

IAS 7 *Statement of Cash Flows";

paragraphs 30 and 31 of 1AS 8 "Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (requirement for the disclosure of
information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been issued but not yvet effective);

paragraph 17 of IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ (key management compensation); and

the requirements in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ to disclose related party transactions entered into between two cr more
membears of a graup.

In accordance with section 40813} of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exemnpt frorn the requirement ta present its own Incorme Statement.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Going concern

The Directors have assessed, in light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. The Diractors confirm they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the Parent Company
financial statements. For further consideration of the going concern position of the Group see page 64.
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Financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 Navember 2021

1 Company accounting policies continued
Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these individual financial statements are set out beipw. These palicies
have bean applied consistantly to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Investments in subsidiaries

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost plus deemed capital contributions arising from share-based payment transactions
less any provision for impairment. The Company records an increass in its investrments in subsidiaries equal to the share-based payments
charge recognised by its subsidiaries with a corresponding credit to equity. Details of the Group's share-based payrnent charge are set
out in rote 25 of the Group financial statements.

Employee share schemes

Transactions of the Company-spansored ExSOP are treated as being those of the Company and are thercfore reflected in the Parent
Company financial staterments. In particular, the scheme's purchases of shares in the Company are debited directly to equity.

Othaer significant accounting policies

Other significant accounting policies are consistent with tha Group accounts and are disclosed on pages 79 1o 87.

Significant estimates

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies the Directors are required to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
ameunts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimatés and underlying assumptians are reviewead on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects cnly that periad, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Management has discussed its significant estimates and associated disclosures with the Audit Committee. An area involving a higher
degree of judgement or compiexity is the recoverability of the Company's investment in subsidiaries. The Company assesses the carrying
value of its investments in subsidiaries using the value-in-use mode!. The value-in-use calculation includes estimatas about future
financial perforrnance and leng-term growth rates and requires management to select a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate the
presant value of those cash flows. Management used pre-tax discount rates between 14 5% and 18.2%. The future cash flows used in
the value-in-use calculations are based cn the latest five-year financial plans approved by the Beard. Cash flows beyond that period have
baen extrapolated into perpetuity using a 2.0% per annum growth rate (2020: 2.0%).

Anather arsa involving a higher degree of judgement is the inter-group balances and impairment of these. Management assess the
inter-group balances annually and assess repayment ability of the group Company’s. Impairment is assessed using a 2-15% (2020: 2-15%)
sensitivity for the margin of default expected. A Provisicn of £440,000 (2020: £440,000) is in place and this is deemed satisfactory by
management.

2 Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts are £56,000 (2020: £51,000).

Synectics plc
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3 Diractors and employeas
The ramuneration of the Directors is set out below:

2021 2020

Directors’ emoluments £000 £000
Salaries, bonuses and benefits 415 228
Pension allowance' 31 41
446 289

1 Pension ailowance includes both contributions to the Group's defined contribution pension scheme and cash payments in liee of contributions.

Detailed information on the emoluments, pensions, opticn holdings and shareholdings for each Director is shown in the Remuneration

Committee report on pages 46 10 49. An element of the cost of employing the Executive Directors is recharged to the divisions.

The above costs are shown net of these recharges. The average number of persons (including Executive Directors) employed by the

Company during the year was 19 (2020; 15).

4 Plant and equipment

£000
Cost
At 1 Dgcember 2020 547
Additions 2
Disposals {338)
At 30 November 2021 2n
Depraciation
At 1 December 2020 531
Charge for the year 10
Disposals {338)
At 3¢ Novembar 2027 {203)
Net book value
At 30 November 2021 8
At 30 November 2020 '8

Synectics plc
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Financial statements
Ngtes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

5 intangible assets

£00¢
Cast
At 1 December 2020 245
Adgitions {181)
At 30 November 2021 164
Amaortisation
At 1 December 2020 310
Charge for the year 22
At 30 November 2021 {181)
Net book value 151
A 30 November 2021
At 30 November 2020 13
35
6 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
£000
Cogt
At 1 Decembar 2020 44,341
Disposal -
Share-based payments capital contribution 10
At 30 November 2021 44,381
Provision for impairment at 1 Decembar 2020 (3,515)
Impairment in the year -
Provision for impairment at 30 Navember 2021 (8.515)
Nat book vatue
At 30 November 2021 35,836
At 30 November 2020 35,828

8 Synectics pic
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6 Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued
Details of the Company's subsidiaries st 30 November 2021 are as follows:

Proportion
Registered of voting
office {sce Country of rights and
footnote) incorporatian {lass of share  shares held Mature of business
Directly held by Synacties ple
Synectic Systerns Group Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dastgn and development of security and
surveillance solutions
Synecties Security Limited 2 UK Ordinary shares 100% Design, installation and maintenance of security
and surveillance solutions
Synectic Systems, Inc 3 USA  Common stock 100% Design and supply of security and
surveillance solutions
Synectics EFX Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Intermediate holding cormpany
Coex Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Flash No.1 Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Darmant
Fiash No.2 Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Flash No.3 Limited 1 Uk  Ordinary shares 190% Dormant
Fotovalue Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 190% Darmant
Foxail & Chapman Limited 1 UK Ordmary sharas 100% Bormant
Look CCTV Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Look Closed Crouit TV Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dorrnant
Midlands Video Systems Limited 1 UK Qrdinary shates 100% Dormant
Monument Photographic Laboratories Limited 1 UK OQrdinary shares 100% Dosmant
MVS {Research) Limited ] UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Newco 3006 Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Protec Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading
Q5G Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 1WW0% Dormant
Quadnetics Employees’ Trusteas Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadnetics Group Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadnetics Limited ] UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadnetics SIP Trustees Limited ] UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Syneciics Managed Servicas Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadrant Proparties Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadrant Aasearch & Deveiopment Limitad 1 UX  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quadrant Security Group Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Quick 'maging Centre Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Darmant
S&M (Processing} Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Sanpho Pension Trustees Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
SSS Management Services Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
$8S Managed Services Limitad 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Darrmant
Stanmore Systems Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Darrmant
Synectics Group Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Darrmant
Synectics High Security Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Synectics Industrial Systems Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Bormant
Synectics Mobile Systems Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Darmant
Synectics Security Networks Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Synectic Systems Limited 1 UK Osdinary shases 100% Deemant
Synectics Surveillance Tochnology Limited 1 UK  Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Synectics Technology Centrs Limited 1 UK Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Indirectly held by Synectics pic
Indanet GmbH 4 Garmany QCrdinary shares 100% Intermediate helding company
Synectic Systems GmbH 4 Germany Ordinary shares 100% Cresign and supply of security and
survaillance solutions
Synectic Systams {Asial Ptg Limitad 5  Singapore Ordinary shares 106% Dasign and supply of security and
surveiflance solutions
Synectic Systams (Macau} Limitad 6 Macau Ordinary shares 100% Design and supply of security angd
surveillance seolutions
Synectics No. 2 Limitad 1 UK. Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

1 Synectics House, 3-4 Broadfield Close, Sheffield S8 0XN, UK.
2 3 Attenborough Lane, Chilwsll, Nottingham NGS 5JN, UK.

3 6398 Cindy Lane, Suite 200, Carpinteria, California, USA.
4 Withelmstrale 118, 10963 Berlin, Germany.

6 150 Kampong Ampat, #01-01/01-01 A, Singapore 368324,
6 Avenida do Dr. Rodrigo Rodrigues, No. 600-E, Centro Comercial
First Nacional, P14-04, Macau.
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Financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

7 Qther receivables

2021 2020

£000 £000

Other receivables 76 296
Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,411 5,981
Prapayments 43 jozel
4,530 6,367

Amounts due fram sybsidiaries are net of an expected credit loss pravision of £1.3 million {2020: £1.3 millicn). Amounts owed from
subsidiaries are repayable on demand and attract an arm's length rate of interest dependent on the territory in which the subsidiary resides.

8 Loans and borrowings

2021 2020
Current Non-current Total Current  Man-current Total
£000 £040 £006 £0060 £300 £066

Bank overdraft - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

Loans and borrowings comprise the Company's overdraft facilities. The fair value of financial liabilities is net substantially different from
the carrying value. The terms and debt repaymant details are as foliows:

Valua drawn Interest
£000 Maturity rate Security
£5.0 million overdraft - Ondemand Base +2.5% Group assets

The bank overdraft facility is undrawn at the year end ¢n a net basis, and is part of a Group offset arrangemant.

8 Trade and other payables

2021 2020

£000 £000

Trade payables 79 a0
Amounts owed 1o subsidianas 975 4,299
Qther payables - g
Accruals 274 253
1,328 4,651

Armounts owed to subsidiaries are repayable on demand and attract an arm's length fate of interest dependent on the territory in which
the subsidiary resides.
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10 Provisions

Deferred tax Property Total

£Q00 £000 £000

At 1 Dacember 2020 52 - 52
Craditad to the Income Statement {400) - {4001
Charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income - - -
At 30 Nevember 2021 (348) - (348)

Thera is a deferred tax asset of £ 348,000 at 3U November 2021 (2020: £52,000 liability). The deferred tax as at 30 November 2020 is set

out befow:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Retirement benefit asset - 252
Fixed asset timing differences {44} 48}
Other timing differences {2) {2)
Tax losses {302} {183

[348) 52
11 Called up share capital and reserves
The number of altotted, called up and fully paid shares is as follows:

2021 2020
Numbear £000 Murnber £000

Ordinary shares of 20p each
Allotted, called up and fully paid 17,794,43% 3,559 17,794,439 3,559

12 Contingent liabilities

The Campany has agreed, in some instances jointly with subsidiary companies, to guarantee performance bonds amounting to £nil

at 30 Movember 2021 (2020: £nif).

13 Capital commitments

At 30 Novembper 2021 capital commitments not provided for in these financial statements amounted to £nil (2020: £nil).

Synectics plc
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Financial statemants
Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 November 2021

14 Pansion commitments

The Company participates in all of the Group’s pension schemes. Full disclosures relating to these schemes are given in note 29
to the Group accounts.

Defined contribution schemas

Contributions made by the Company 1o the defined contribution section of the Quadrant Group ple Retirement Benefit Scheme
in the year amounted to £ni1 {2020 £nil}.

In addition, the Company’s total expense for other defined contribution pension schemes during the year was £48,000 (2020: £42,000).

Defined benefit schemes

| There are no assets or liabilities in the pensicn scheme as at 30 November 2021, The table below sets cut the gross assets and liabilities
of the Group's closed defined benefit pension scheme that have been recognised in the Company's Statement of Financial Position as at
30 November 202C.

2021 2020

£000 £000

Fair value of scheme assets 5,191 6,917
Cash held in other debtars (40} -
Prasent value of scheme lighilities (5.151) {5,592}
Net defined benefit asset recognised in the Statement of Financial Position - 1,325
Associatad defarred tax liability - (252}

100% of the vatues of the scheme assets and liabilities have been allogated to the Company as this reflects a reasonable estimate
of its share of the surplus.

: 15 Post-balance sheet events
There are no material post balance sheet events known at the date of this report.
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Principal subsidiaries

The principal subsidiaries and divisions within the Greup during the year were as follows:

Synectic Systems Group Limited Synectic Systems GmbH

Design and development of advanced Provider of integrated surveillance
surveillance technology, aperating through and security management systems

Synectics Security Limited
Design, installation, maintenance and

the following divisions:

synacticsglobal.com

Synectics | jouse

3-4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield S8 XN

Tel: +44 {0} 114 255 2509

Moat Road

Normanby Enterprise Park
Maorth Lincolnshire DN15 SBL
Tel: +44 (0) 1652 688 908

Synactic Systems, Inc.

Develapers of integrated software
sofutions and products for complex
security and surveillance netwarks

synecticsglobal.com
6398 Cindy Lane, Suite 200
Carpinteria

California, 93013

Usa

Tel. +1 888 755 6255

to the Eurcpean transport mdustry

synecticsglobal.com
Wilhelmstrale 118
108963 Berlin

Germany

Tel: +49 8974 88620

Synectic Systems (Asia)
Pte Limited

Provision of specialist video-based
electronic systems and technology,
for use in high sacurity applications

synecticsglobal.com

150 Kampong Ampat
#01-01/01-01A
Singaporeg 368324
Tel: +65 6749 6166

Synectic Systems {Macau} Limited

Provision of specialist videc-based
electronic systems and technoiogy,
for use in high sacurity applications

synecticsglobal.com

Avenida do Dr. Rodrigo Rodrigues
Na. 600-E

Centro Cormercial First Nacional
P14-04

Macau

Tel: +853 2855 5178

management of advanced integrated
CCTV and security systems

synectics-sacurity.co.uk

3 Attenborcugh Lane
Chitwell

Nottingham NGS 5JN
Tel: +44 {0} 115 926 2521

8§88 Management Services

Total security outsourcing support
and management services to retail
and multi-site customers

sss-suppert.co.uk

Suites 5 & 6 Fleet House
Culpeper Close
Rochester

Kent ME2 4HN

Tel. +44 {0) 1622 798 200
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Other information
Advisers

Secretary and registered office

Claire Stewart

Synectics plc

Synectics House

3-4 Broadfield Close

Sheffield S8 OXN

Tel: +44 (0) 114 280 2523

Ernail: legalandsecretarial@synecticspic.com
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Bankers
Lioyds Bank ple

125 Colmere Row
Birmingham B3 35F

Stockbrokers
Shore Capital & Corporate Ltd

Cassini House
57 St James's St
London SW1A 1LD

Auditor
RSM UK Audit LLP

1dth Flgor
20 Chapel Street
Liverpool L3 SAG

Registrars and transfer office
Link Group

10th Floor

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds LS1 4DL



Synectics ple

Synectics House
3-4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield

58 0XN

Telephona: +44 (0) 114 280 2828
Email: info@synecticsplc.com

www.synecticspic.com



